

Intera Deliverable D2.2

Integrated Resource Domain

Project reference number	e-content EDC-22076 INTERA / 27924
Project acronym	Intera
Project full title	Integrated European language data Repository Area
Project contact points	Khalid Choukri Evaluations & Language Resources Distribution Agency S.A. 55-57 Rue Brillat Savarin, 75013 Paris, France Phone: +33 1 43 13 33 33 , Fax: +33 1 43 13 33 30 Email: choukri@elda.fr
Project web site	http://www.elda.fr/intera
EC project officer	Philippe Gelin
Document title	Integrated Resource Domain
Deliverable ID	D2.2-1 Second Version
Document type	Prototype, Demonstrator
Dissemination level	PP
Contractual date of delivery	M9 (01.010.2003)
Actual date of delivery	01.11.2003 (indication to ELRA that the prototype is operating) ¹
Status & version	first version (next and last version to come in summer)
Work package & task ID	WP2, all WP2 Tasks except 2.1
Work package, task & deliverable responsible	MPI, USAAR, LORIA, ELRA
Number of pages	13 except appendixes
Author(s) & affiliation(s)	Daan Broeder, Peter Wittenburg, MPI
Additional contributor(s)	-
Keywords	Meta data, Language Resources
Abstract	
Additional notes & remarks	

¹ It was not clear to MPI that in addition to the working prototype also a report has to be written. This was created in February 2004.

Integrated Resource Domain

The Integrated Resource Domain has to be delivered in two steps as a prototype and demonstrator. The implementation of the prototype required much technology preparation work to adapt metadata technology to the new IMDI version and to validate incoming metadata descriptions, to integrate the metadata descriptions and to offer the integrated metadata domain via a well-defined portal. So all technology work is seen as preparatory to realize the demonstrator. Therefore, this report will touch the development work carried out and briefly describe the prototype.

1. Technology Work

The technology work is based on the new IMDI version that was discussed at the International IMDI Workshop in Nijmegen in November 2002. It was decided that the IMDI set will be changed and simplified slightly and that it will cover also metadata elements for written resources and lexicons. For details we refer to the appendix C where the new IMDI set is listed². The discussions with the international experts took much longer then expected until the new standard was accepted by the IMDI community. In July 2003 the new version of the IMDI standard could be finished as IMDI 3.0.3. A complete set of XML-schemas was developed to define the set and the needed controlled vocabularies (see appendix D).

Further, the IMDI infrastructure was influenced by the experience of the users with the old tool versions. The new tools were adapted and new functionality was added. One essential extension was made to the IMDI definition: Special Profiles are now supported which allow projects or institutions to create their own special extensions to IMDI in addition to what is defined in the core set. Profiles are possible since the IMDI set from the beginning was designed as a set that is extendible. For example the Dutch Spoken Corpus project is using a number of additional elements taken from the TEI that should be searchable. For this extension a special profile was created.

In general we can state that there is no other metadata infrastructure world-wide that has such a level of support by a complete set of tools. The IMDI infrastructure is now even more interesting also for industry, since more and more management tools are being built around it. All tools are offered under Open Source licence and can be downloaded from the official IMDI site including manuals. For some of the tools the manuals have to be finished.

Editor

The most important tool is the editor that allows people to enter correct metadata descriptions. The new editor is a professional tool and certainly one of the best available world-wide. The functions are described in detail in the manual that is available via the IMDI web-site (see appendix A). The IMDI editor was completely revised to make it even more user friendly and more efficient. The editor supports a conversion from the old IMDI version to the new one, i.e. a user will be notified and asked whether a new version should be generated. At this place we will just stick with a screen shot that shows the new user interface (see figure 1).

From the users we were informed about errors in the new version of the editor. The code was corrected with respect to the errors we heard about. We also re-factured the code at some places, so that we can speak about a stable version again.

CV Editor

This editor allows people to add controlled vocabularies that are also important to guarantee useful search results. Also here we will only show a screen shot (see figure 2) and refer the interested user to the web-site. A manual is available (see appendix D).

² We also refer to the Web-Sites: http://www.mpi.nl/ISLE and http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI for details.

🖹 IMDI Metadata Editor					- 0 >
<u>File View Options H</u> elp					
Project	Editor	r 💟 HTML 😝 I	Links —		
 ♥ Content ♦ Arabic, Moroccan (spoken) ♥ ♠ Actors ♥ ♠ Abderrahman El Aissati ● Tarifit 		ent mary Content Info GenreDisco Modalitiesspeer ChannelUnsp	ourse SubgenreNerretive Taskfrog : ch Social ContextUnspecified Event StructureUnsp		:d
— ◆ Arabic, Moroccan (spoker — ◆ English	Conte	ent Type Descri	ptions Languages Keys		1
─ ◆ French		Genre	Discourse	•	(cv)
P- ♦ Ilham B ♦ Arabic, Moroccan (spoker		Subgenre	Narrative	-	(cv)
- O on		Task	frog story	-	(cv)
♥ ◆ Resources ♥ Media File #1		Modalities	speech	-	(cv)*
P- T oujda_ilham.cha		Subject			
ତ- T oujda_ilham.cha ⊙- T oujda_ilham.cha	Coi	mmunication	Context		
ତ- T oujda_ilham.cha ତ- T oujda_ilham.cha		Interactivity	semi-interactive	•	CV
• • - CC • • - DAT		Planning Type	semi-spontaneous	•	CV
Access		Involvement	non-elicited	•	CV
		Social Context	Unspecified	•	CV
P S Local Repository		Event Structure	Unspecified	•	CV
Projects Content Actors	1	Channel	Unspecified	•	CV
 Construction Construction	•				
		Ø Clear Conten			

Figure 1 shows a screenshot of the new editor version.

🖑 Cor	ntrolled Vocab	ulary Editor - [Conte	nt-Genre.xml]		_ 🗆 X
<u>F</u> ile					
Name:	Content-Genre			Language:	English 💌
Tag:					
Title:					
URL:	http://www.mpi.nl/IM	DI/Schema/Content-Genre.xm	 າໄ		
Descrip					
	values for the genre	aspect			
	Tag	Value	Description		Add
Unknow	n	Unknown			▲
Unspeci	fied	Unspecified			Edit
Discours	se -	Discourse			
Ritual/re	ligious texts	Ritual/religious texts			Remove
Fiction		Fiction			
Newspa	per article	Newspaper article			
Radio/T\	/ feature	Radio/TV feature			
Drama		Drama			
Singing		Singing			
Instrume	ental music	Instrumental music			<u> </u>
Poetry		Poetry			
Literatur	e	Literature			
	n document	Rocondon document			<u> </u>
Click on	a column header to	sort			

Figure 2 shows a screenshot of the CV Editor.

Corpus Structure Builder

	e		~
Access of		s-Structures-corpman.xls	_
	<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew Insert	Format Tools Data Window Help Acrobat	×
	🗃 🖬 🍯 🗟 🖤	🗼 🗈 🗊 🛍 ؇ 🕶 - 🤐 🌾 Σ ≉ 🛃 🛍 🖉 🚜 100% - 🤁 🖓	» •
Aria	al 🕶 1	0 ▼ B Z U 匡喜言國 19 %,% 🕫 健健 🖩 • 🌶 • ▲ • 👋 •	»
i 💼	-		-
	A1 🔽	= asec2000Dec01b	_
	A	B C D E F	
	asec2000Dec01b	/circle_of_dirt/Metadata/asec2000Dec(S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi circle_of_d1-01.imdi	
		/circle_of_dirt/Metadata/asec2000Dec(S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi circle_of_d1-01.imdi	
	asec2001Apr02a	/circle_of_dirt/Metadata/asec2001Apr0S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi circle_of_d1-01.imdi	
		/circle_of_dirt/Metadata/asec2001Apr0S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi circle_of_d1-01.imdi	
		/circle_of_dirt/Metadata/asec2001Apr2S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi circle_of_d1-01.imdi	
	asec2001Apr25b	/circle_of_dirt/Metadata/asec2001Apr2S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi circle_of_d1-01.imdi	
		/circle_of_dirt/Metadata/asec2001Apr2S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi circle_of_d1-01.imdi	
8		/circle_of_dirt/Metadata/asec2001May S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi circle_of_d1-01.imdi	
9	asec2001May03f	/circle_of_dirt/Metadata/asec2001May S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi circle_of_d1-01.imdi	
10	asec2001May18a	/circle_of_dirt/Metadata/asec2001May S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi circle_of_d1-01.imdi	
11	asec2001May30a	/circle_of_dirt/Metadata/asec2001May S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi circle_of_d1-01.imdi	
12	asec2001Sep17a	/circle_of_dirt/Metadata/asec2001Sep S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi circle_of_d1-01.imdi	
13	asec2002Feb27a	/circle_of_dirt/Metadata/asec2002Feb[S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi circle_of_d1-01.imdi	
14	asec2002Mar06a	/circle_of_dirt/Metadata/asec2002Marl S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi circle_of_d1-01.imdi	
15	asec2002Mar06e	/circle_of_dirt/Metadata/asec2002Marl S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi circle_of_d1-01.imdi	
16	asec2001Aug21b	/clothing_game/Metadata/asec2001AuS. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi clothing_g1-02.imdi	
17	asec2002Jan09b	/clothing_game/Metadata/asec2002Ja S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi clothing_g 1-02.imdi	
18		/clothing_game/Metadata/asec2002Ja S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi clothing_g1-02.imdi	
19		/clothing_game/Metadata/asec2002Ja S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi clothing_g1-02.imdi	
20	asec2002Jan10d	/clothing_game/Metadata/asec2002Ja S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi clothing_g1-02.imdi	
21		/endpoint/Metadata/asec2002Mar22a. S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi endpoint 1-03.imdi	
22		/endpoint/Metadata/asec2002Mar22b. S. Eisenbeiss corpus 1 1.imdi endpoint 1-03.imdi	
IT I			ŕ
1		pes • 丶 丶 □ ○ 🗑 4 🙍 🔌 • 🚄 • 📥 • ≡ 🚍 🚍 💣 •	
Rea	uy		1

Figure 3 shows a screenshot taken from the Excel program. This can be used to specify the IMDI hierarchy in an easy way. The output is transformed by a program into proper IMDI XML files.

The IMDI metadata infrastructure is not only focussing on searchable metadata descriptions but also on browsable hierarchies that can be used for organizational and management

purpose. Altogether the IMDI infrastructure is intended to form a corpus management framework to manage large collections of language resources.

In this respect the users confronted us with the need of an efficient way to generate corpus structures. We allow people to specify corpus structures with the help of for example Excel which allows fast and easy column operations. These Excel tables are then processed by a program to generate validated IMDI hierarchies existing of IMDI XML files (see a screenshot of a typical Excel Sheet with a corpus structure in figure 3). Also the editor was extended to allow people to generate corpus structure nodes.

Tree Builder

The Tree Builder is a tool that allows users to create their own virtual archive within the overall IMDI domain. Users can create arbitrary nodes and link metadata descriptions with them. All work can be done graphically by connecting existing nodes with others. In doing so researchers can create their own private working domain for a special study to be carried out for some time. This working domain much more easily allows the user to find and combine the needed resources. Figure 4 gives a screenshot of the Tree Builder.



4 Figure shows а screenshot of the Tree Builder that can be used to create new virtual collections from the whole IMDI domain by simple graphical means. This allows users to easily create temporary working spaces which leads to great efficiency.

Due to the necessary debugging of the editor code and to the lost of the programmer of the editor further work on the Tree Copier had to be postponed.

Browser

The metadata browser is another true IMDI tool operating in distributed IMDI environments and directly on the IMDI XML files. It can be used to easily navigate in the IMDI domain with the help of browsing and searching. It also allows to set bookmarks to nodes such that users can easily go to sub-corpora. The browser is also the basis of all advanced options such as the domain interlinking proposed for the INTERA project to immediately start tools when having found suitable resources. Of course, the browser has facilities to support special project files. The details are described in the manual which is attached as appendix B. Figure 5 gives an idea about the user interface.



Figure 5 shows a screenshot of the new browser version that can process new as well as old IMDI files. It allows users to flexibly browse in the linked IMDI domain of XML files.

Structured Search Component

The structured search component is an integrated part of the browser, but could also be used in different frameworks. It offers to combine patterns with different elements that are part of the structured IMDI set and it also supports profiles. Its broad functionality is described in detail in the manual of the browser. To support search the browser supports creating a DB file for all IMDI files harvested. These are then queried to find hits. A user can use this facility to search through his private local corpora. Language archives have the possibility the possibility to make the created DB files available for remote querying by running a DB daemon by users through the same search interface. Again we just want to restrict ourselves in this document to give a screenshot of the component (see figure 6).

IMDI-BCBrowser for MI		Design Patterns
Bookmarks	Description	19970
Worldmap (HTTP) Worldmap IMDI corpora IMDI corpora (HTTP) MPI corpora (HTTP) CGN Corpus (mpi local)	IMDI Metadata Search File Session Location Continent Africa	
CGN Corpus (HTTP) CGN Corpus (HTTP) Search Results local CGN	Query specification and results Session MDGroup Location Continent="Africa"	
Metadata Descriptions Tr	hits: 401 progress: Finished in 79484 ms	
X MPLimdi G MPL corpora I HTMLcorpusCr Acquisition Language & Cc Multilingualism Demo	file://SUN03/MediaArchive/Jac_data/hellwig/Natural/Conversation/Metadata/Dialect2.imdi file://SUN03/MediaArchive/Jac_data/hellwig/Natural/Conversation/Metadata/Youth.imdi	
	Search Service: file://SUN03/MediaArchive/Corpusstructure/mpi.dbf	Browse
	Search Stop Save results in: results	
Basket functions	ediaArchive/Corpusstructure/MPI.imdi	

Figure 6 shows a screenshot of the search component that is integrated with the browser. It allows the user to enter queries supporting all structured elements of IMDI and also supports profiles.

HTML-Based Browsing

Knowing that many people have problems with downloading and installing special tools such as the IMDI browser we opened the possibility to navigate in the IMDI domain by using normal HTML browsers as indicated in the following figure. Of course, some restrictions have to be made for example with respect to the information about the corpus structure and the location of the user. Here only a path to the actual node is delivered. Nevertheless, the user can access all metadata information that is available. This mode is achieved by executing style-sheet based XSLT transformations on-the-fly, i.e. the HTML are created on the fly from the underlying XML representations (see figure 7).

It should be mentioned that these pages can be accessed by going to the following web-site: http://www.mpi.nl/corpus.



Figure 7 shows a screenshot of the way browsing is made possible via normal web browsers. XML files are transformed on-the-fly to HTML pages.

Unstructured Search

The same environment is used to test out an alternative search option. We also know that many users find it too difficult to formulate structured search queries, but want to have an unstructured search option that has the functionality of the Google search function. Although theoretically it does not sound convincing to execute unstructured search on structured data it offers some advantages. Even people who don't know the semantics of the elements and those who don't understand how certain resources are characterized could execute searches on typical values and get hits. Programs are used to generate an index file covering all metadata elements including descriptions and other unconstrained text fields.

Figure 8 indicates this option which also can be tested out by going to the web-site: http://www.mpi.nl/corpus.



Figure 8 indicates the Google-like search field allowing the user to do unstructured search on the structured IMDI files.

Version Converter

A converter program that converts IMDI 2.x into IMDI 3.03 was created and was successfully tested. The IMDI conversion was carried out in March 2004. This conversion has many aspects that have to be considered carefully and many institutions that make use of IMDI have to be informed. So the step over to IMDI 3.03 is a major step and has consequences also to many management and index creation programs that have been developed during the past years. The adaptation of all programs is almost finished so that the move to the new IMDI version can be made soon. The converter is available also on the IMDI site. The editor was extended such that it can read in old IMDI files and transforms them to new ones. The user is warned that transformations will be done so that he/she can manually intervene if necessary.

IMDI-to-OLAC Gateway

Both relevant metadata initiatives for language resources have created new versions that can be seen as major changes. So the old mappings between OLAC and IMDI were not valid any longer. Together with the EMELD project the MPI created a new mapping version which was discussed and except one small adaptation in the mapping approved at the recent E-Meld conference in Michigan in July. First tests from OLAC as service provider resulted in the fact that they had problems with the many metadata records that the IMDI domain now contains. A discussion between the responsible IMDI and OLAC persons resulted in the conclusion that the OLAC service provider has to adapt its services to be able to cope with the IMDI records in a useful way. Given very general queries some users may formulate such as "give me all resources for German" there would be thousands of records, like one can expect for very unspecific web-queries. These thousands of hits would dominate the hits generated from small repositories for example. It was agreed that it is a task for the service provider to find a balance. The OLAC search engine will be adapted to find this balance in a way defined by the OLAC designers. When these adaptations have been carried out all IMDI descriptions will be searchable again via the OLAC interface as well.

Still it should be noticed that the IMDI metadata descriptions are much richer and that some relevant data will just be ignored. As background information we should add that IMDI and OLAC slightly operate from different foci. OLAC was designed as an interface layer with semantics close to Dublin Core where many different language resource archives act as data providers and create DC-like descriptions according to the Open Archives Initiative model. IMDI does not only tackle the aspect of resource discovery via searching but also wants to support browsing and resource management. Further, the IMDI set was designed bottom-up to meet the needs of the language resource community in more detailed types of descriptions.

It should be mentioned here that this work is carried out in relation to WP3 and the newly formed ISO TC37/SC4 committee. All categories from IMDI were entered into the Data Category Registry. It is the intention to also enter all OLAC categories and to make the relations that are now included in wrappers explicit and available via open repositories. Yet there is no proposal for open relation registries that could be used by search engines.

Access Rights Management

Another very important framework that has been developed recently and that is based on the IMDI infrastructure is a complete framework to define users and groups and associate access rights with the groups. The framework also allows managers to define new managers to delegate the right to define rights, since otherwise the access administration is not tractable. Also here for reasons of efficiency it is possible for the manager to select a node in the metadata domain and assign access rights to different types of resources that can be found under this node. A user manual was being written that describes the full functionality. Again screenshots are used here to indicate the functionality (see figures 9 and 10).

Also this tool was tested extensively, since a deployment could only be accepted if IPR questions are dealt with correctly. It was presented at LREC 2004 and is in operation. The manual can be found in Appendix C.

The ARM solution is based on a Postgres database, i.e. all commands entered via webinterfaces are stored in the database. Programs are generating appropriate entries in the HT Access file that determines the access rights for web-based users and entries in Access Control Lists for internal users. All software is available and can be re-used by other institutions. It is intended to extend these mechanisms to distributed access mechanisms within a coming European project such that the users will be confronted with one transparent domain of web-resources and have just one identity in this domain that will cover several language resource archives.

By having added an ARM component we have reacted on the comments of the reviewers and shown that we take IPR issues very serious.

🚰 Browsable Corpus - Access Rights Management - Home page - Microsoft Internet Explorer			
Eile Edit View Favorites Iools Help			
$\begin{array}{c} \leftrightarrow Back \ \bullet \ \Rightarrow \ \bullet \ \textcircled{O} \ \end{array}{O} \ \end{array}{O} \ \textcircled{O} \ @ \b \textcircled{O} \ @ \b \end{array}{O} \ \ @ \b \b \end{array} \ @ \b \end{array}{O} \ @ \b \ \ @ \b \ \ @ \b \ \ @ \ \ @ \b \ \ @ \ \ @ \ \ @ \ \ \ \$			
Address 🕘 http://corpus1.mpi.nl/arm/ver2/arm-index.html	•	∲Go	Links »
Access Rights Management for			
Language Resource Archives at the MPI			
<u>DOBES Corpus, Dutch Spoken Corpus, MPI Copora, ESF Corpus</u>			
These pages allow authorized persons to define access rights for language resources that are part of the archives stored at the MPI. This access rights management system is the second version. This version is based on centralized mechanisms. For efficiency reasons read rights can be associated with nodes in the corpus structure. The specifications are extended to those video, audio, image and textual resources that can be found under the selected node. It should be mentioned again that metadata descriptions are open. It is assumed that a clear responsibility exists for certain sub-corpora. In DOBES for example every sub-corpus resulting from a specific project team has a responsible researcher. These will get the rights to modify the access rights for that sub-corpus. Central corpus management at the MPI has to take care that these top privileges will be handled correctly. In this version only central corpus management is allowed to carry out write and delete operations. This will change in the future.			
Current point in the tree: IMDI-corpora			
Authorized persons can			
add a person as potential new user add a new access rights manager add a new group remove a group modify groups (add or remove users, rename groups) define acces rights for a group list access rights			
If you want to access one of these links you will be asked to identify your self.			
Users can modify their password by clicking <u>here</u>			
Info about the Content help			T
8	🗿 Internet		1

Figure 9 shows a screenshot of the new access rights management system that is tightly connected with the IMDI metadata domain.

Browsable Corpus - Access Rights	Management - Grant rights to a group - Micro	osoft Internet Explorer				
<u>File Edit View Favorites Tools</u>						
	earch 🔝 Favorites 🧐 Media 🧭 🛃 🎝					
Address Address Address Address Address	er2/arm-rights-group.html		▼ 🖓 Go Links »			
	Access Rights Managen	hent				
	Grant or deny rights to a	group				
node. Therefore, you first ha be within your domain of res selected node and about all select whether your operatio latter case only resources si	This form allows you to associate read rights to a group with all resources that can be found under the selected node. Therefore, you first have to be sure that you are at the right node in the corpus tree. The node has to be within your domain of responsibility. You can inform yourself about the nodes that are children of the selected node and about all resources of a certain type that would be affected by your operation. You can also select whether your operation should be executed recursively or only at the level of the selected node. In the latter case only resources such as information file directly associated with the selected node will be affected. In the first case the operation would be executed for all resources of the selected type that are in the sub-tree spanned by the node.					
After submit the system will input you have to confirm th		th all information. To finally activate the				
	Select (another) group: Select	X 2				
	which indicates the resources that will Take care that this is what you want.	????? (path and node)				
Selected group: <i><no group<="" i=""> s</no></i>	selected if first time execute arm-right	's-group.pl>				
To allow or deny read acces according box.	s to a specific medium check the box n	ext to it. To deny access uncheck the				
Media	Allow	Deny				
all video	٠	0				
all audio	•	•	_			
E Done			🔰 🚺 🔮 Internet			
all images	•	0				
all annotations	٠	0				
all information files	٠	0				
	Submit					
To see all members of this g		Show members				
To see all corpus nodes that are affected press this button Show nodes (Opens a new window)						
To see all resources that are	e affected press this button Show re	sources (Opens a new window)				
Done		17 - 898 - 3	🔹 Internet			

Figure 10 shows a screenshot of the "define access rights" option of the new access rights management system. It is linked with the current node in the metadata hierarchy and allows users to select options. At this moment only read access can be given. We are working on a semi-automatic ingest system that will also allow users to define write rights, however, for an archive this leads to complicated issues such as versioning, since nothing may be deleted.

2. Metadata Integration

In an earlier note we have described that it was much more difficult to convince data providers to participate in the metadata creation process and that at the beginning too little money was offered by us. Things have changed and first metadata is available. The following matrix gives information about the state.

Partner	Resource Provider	Resource Names	Resource Type	Metadata State
MPI	BAS (D)	Smartcom	Multimodal	integrated
MPI	BAS (D)	Verbmobil etc	Speech	integrated
MPI	Meertens Inst (NL)	GTPR corpus	texts	integrated
MPI	Florence (It)	Lablita Corpus	speech/text	integrated
MPI	Taalunie (NL)	Dutch Spoken Corpus	speech	integrated
MPI	MPI	Gesture Corpus	Multimodal	integrated
MPI	MPI	ESF Second Learner	speech/text	integrated
		Corpus	-	_
MPI	MPI	PMOLL Corpus	speech/text	integrated
MPI	MPI	various others	speech/text	integrated
USAR	DFKI	Negra, Tiger	text	MD ready
USAR	U Prag	?	text	to come
USAR	U Madrid	Coral Rom	text	MD in creation
USAR	U Budapest	?	text	to come
LORIA	ATILF	Frantext etc	text	MD in creation
ILC	parallel corp	various	text	MD in creation
	providers			
ILSP	parallel corp	various	text	MD in creation
	providers			
ELRA	ELRA	various	text	to come

According to this matrix the first metadata descriptions were delivered and a number have already been integrated into the domain (see figure 11).



In the left frame called "Metadata Description Tree" one can find the contributions that are marked as being integrated such as from CGN, BAS, IFA, GTRP (Meertens), C-ORAL (Florence) and all the resources covered by the MPI archive. Other resources will be added when they become available³.

In addition to this list we can state that the following institutions are currently creating IMDI metadata descriptions (mostly on own money or via other funding sources):

- Univ Lund
- Sweden's National Dialect Archive
- U Uppsala
- U Stavanger
- U Groningen
- U Utrecht
- U Leiden
- U Helsinki
- Kotus Project Helsinki
- U Stockholm
- U London
- U Nijmegen
- U Kansas
- U Victoria (ca)
- EMU Michigan
- U Sydney
- U Melbourne
- U Kiel
- U Bochum
- U Bonn
- U Leipzig
- U Frankfurt
- U Bielefeld
- U Erfurt
- Federal U of Rio de Janeiro
- U Buenos Aires
- Phonogramm Archive Vienna
- MPI Nijmegen
- European Sign Language Communities in Se, UK, NL and D
- several others we don't know

Also these resources will become available under the IMDI portal when they are ready and registered. Partly they are already integrated as sub-parts of other projects. Given this list we can hope that an increasing number of institutions will join.

For every metadata provider the following steps are being carried out at the MPI:

- The metadata files provided are being validated, since most of them are created at least semi-automatically with the help of scripts. So a validation step is necessary.
- Some indexes have to be created to make the metadata searchable.
- The metadata hierarchies have to be created and integrated to offer browsing capability.

For all these steps the tools have been created such that they can be carried out efficiently. Often, some interaction has to be done to carry out the necessary corrections in particular on the semantic level.

³ When downloading and installing the IMDI browser everyone could start looking at this data.

3. Prototype and Demonstrator

The prototype includes the software that was described in chapter 1 and the metadata domain where we indicate the state in chapter 2.

The prototype is running for some months already including all tools. All major tools are downloadable and can be used by others. Currently, some optimizations and debugging is carried out. This will lead to new releases that will be deployed from time to time. The growing metadata domain can be browsed and searched by going to the following web-site: http://www.mpi.nl/corpus.

At LREC 2004 a demonstration was given that covers already many of the resources that are mentioned in the matrix and that have to be integrated in the final deliverable. The intention was to create a sufficiently large metadata domain that makes it interesting for others to use it and hopefully to join. This would be in the line of the ENABLER declaration (ENABLER meeting in PARIS) which stated clearly that

- most language resources are still not visible on the Internet
- even less language resources are accessible via the Internet
- for all initiatives that are funded by governmental money it should be obligatory to create open metadata descriptions and to make the resources accessible via the Internet.

The IMDI infrastructure as further developed in INTERA allows people to create metadata in an easy way to have a low threshold for participation. The list given on the previous page shows that there is an increasing number of institutions that understand the relevance of metadata.

As was stated in the INTERA proposal, the delivered IMDI domain is not just a demonstrator but will be a service that will be further supported by the participating institutions. The availability of metadata is a must not only for resource discovery purposes, but is also a basis for efficient management.

The IMDI infrastructure is set up in a way that all interested institutions such as ELRA for example could easily create their own portal and offer the total or a selected domain. Of course, all IMDI tools are Open Source and free.

Appendix A

IMDI Editor, version 3.0

Manual

This manual was last updated: 22 Oct 2003

The latest version of the manual can be downloaded from the following webpage: <u>http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/tools/</u>

Author: Birgit Hellwig

Introduction

The IMDI (ISLE Metadata Initiative) Editor was developed at the Max Planck Institute for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen, The Netherlands. It is used to create metadata descriptions, both for sessions or resource bundles and for corpora. As such, it complements the other IMDI tools.

At the moment, the following IMDI tools exist (tools and manuals can be downloaded

from http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/tools/):

- IMDI CV-Editor: a tool for creating lists of controlled vocabulary items;
- IMDI Browser: a tool for displaying and accessing data and metadata;
- IMDI Metadata Search Tool: a tool for searching through metadata information;
- IMDI Tree Builder: a tool for creating browsable trees based on IMDI metadata descriptions (beta version).

This manual helps you to understand the structure of the IMDI Editor. It consists of the following parts:

- I. Navigating through the IMDI Editor (section 1), describing the structure of the IMDI Editor.
- II. The IMDI Session Editor (section 2), illustrating the metadata categories used for describing sessions or resource bundles (i.e., audio/video and written resources).
- III. The IMDI Lexicon Editor (section 3), illustrating the metadata categories used for describing lexicon resource bundles.
- IV. The IMDI Corpus Editor (section 4), giving step-by-step instructions on how to manage a corpus with the help of the IMDI Editor.
- V. Appendices.

! Note: The IMDI Editor has undergone a number of changes since it was first created, both in terms of its user interface and in terms of the metadata categories supported. If you have metadata files created with previous versions of the Editor, please consult the following sections: section 1.6 (for a summary of changes to the user interface, introduced in version 2.0), and section 2.7 (for a summary of changes to the metadata categories, introduced in version 3.0).

! Note: This manual contains a number of references to corpora housed at the Max Planck Institute (MPI) for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen. It uses these corpora as a means to illustrate the functionality of the IMDI Editor. Please note that any remarks only pertain to these corpora. Corpora stored at other archives or institutes follow different rules.

Notation Conventions

The following notation conventions are used:

- Screens, schemata and fields of the Editor are written in the font MS Sans Serif.
- (SHORTCUT) KEYS ARE WRITTEN IN SMALL CAPS.
- "Text in double quotes refers to menu items and screen displays."
- Information on troubleshooting starts as follows: !

Table of Contents

1 Navigating through the IMDI Editor	22
1.1 The IMDI Editor window	22
1.2 The menu items	23
1.2.1 "File" menu	24
1.2.1.1 "New …"	24
1.2.1.2 "New Session"	24
1.2.1.3 "New Lexicon Resource Bundle"	24
1.2.1.4 "New Corpus"	25
1.2.1.5 "New Catalogue"	25
1.2.1.6 "Open …"	25
1.2.1.7 "Open URI …"	25
1.2.1.8 "Open Recent"	25
1.2.1.9 "Close"	25
1.2.1.10 "Close All"	25
1.2.1.11 "Save"	26
1.2.1.12 "Save As …"	26
1.2.1.13 "Save All"	
1.2.1.14 "Page Setup …"	26
1.2.1.15 "Print …"	
1.2.1.16 "Exit"	27
1.2.2 "View" menu	27
1.2.2.1 "Information"	28
1.2.2.2 "File Prefixes"	
1.2.2.3 "Validate File …"	28
1.2.3 "Options" menu	28
1.2.3.1 "Profile Manager"	29
1.2.3.2 "Anonyms …"	30
1.2.3.3 "Vocabularies …"	32
1.2.3.4 "Preferences"	35
1.2.4 "Help" menu	37
1.3 The "Browse" panel	37
1.4 The "Repository" panel	42
1.4.1 Storing metadata information in the repository	43
1.4.2 Deleting metadata information from the repository	44

1.4.3	Managing the structure of the repository.	45
1.4.4	Exporting nodes from the repository	46
1.4.5	Importing nodes into the repository.	47
1.4.6	Updating the information in the repository	48
1.4.7	Using metadata information from the repository	49
1.5 Th	e "Content" panel	51
1.5.1	Screens	51
1.5.2	Schemata and fields	54
1.5.3	Links	57
1.6 Ch	anges to the user interface (version 2.0)	58
2 The IN	IDI Session Editor	59
2.1 Se	ssion	61
2.1.1	Session	61
2.1.2	Descriptions	62
2.1.3	Location	63
2.1.4	Keys	64
2.2 Pro	Diect	65
2.3 Co	ntent	67
2.3.1	Content Type	68
2.3.2	Descriptions	
2.3.3	Languages	73
2.3.3	.1 Language	74
2.3.3	.2 Languages Descriptions	76
2.3.4	Keys	77
2.4 Ac	tors	78
2.4.1	Actor	79
2.4.1	.1 Actor Information	80
2.4.1	.2 Contact Information	83
2.4.1	.3 Resource References	83
2.4.1	.4 Descriptions	84
2.4.1	.5 Languages	85
2.4.1	.6 Keys	89
2.4.2	Actors Descriptions	90
2.5 Re	sources	91
2.5.1	Anonymous	92
2.5.2	Media Files	93
2.5.2	.1 Media File	94

95 95 96 97 99 .101 .101 .101 .101
95 96 97 99 .101 .101 .101
96 97 99 .101 .101 .101
97 99 .101 .101 .101
99 .101 .101 .101 .101
.101 .101 .101
.101 .101
.101
101
. 101
.102
.103
.103
.104
.104
.104
.104
.105
.105
.106
.106
.110
111
.111
112
.112
.113
.114
.117
.119
121
121
.121
.123
.125

1 Navigating through the IMDI Editor

This part of the manual describes the structure of the IMDI Editor.

1.1 The IMDI Editor window

Starting the IMDI Editor opens up the "IMDI Metadata Editor" (or "IMDI Editor") window. Its initial display is as follows:



The "IMDI Editor" window has the following structure:

- a menu bar (see section 1.2);
- a "Browse" panel allowing you to browse through one (or more) IMDI files (see section 1.3);
- a "Repository" panel allowing you to work with recurring information (see section 1.4);
- a "Content" panel displaying screens, schemata and fields for entering metadata information (see section 1.5).

The size of any of the three panels ("Browse", "Repository", and "Content") can be changed relative to the size of the other panels. To change its size, do one of the following:



! Note: The structure of the "IMDI Editor" window has changed considerably in version 2.0 (see section 1.6 for a summary of the implemented changes). The structure of version 3.0 has only changed marginally, but there have been a number of changes to the metadata categories (see section 2.7 for details).

1.2 The menu items

The menu items are displayed in the top left corner of the "IMDI Editor" window.

To access any item, do one of the following:

- (a) Click on the item.
- (b) Or use the shortcut key ALT plus the underlined letter(s) (e.g., to access the item " \underline{F} ile \underline{N} ew Session", press first the keys ALT+F and then N).
- (c) Or use the shortcut key that is displayed to the right of the corresponding menu item (e.g., to access the item "New Session", press the keys CTRL+N). (This option is only available for some items.)
- (d) Or click on the corresponding icon displayed below the menu bar. The following four icons are available:



1.2.1 "File" menu

The "File" menu is used to create, open, close, save, print and exit IMDI file(s). It contains the following options:

🛅 IMDI Metadata Editor	_ 🗆 🗙
File View Options Help	
N <u>e</u> w	Alt-N
S New Session	Ctrl-N
📔 New Lexicon Resource Bundle	
🖬 New <u>C</u> orpus	
New Catalogue	
🔁 Open	Ctrl-O
Open <u>U</u> RI	Ctrl-U
Open <u>R</u> ecent	Þ
<u>C</u> lose	Ctrl-W
Clos <u>e</u> All	
Save	Ctrl-S
Save As	F12
Save All	
Page <u>S</u> etup	
Print	Ctrl-P
E <u>x</u> it	Ctrl-Q

1.2.1.1 "New …"

"New ..." allows you to create new IMDI files, and to assign them to a type and a profile (see section 1.2.3.1 for details).

Choose first a type (e.g., "Resource Bundles (Sessions)", "Lexicon Resource Bundles", or "Corpora") and then a profile (e.g., "Standard (Session) Resource Bundle"). Click on the profile, then click on "OK". The new file will be assigned to this type and profile.



1.2.1.2 "New Session"

Click on "New Session" to create a new IMDI Session file. It will be automatically assigned to the default profile for Resource Bundles (Sessions) (see section 1.2.3.1; see section 2).

1.2.1.3 "New Lexicon Resource Bundle"

Click on "New Lexicon Resource Bundle" to create a new IMDI Lexicon file. It will be automatically assigned to the default profile for Lexicon Resource Bundles (see section 1.2.3.1; see section 3).

1.2.1.4 "New Corpus"

Click on "New Corpus" to create a new IMDI Corpus file. It will be automatically assigned to the default profile for Corpus bundles (see section 1.2.3.1; see section 4).

1.2.1.5 "New Catalogue"

Please ignore this option for the moment.

1.2.1.6 "Open ..."

Click on "Open" to open an IMDI file. Browse to the folder that contains the IMDI file and double-click on it to open it.

! Note: You can only open files of the IMDI Editor format. If you try to open a file of a different format, an error message will appear.

! Note: If you open a file assigned to a profile that has been deleted, the default profile for that type will be used instead. E.g., you may have an IMDI Session file that was originally assigned to the "Sign-Language Profile", but later on you deleted this profile. If you now open this IMDI Session file again, it will be assigned to the default profile for session files (e.g., to the "Standard (Session) Resource Bundle" Profile) (see section 1.2.3.1 for details).

! Note: If you open a file created with an old IMDI standard, it will be converted to the IMDI 3.0 standard (see section 2.7 for details).

1.2.1.7 "Open URI …"

Click on "Open URI" to download an IMDI file from the Web. A dialog window pops up. Enter the corresponding URI into the window and click on "OK" (see also section 1.2.1.6).

1.2.1.8 "Open Recent"

Go to "Open Recent" to view a list of the IMDI files that you have recently worked on. Click on any file from the list to open it (see also section 1.2.1.6).

1.2.1.9 "Close"

Click on "Close" to close the currently active IMDI file (i.e., the file that is highlighted in the "Browse" panel; see section 1.3). All other open IMDI files will remain open.

If the file to be closed has not been saved yet, a warning appears. Click on "Yes" to save the file before closing; click on "No" to not save the file; click on "Cancel" to return to the file.

1.2.1.10 "Close All"

Click on "Close All" to close all IMDI file (see also section 1.2.1.9).

1.2.1.11 "Save"

Click on "Save" to save the currently active IMDI file (i.e., the file that is highlighted in the "Browse" panel; see section 1.3).

! Note: The "Save" option is only enabled if a file node (i.e., a session, lexicon, or corpus node) is highlighted in the "Browse" panel. If any other node is highlighted the following error message appears:

🖹 Save	Warning	×
	You need to select a Session, Corp or Catalogue (root) node in the Brow	
	ОК	

If you save an IMDI file for the first time, the "Save" dialog window appears. Browse to the folder where you want to save the file, assign a name to it, and then click on "Save".

! Note: When you save an IMDI file, the IMDI Editor will check if the folder contains a file named **imdi.xsd**. If not, it will automatically create this file.

! Note for researchers working at the MPI for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen: The name of the IMDI file should be the same as the name of the corresponding annotation and media files (see section 2.5). The same name should also be entered in the field **Session name** (see section 2.1.1). Furthermore, the file name has to be Unix compatible: do not use file names longer than 14 characters, do not use non-letter or non-number characters (except for the underscore: _), and do not use blank spaces.

1.2.1.12 "Save As ..."

Click on "Save As" to save the currently active IMDI file (i.e., the file that is highlighted in the "Browse" panel; see section 1.3) under a different name (see also section 1.2.1.11).

1.2.1.13 "Save All"

Click on "Save All" to save all open IMDI files (see also section 1.2.1.11).

1.2.1.14 "Page Setup ..."

Click on "Page Setup ..." to specify the layout of the printed IMDI file (i.e., paper size, source, orientation, and margins).

1.2.1.15 "Print ..."

Click on "Print ..." to print the currently active IMDI file (i.e., the file that is highlighted in the "Browse" panel; see section 1.3).

1.2.1.16 "Exit"

Click on "Exit" to exit the "IMDI Metadata Editor" window. All open IMDI files will be closed. If some files are not yet saved, a warning appears that contains the following kind of information:



1.2.2 "View" menu

The "View" menu displays information about the currently active IMDI file (i.e., the file that is highlighted in the "Browse" panel; see section 1.3). It contains the following options:

🖺 IMDI Metadata Edit 💶 🗙					
<u>F</u> ile	View Options Help				
5	🚺 Information Alt-I				
	<u>File Prefixes</u>				
1	<u>V</u> alidate File				

1.2.2.1 "Information ..."

Click on "Information ..." to view information about the currently active IMDI file. The following kind of information is displayed:



1.2.2.2 "File Prefixes ..."

Click on "File Prefixes ..." to view the prefixes that are used in the IMDI file (see section 1.2.3.4).

1.2.2.3 "Validate File ..."

Click on "Validate File ..." to view information about whether the file is valid with respect to the XML schema.

1.2.3 "Options" menu

The "Options" menu allows you to set a number of preferences. It contains the following options:



1.2.3.1 "Profile Manager"

Every IMDI file is assigned to a type and to a profile. These types and profiles are managed through the menu item "Profile Manager".

By default, there are three different types of IMDI files:

- Resource Bundles or Sessions that are used to describe audio/video and written resources (see section 2);
- Lexicon Resource Bundles that are used to describe lexicon resources (see section 3);
- Corpora that are used to describe larger corpora (see section 4).

Types are associated with one or more profiles. These profiles specify the available metadata categories together with their constraints. For example, members of the sign language research community have developed a "Sign-Language Profile". IMDI files that are based on this profile contain some sign-language-specific metadata categories and constraints, e.g.:



To manage types and profiles, click on "Profile Manager. The following options are available:

Add a new profile:

Click on the type where you want to add the profile. Then click on "Add" (to add a locally-stored file) or on "Add URL" (to add a file stored on the Web). A dialog window appears, allowing you to browse to the file or to enter its URL.

 Profile Manager
 Image: Ima

Delete a profile:

Click on the profile that you want to delete. Then click on "Delete".

Select the default profile for a type:

Click on the profile that you want to make the default profile for a type. Then click on "Make Default". From now on, this profile will automatically be used whenever you create a new IMDI file based on this type, i.e., for new Session files (see section 1.2.1.2), new Lexicon files (see section 1.2.1.3) or new Corpus files (see section 1.2.1.4). The non-defaults can still be accessed through the menu item "File / New …" (see section 1.2.1.1).

Click on "OK" to exit the "Profile Manager" window again.

! Note: Profiles are stored in the folder "user-directory \setminus IMDI-TOOLS \setminus Profiles \setminus local). For the moment, profiles have to be programmed by hand. In future versions of the IMDI tools, it will be possible to create profiles with the help of the IMDI Editor.

1.2.3.2 "Anonyms ..."

"Anonyms ..." is used whenever you have chosen to make the name of an actor anonymous, i.e., whenever you have chosen to enter a code (instead of the full name) into the field Full Name on the screen Actor (see section 2.4.1.1). If you have done so, the option "Anonyms ..." allows you to create a file that maps this code to a full name. You (and everybody whom you grant access to this file) will be able to see the full name, while everybody else will only see the code.

To create such a file, do the following:

- 1. Click on "Options".
- 2. Click on "Anonyms ...".

The "Anonyms overview" dialog window appears. It allows you to create, modify and remove mappings, and it displays all available mappings, e.g.:

📓 Anonym	ns overviev	N		×
Institute	Project	User	Code	Name
MPI	Goemai	birghe	Code_X	Birgit Hellwig
MPI	Goemai	birghe	Code_A	L
MPI	Goemai	birghe	Code_J	[®] "Anonyms overview"
				dialog window
Click on a c	Add		dit	Remove Close

The following options are available:

- You can sort the available mappings. Click on any of the column headers to sort the corresponding column alphabetically.
- To add a mapping, click on "Add …". The "Anonyms input" dialog window appears. Please fill in the institute (e.g., MPI), the project (e.g., Goemai), the code of the actor and his/her full name.

M Aneny	ms input		×	
Institute	MPI			
Project	Goemai			
Code	Code_X	enter		
Full name	Birgit Hellwig	inform	nation	
	Арр	ly	Close	

To save the mapping, click first on "Apply" and then on "Close".

The new mapping will be displayed in the "Anonyms overview" dialog window.

! Note: The code that you enter into the "Anonyms input" dialog window should be different from the code that you enter in the field **Code** on the **Actor** screen (see section 2.4.1). If the codes are identical, the IMDI Editor will also display the full name in the field **Code** on the **Actor** screen – not the intended code.

! Note: The column "User" (in the "Anonyms overview" dialog window) does not appear in the "Anonyms input" dialog window. This column is automatically filled in by the program.

• To edit a mapping, click on it to highlight it. Then click on "Edit ...". The "Anonyms input" dialog window appears and displays the highlighted mapping. Type in your changes.

M Anony	ms input	×
Institute	MPI	
Project Code	Goemai Code_XY Birgit Hellwig	type in the changes
- An Hame	OF	(Close

Click on "OK" to save the changes.

- To remove a mapping, click on it to highlight it. Then click on "Remove". The mapping is removed without further warning.
- 3. Click on "Close" to exit the "Anonyms overview" dialog window.

All mappings are saved in the file **user-name.ano** in the folder "user-directory \ IMDI-TOOLS \ Anonyms", e.g.:

<mark>≷ Exploring - D:\WINNT\Profile</mark> File Edit ⊻iew Tools <u>H</u> elp				
Anonyms All Folders IMDI-TOOLS Anonyms Cocache Co-set Editor Editor Search I object(s) 406 by	Contents of 'D:\WINt KAr Name Int birghe.ano Use Use	ail:"" UserId stituteId:"MP <anonym erId:"birghe"</anonym 	lname="D:\WINNT\Profiles\birghe" ="birghe" ProjectId="test"	1>
				w.

If you want other people to have access to these mappings, send them a copy of the file **user-name.ano**. They should then save this file in their folder "user-directory \ IMDI-TOOLS \ Anonyms".

1.2.3.3 "Vocabularies ..."

The IMDI tools make use of so-called "controlled vocabularies" to ensure consistency across users (i.e., they provide lists of values for specific metadata categories or keys). These vocabularies are stored on the Web, and a copy of them is stored in the cache of your desktop computer (in the folder "user-directory \ IMDI-TOOLS \ CVCACHE") (see the IMDI CV-Editor manual for details).

You can view these vocabularies through the menu item "Vocabularies ...". Click on it to access the "Vocabs overview" window, e.g.:



The "Vocabs overview" window offers you the following options:

- You can sort the available controlled vocabularies. Click on any of the column headers to sort the corresponding column alphabetically.
- "Add File …"

Click on "Add File …" to add a controlled vocabulary file that is stored locally. The "Browse" window appears, allowing you to browse to the folder and to select the file. The vocabulary will then be added to the "Vocabs overview" window.

• "Add URL …"

Click on "Add URL …" to add a controlled vocabulary file that is stored on the Web. The "Vocab add" window appears. Enter the URL of the vocabulary, click on "Apply" and then click on "OK". The vocabulary will be added to the "Vocabs overview" window.

🌺 Yocab add			×
URL http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/Schema	/Content-Genre-	nteractional.xml	
	ОК	Cancel	Apply

• "Read cache"

Click on "Read cache" to view all available controlled vocabularies (i.e., all vocabularies that are stored in the folder "user-directory \setminus IMDI-TOOLS \setminus CVCACHE").

• "Refresh selected"

Click on a vocabulary to select it, then click on "Refresh selected" to have the IMDI tools check for a newer version of that vocabulary on the Web, and to update the cache accordingly.

• "Refresh all"

Click on "Refresh all" to have the IMDI tools check for newer versions of all vocabularies on the Web, and to update the cache accordingly.

• "Show entries ..."

Click on a controlled vocabulary to select it, then click on "Show entries ..." to view its content., e.g.:

Yocabs overview					×
Used vocabularies until <u>now:</u>		,			
Name 1. clic		CV URL / Local Path	Loca	I Description	Language
Countries vocabulary to .		MDI/Schema/Countries.xml		A list of countries fr CIA fact book	om the
DeafContacts.DeafCluDeafContacts.De	afCluhttp://www.let.kun.	_ .nl/sign-lang/IMDI/vocabs/DeafCo	ontacts.DeafX	Extent of contacts w	2. click on "Show
Add File Add URI		Refresh selected	Refresh all	Show entries	entries"
Sorted o	MDI/Schema/Countrie	rs.xml	×		
Value	Tag	Definition		hand : a	
Unknown			3. con		
Undefined Unspecified			display	ved	
Afghanistan				,	
Albania					
Algeria					
American Samoa					
Andorra					
Angola Anguilla					
Antarctica			/		
Antigua and Barbuda			—/I		
Arctic Ocean					
Argentina					
Armenia					
Aruba					
Ashmore and Sartier Islands	Close		_		

• "Close"

Click on "Close" to close the "Vocabs overview" window.

1.2.3.4 "Preferences ..."

Click on "Preferences ..." to access the "Preferences" dialog window.

In the "Preferences" dialog window, the following four options are available:

Click on any of the headings

in the left panel to activate

the corresponding option.

- (1) "Prefixes"
- (2) "Resources"
- (3) "Update Policy"
- (4) "Font"

 Image: Second Second

"Prefixes"

This option allows you to specify the path to the different types of files (see section 4 for details).

"Resources"

This option allows you to specify the browse options (see section 4 for details).

"Update Policy"

The IMDI tools make use of so-called "controlled vocabularies" (see section 1.2.3.3). These vocabularies are stored on the Web, and a copy of them is stored in the cache of your desktop computer (in the folder "user-directory \ IMDI-TOOLS \ CVCACHE"). The Web version is changed sometimes, but the IMDI tools will continue to use the locally-stored version until the cache is updated again. By default, the cache is updated whenever you run an IMDI tool. However, you can change this policy, and determine if and when the vocabularies should be updated.

Click on "Update Policy" to determine this policy. The following options are available:



"Font"

This option allows you to display special character sets and fonts. To select a set and a font, do the following:

- 1. Under "Unicode Block" (in the left panel), select a unicode block by clicking on it. The available fonts are then displayed under "Font" (in the right panel).
- 2. Under "Font", select a font by clicking on it.
- 3. Click on "OK" to implement the new font.


1.2.4 "Help" menu

Click on "Help" to view information about the IMDI Editor, e.g.:



1.3 The "Browse" panel

The "Browse" panel allows you to browse through one (or more) IMDI (Session, Lexicon or Corpus) files. It displays all currently open IMDI files, e.g.:



The "Browse" panel makes use of the following icons:



Under each session or corpus node, the structure of the corresponding IMDI (Session, Lexicon or Corpus) file is displayed in the form of metadata nodes, media files nodes, written resource file nodes, lexicon file nodes and/or corpus link nodes.

The nodes of the "Browse" panel interact in the following ways with the screens of the "Content" panel (see section 1.5):

(a) Click on any node in the "Browse" panel to make the corresponding IMDI file the currently active IMDI file. It will be highlighted in blue color, and its metadata information will be displayed in the "Content" panel, e.g.:



(b) Some nodes in the "Browse" panel allow you to add further sub-nodes, which are then displayed as screens in the "Content" panel. For example, the node "Actors" allows you to add a sub-node for each actor. To add a sub-node, do one of the following:



You can insert the new sub-node anywhere under an appropriate top node. To select its position, do one of the following:

• Add the sub-node (see above), and click on it in the "Browse" panel, keep the mouse button clicked and drag it to its new position. A line will appear at this position. Release the mouse button, and the sub-node will be inserted in its new position, e.g.:



- 🗆 🗵 😭 IMDI Metadata Editor File View Options Help (1) In the "Content' panel, click on 5 -0 the sub-node before which you Standard (Session) Resource B 🛅 Editor want to insert the new sub-node. It Project 🔶 Content is highlighted in blue color. Actors Actors. 🔶 Birgit Hellwig Add Birgit 🔶 Daan Broeder Unspecified Daan Broeder Daan 🌢 Freddy Offenga Freddy Freddy Offenga Unspecified Resources (2) Click on Referen 🗃 IMDI Metadata Edit "Add". <u>File View Options H</u>elp -5 0 scription Standard (Session) Resource I Project Unknown • CV anguage Content Actors • Birgit Hellwig Actor #4 (3) The new sub-node is 🔍 Daan Broede Freddy Offeng added before the Resources References selected sub-node.
- Alternatively, do the following:

! Note: The IMDI Editor makes use of different "Add" buttons for different purposes, and not all of them add new sub-nodes. This function is only available for those nodes that allow for the three options "Add …", "Edit …", and "Remove".

(c) Added sub-nodes can be removed again. Do one of the following:

In the "Browse" panel, click on the sub-node that you want to remove. It will be highlighted in blue color. Then click with the right-mouse button on the highlighted node. A pull-down menu will appear. Select "Remove" from the pulldown menu.

Alternatively, in the "Content" panel, click on the sub-node that you want to remove. Then click on the "Remove" button.

1.4 The "Repository" panel

The "Repository" panel allows you to work with recurring metadata information. Such information is entered once into the "Content" panel (see section 1.5), and is then stored in the "Repository" panel for future usage.

For example:



! Note: The repository is stored under the name **local.repository.xml** in the folder "user-directory \ IMDI-TOOLS \ SDRCache". The files that contain the actual metadata information are automatically assigned a name and are then stored in the same directory, e.g.:



The "Repository" panel displays a number of buttons and a pull-down menu (which is accessed by clicking on a node, first with the left mouse button to select it and then with the right mouse button to open the pull-down menu). The buttons and the pull-down menu are used for the following purposes:

- Storing metadata information in the repository (see section 1.4.1).
- Deleting metadata information from the repository (see section 1.4.2).
- Managing the structure of the repository (see section 1.4.3).
- Exporting nodes from the repository (see section 1.4.4).
- Importing nodes into the repository (see section 1.4.5).
- Updating the information in the repository (see section 1.4.6).
- Using metadata information from the repository (see section 1.4.7).

1.4.1 Storing metadata information in the repository.

To store metadata information in the repository, do one of the following:

• Drag and drop a node from the "Browse" panel to the appropriate node in the "Repository" panel. For example, to add the language "GOEMAI" to the repository, do the following:



• Alternatively, make use of the "Get Data" option in the "Repository" panel. For example, to add the actor "J" to the repository, do the following:



! Note: You can only add a sub-node from the "Browse" panel to an appropriate corresponding top node in the "Repository" panel, e.g., a language can only be added to a language-type node, and an actor can only be added to an actor-type node. If the two nodes (of the "Browse" and "Repository" panels) do not match, the program will automatically disable the "Drag and drop" and the "Get Data" functions.

1.4.2 Deleting metadata information from the repository.

To delete metadata information, do the following:

- 1. In the "Repository" panel, click on the node that you want to delete. The node will be highlighted in blue color.
- 2. Click with the right mouse button on the highlighted node. A pull-down menu appears.
- 3. In the pull-down menu, click on "Delete". After a warning, the highlighted node is deleted.

1.4.3 Managing the structure of the repository.

The following two management options are available:

• Add a new repository group. Do the following:



• Rename a repository group. Do the following:



1.4.4 Exporting nodes from the repository.

You can export a node from the repository. Do the following:

- 1. Click on the node that you want to export. It will be highlighted in blue color.
- 2. Make use of the "Export" options:
- (a) Either click on the "Export" button, e.g.:



Export Import Update

(b) Or right-click on the highlighted node, and then click on the "Export" item of the pull-down menu, e.g.:

The "Export Repository" dialog window appears.

3. Give the name and location of the file that should contain the exported node. Then click on "OK" (or press the key ENTER).



The file is saved in the specified folder. Furthermore, the exported repository is displayed as an additional node in the "Repository" panel, e.g.:



1.4.5 Importing nodes into the repository.

You can import a node into the repository. In this case, the IMDI Editor creates a copy of the original file and stores this copy in the folder "user-directory \setminus IMDI-TOOLS \setminus SDRCache".

! Note: If you have old templates that were created with an earlier version of the IMDI Editor (i.e., earlier than version 2.0), you need to import them into the "Repository" panel.

To import a node, do the following:

- 1. Make use of the "Import" options:
 - (a) Either click on the "Import" button, e.g.:



(b) Or right-click somewhere in the "Repository" panel, and then click on the "Import" item of the pull-down menu, e.g.:



The "Import Repository" dialog window appears.

2. Browse to the file that contains the repository, and click on "OK".

<u>گ</u>	Import Repos	itory	×
	Location:	VINNT/Persor	al/test/MyParticipants/repository.xml 🔄 Browse
	Enter the name and location of the repository.		OK Cancel

The file is displayed as an additional node in the "Repository" panel, e.g.:



1.4.6 Updating the information in the repository.

This option allows you to update an imported repository (i.e., the copy of the file, see section 1.4.5) after the original file has been modified.

Do the following:

- 1. Click on the imported repository. It will be highlighted in blue color.
- 2. Right-click on that repository. A pull-down menu appears.
- 3. Click on "Update". The information in the repository is updated.

1.4.7 Using metadata information from the repository.

To use metadata information from the repository, do one of the following:

• Drag and drop a sub-node from the "Repository" panel to the appropriate top node in the "Browse" panel. For example:



• Make use of the "Put Data" option in the "Repository" panel. For example, to insert information about access rights, do the following:



! Note: You can only insert information into the appropriate corresponding node of the "Browse" panel (and the corresponding screen of the "Content" panel), e.g., information about an actor can only be inserted in the "Actors" node of the "Browse" panel (and the screen Actors of the "Content" panel). If a non-matching node is active in the "Browse" panel, the program will automatically disable the "Drag and drop" and the "Put Data" functions.

! Note: You can add a group of nodes to the "Browse" panel, e.g., a group of actors. In this case, you have to "drag and drop" or "put" the higher node from the "Repository" panel into the "Browse" panel (e.g., the node "Actors").

! Note: You can overwrite an exiting node by dragging a node from the "Repository" panel onto a node of the "Browse" panel (e.g., by dragging actor X onto the node actor Y). In this case, the following warning will appear:



Click "Yes" if you want to replace the node, otherwise click "No".

1.5 The "Content" panel

The "Content" panel displays the screens (see section 1.5.1) and the schemata and fields (see section 1.5.2), which are used for entering metadata information. And it allows you to specify links to media, written resources, lexicon, info and metadata files (see section 1.5.3).

After you have entered metadata information, you can choose to view this information either in the IMDI Editor format (the default view) or as an HTML document. Click on the buttons at the top of the "Content" panel to switch between the two views.



1.5.1 Screens

The "Content" panel displays a number of screens. The following main screens are available:

IMDI Session Editor (see section 2) and IMDI Lexicon Editor (see section 3):

- Session general information about the session (see section 2.1);
- **Project** information about the project within which the session data was collected (see section 2.2);
- Content information about the content of the session (see section 2.3);
- Actors information about the actors participating in the session (see section 2.4);
- Resources information about written resource files, media files, and nondigital sources associated with the session (see sections 2.5), or about lexicon files (see section 3.1);
- **References** cross-references to any material that is relevant to the content of the session (see section 2.6).

IMDI Corpus Editor (see section 4):

• Corpus links to IMDI Session, IMDI Lexicon and IMDI Corpus files.

These main screens are accessed through clicking on the corresponding node in the "Browse" panel (see also section 1.3).



The IMDI Editor screens are structured in the following ways:

- All screens display schemata and fields into which the metadata information is entered (see section 1.5.2).
- Some screens contain sub-screens that are displayed like filing cards. These sub-screens give access to additional schemata and fields.



• Some screens have "Add ..." buttons (and corresponding "Remove" and "Edit ..." buttons) that allow you to enter multiple types of information of the same kind, e.g., one sub-screen added for each language spoken by an actor. These additional sub-screens are then displayed as separate sub-nodes in the "Browse" panel (see also section 1.3), e.g.:



There are two options for navigating through the "Content" panel:

- (1) You can use the mouse: click with the mouse into a field (to enter information), on a sub-screen header (to activate the corresponding sub-screen) or on a button (to execute the corresponding command).
- (2) Alternatively, you can use the following shortcut keys.
 - Press TAB to move to the next field or button.
 - Press SHIFT+TAB to move to the previous field or button.
 - When a button is highlighted, press SPACE to execute the corresponding command.
 - Press the left or right arrow key to move from sub-screen to sub-screen header.

1.5.2 Schemata and fields

Screens are made up of different units, so-called 'schemata'. Each schema contains a number of boxes into which the actual information is entered. These are called 'fields', e.g.:



Most of the fields are more or less standardized.⁴ The following symbols and options are available:

CV	'closed controlled vocabulary'	You can enter only one value, and this value must be selected from the pull-down menu.
<u>cv</u> *	'closed controlled vocabulary list'	You can enter more than one value (separated by commas), but all values must be selected from the pull-down menu.
(cv)	'open controlled vocabulary'	You can enter only one value. You can either select this value from the pull-down menu, or type in an alternative value.
(cv)*	'open controlled vocabulary list'	You can enter more than one value (separated by commas). You can either select these values from the pull-down menu, or type in alternative values.

In all four cases above, you can choose a value directly from the pull-down menu. Alternatively, you can start typing, in which case the pull-down menu will automatically open to display the available values.



'constrained format'

The value must be entered in a certain format (e.g., a date must be entered in the format **YYYY-MM-DD**). As soon as you start typing, the format is displayed in the field (highlighted in blue color). Please type over this format.

⁴ Please see the document "IMDI Metadata Elements for Session Descriptions" under <u>http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/</u> for updated lists of controlled vocabularies, their values and their definitions. For all fields, there are tooltips available. Point with the mouse to the label of the metadata category and leave it there for one second. The tool-tip appears, giving you information about this category, e.g.:



addition In these to standardized fields, the IMDI Editor allows for the possibility to enter projectspecific information. Such information is entered into a Keys schema (see "Appendix Recurring Schemata 1: (Keys)" on instructions of how to fill in a Keys schema), e.g.:



! Note: It is possible to use (project-specific) controlled vocabularies in a Keys schema, i.e., to have a Keys schema display a pull-down menu containing predefined values. See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Keys)" for details.

In addition to the standardized fields and the keyword fields, there are **Descriptions** schemata (see "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Descriptions)" on instructions of how to fill in a **Descriptions** schema). Such a schema contains a prose description that could serve as a reminder (to you or others) of the circumstances of data collection.

1.5.3 Links

In addition to the information that you enter directly into an IMDI file, you can create links to other files, i.e., to media files (see section 2.5.2), written resource files (see section 2.5.3), lexicon files (see section 3.1), info files (see "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Descriptions)") and other IMDI files (see section 4). Such links are specified in the IMDI file itself, and the corresponding files can then be accessed through the IMDI Browser, e.g.:



! Note for researchers working at the MPI for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen: Please specify only the name of such a file – do <u>not</u> make use of the "open folder" icon to the right of the Link field.

1.6 Changes to the user interface (version 2.0)

The following changes to the user interface of the IMDI Editor were implemented in version 2.0:

Version 2.0	Functionality	corresponding item in Version 1.5 (and earlier)
"Browse" panel	displays all currently open files displays the internal structure of an IMDI file	"Windows" menu item screen headers
"Repository" panel	stores recurring information	templates

2 The IMDI Session Editor

This part of the manual guides you through the metadata categories of the IMDI Session Editor, as defined in the IMDI 3.0 standard. Note that the IMDI Editor also allows you to create project-specific profiles, containing additional categories. However, these additional categories are entered into Keys schemata, and they do not form part of the IMDI 3.0 standard (see section 1.2.3.1 for details on profiles; and see "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Keys)" for details on Keys schemata). They are thus not discussed in this section.

The IMDI Session Editor creates IMDI Session files (*.imdi) that describe audio/video and written resources. Each file describes a single unit, termed 'session' or 'resource bundle'.⁵ This unit usually corresponds to a meaningful unit of analysis, e.g., to a piece of data having the same overall content, the same set of actors, and the same location and time (e.g., one elicitation session on topic X, or one folktale, or one 'matching game', or one conversation between several speakers).

Every session or resource bundle consists of one metadata file (i.e., an IMDI Session file) plus an unlimited number of other resources (i.e., media files, annotation or written resource files, and/or info files). The metadata file contains all the information that is entered into the metadata categories – categories that are displayed in the form of screens, schemata and fields in the "Content" panel of the IMDI Editor (see also section 1.5), e.g.:



⁵ Throughout the manual, these two terms are used interchangeably, with 'session' being the preferred term for audio/video resources, and 'resource bundle' for written resources.

The following sections illustrate the purpose of the various screens, schemata and fields. It is organized on a screen-by-screen basis, following the structure as it is displayed in the "Browse" panel:

- Session (see section 2.1);
- **Project** (see section 2.2);
- Content (see section 2.3);
- Actors (see section 2.4);
- **Resources** (see section 2.5);
- References (see section 2.6).

When entering information into the IMDI Editor, please keep the following points in mind:

- (1) What kind of information would you want to search for? Make sure that such information is entered into standardized fields or Key schemata.
- (2) All information entered on a screen is only relevant to that screen. This point is especially important for recurring schemata such as Descriptions, Keys, Language, or Access. These schemata occur on a number of different screens, and although they always look the same, they ask for different information information that is relevant to the corresponding main screen.
- (3) Remember to make use of the "Repository" panel to store recurring information (see section 1.4).

! Note for researchers working at the MPI for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen: The metadata information entered into the IMDI Editor is meant to be visible to the outside world via the Web. This only concerns the metadata information - **not** the audio, video and annotation files. But please be aware that other people will have access to your metadata files. Keep this in mind when you enter metadata information into the Editor, and make sure to exclude all sensitive information.

2.1 Session

This screen contains general information about the session or resource bundle. All the information that is entered into the **Session** screen will be displayed in the IMDI Browser in the following way (see the IMDI Browser manual for details):



2.1.1 Session

The name, title and recording date of the session. For example:

🖺 IMDI Metadata Editor				
<u>File View Options H</u> e	lp			
S 🗆 🛙 🕄				
Editor 💟 HTML 🖶	Links 🦛 🔿			
Session				
Session Name	TreesSM			
Session Session Name Session Title Recording Date	The uses of trees			
Recording Date	2001-06-25	-		

Session Name

A short name or abbreviation that uniquely identifies the session.

! Note for researchers working at the MPI for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen: This name should be the same as the name of the IMDI file (see section 1.2.1.11) and as the name of the corresponding annotation and media files (see section 2.5). Furthermore, the file name has to be Unix compatible: do not use file names longer than 14 characters, do not use non-letter or non-number characters (except for the underscore:), and do not use blank spaces.

Session Title

The complete title of the session. Usually, it is the spelled-out version of the abbreviated Session Name.

Recording Date

The date at which the session data was collected. The date has to be entered in the format **YYYY-MM-DD**. Once you start typing into this field, the IMDI Editor will automatically display the required format (highlighted in blue color). Type over it to enter the date.

2.1.2 Descriptions

A description of the circumstances under which the data was collected.

Whenever you access a session through the IMDI Browser, this description is the first piece of information that you will see. It should therefore contain all the information that is necessary to quickly remind you about this session. However, it should not contain an elaborate description of the content (reserve this information for the Content screen, see section 2.3.2). E.g.:

File View Options Help File View Options Help Set O S				
Session Se language in which the description is written, e.g., Description				
Session Se language in which the description is written, e.g., Description Description				
Session Se language in which the description is written, e.g., Description Description				
See language in which the description is written, e.g., English				
s language in which the description is written, e.g., English				
s the description is written, e.g., Description Description English				
Rec written, e.g., Descrip English				
Descrip English				
Desc.				
Currice Goemai				
Longuage English				
English				
Text Description of the uses of trees. We looked at trees in four different sites, all in the vicinity of Kwande (beyond				
the football field). The four media files correspond to				
these four sites. The recording took place in early evening. Because of the twilight, the video recordings				
are not too clear.				
description in English				
Add				

See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Descriptions)" for instructions on how to fill in a **Descriptions** schema. Remember: The field **Language** refers to the language in which the description is written – <u>not</u> to the language under investigation.

2.1.3 Location

The location at which the data was collected. For example:

Descriptions Location Keys Location Continent: Africa Country: Nigeria	continent and country where the data was collected	address where the data
Address:		was collected, e.g., at school XY
Qu'an Pan Local Government Area Kwande beyond the football field possib	ility to specify r regions	
Clear Session		

Continent

The continent where the data was collected. Choose the continent from the pull-down menu, or type it in. It is a "closed vocabulary", i.e., only values listed in the pull-down menu are accepted by the IMDI Editor.

Country

The country where the session data was collected. Choose the country from the pulldown menu, or type it in. It is a "closed vocabulary", i.e., only values listed in the pull-down menu are accepted by the IMDI Editor.

Address

The address where the session data was collected (e.g., at school XY).

Region

The region (province, town, suburb, etc.) where the session data was collected. To add a region, click on the "Add" button; to remove a region, click on it to highlight it and then click on the "Remove" button.

2.1.4 Keys

Keywords that are relevant to (a) the collection of the data and (b) the creation of the IMDI file. For example:



See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Keys)" for instructions on how to fill in a Keys schema.

2.2 Project

This screen contains information about the project within which the session data was collected. All the information that is entered into the **Project** screen will be displayed in the IMDI Browser in the following way (see the IMDI Browser manual for details):

B IMDI-BCBrowser for MPI on M03402985	
<u>File Options Search H</u> elp	
Bookmarks	Description
Worldmap (HTTP) global Worldmap global IMDI corpora global IMDI corpora (HTTP) global MPI corpora (HTTP) global MPI corpora (HTTP) global	http The Goernai project is part of a PhD project file file http to this project (1) To livestigate the semantics and pragmatics of locative verbs and derived elements. Most of the collected
P Language & Cognition P africa P Goemai P Hellwig I Project.pdf	Info/Content Project information: Name: Goemai Title: Documentation of Goemai Title: Documentation of Goemai Title: Documentation of Goemai
I language.pdf Publications.pdf Publications.pdf Statural Oconversation © © descriptive © © descriptive © © TeresM VeresM Ocation Ocotion Ocotion	File View Options Help S C 0 Project Name Goemai Title Documentation of Goemai
Content C→ Participants C→ Participants Root URL http://www.mpi.n//world/corpora/IMD//metadar Basket functions	information under Project is displayed under the node "Project" regen, The Netherlands
List Save Add Remove	Clear Organisation Max-Planck-Institut für Psycholinguistik
	Descriptions Language English Text The Ocemal project is part of a PhD project (begun in August 1998). There are two aims to this project (1) To Imrestigate the semantics and progmatics of locative verifs and derived elements. Most of the collected experimental data is concerned with this topic. (2) To document the Ocemal language in form of a reference grammar, a dictionary and an annotated Link C

Enter the information into the IMDI Editor as follows:

🖺 IMDI Metadata Editor
File View Options Help
Sector The project full title of the project
project identifier (if any)
Contact Information
Name Birgit Hellwig Address Postbus 310, 6500 AH Nijmegen, The N E-mail Birgit.Hellwig@mpi.nl Organisation Max-Planck-Institut für Psycholinguistik
Descriptions Language English
description of the project The Goemai project is part of a PhD project (begun in August 1998). There are two aims to this project (1) To investigate the semantics and pragmatics of locative verbs and derived elements. Most of the sollected experimental data is concerned with this project (2) To document the Goemai language in form
Link Remove

Name

A short name or abbreviation that uniquely identifies the project.

Title

The full title of the project.

ID

A unique identifier for the project (if any), e.g. "IST-1999-10651".

Contact Information

Contact information about the person or institution responsible for the project (the Name, the Address, the E-mail address and the Organisation he/she belongs to).

Descriptions

A description of the scope and goals of the project. See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Descriptions)" for instructions on how to fill in a **Descriptions** schema. Remember: The field **Language** refers to the language in which the description is written - <u>not</u> to the language under investigation.

2.3 Content

This screen contains information about the content of the session. All the information that is entered into the **Content** screen will be displayed in the IMDI Browser in the following way (see the IMDI Browser manual for details):



2.3.1 Content Type

Information about the genre, the task, the modalities, the subject, and the communication context. For example:

I	MDI Mel	adata Edit	itor	_
e	⊻iew	Options	Help	
ł	6	8 0	3	
		-		_
	<u>]</u> Editor	🔮 HTML	. 🔂 Links 🤟 🖂	
	Conte			
	Summ	-	ent Information	
			reDiscourse SubgenreDescription Task esspeech, pointin Social Contextprivate Event Structuremonologue	
			esspeech, pointin Social Contextprivate Event Structuremonologue elface to face Subjectplants	
	Conte	nt Tyme D	Descriptions Languages Keys	
	Conter	K TYPE D		
		Ge	Genre Discourse 🗸 🗸	cv)
		Subge	jenre Description	cv)
		Sunde		,
		т	Task 🖉 🗸	cv)
		Modali	lities speech, pointing-gestures	cv)
		Sub	bject plants	
	Com	municat	ation Context	
		Interac	ctivity non-interactive	N)
		Planning	j Type semi-spontaneous 🗸 🖸	V)
		Involver	ement non-elicited	
		monver		<u></u>)
		Social Cor	ontext private	
	E	vent Struc	icture monologue	
		Cha	annel face to face	

Many of the fields under **Content Type** offer predefined values that are displayed in the form of pull-down menus:⁶ some of them only accept values from the pull-down menu, while others allow you to enter alternative values (see below). Furthermore, it is sometimes possible to enter more than one value – in this case, please separate the values with a comma. See section 1.5.2 for the different options and how they are symbolized in the IMDI Editor.

Genre and Subgenre

Information about the genre and the subgenre, whereby Subgenre is dependent on Genre. I.e., the value that you enter under Genre will determine the values that are available under Subgenre. Both Genre and Subgenre are "open vocabularies", i.e.,

⁶ Please see the document "IMDI Metadata Elements for Session Descriptions" under <u>http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/</u> for updated lists of values and their definitions.

Genre	Examples
Subgenre	
"Discourse"	
"Narrative"	a folktale, a historical narrative, a personal experience narrative
"Oratory"	a summing-up speech by a legal counsel, a political speech, a church sermon
"Procedural"	a recipe, an instruction on how to build a house
"Formulaic"	proverbs, greetings/leavetakings
"Language Play"	riddles, humor
"Interview"	
"Conversation"	
"Description"	a description of the layout of a compound
"Unintelligible speech"	
"Ritual/religious texts"	a prayer, a healing ritual, a catechism
"Fiction"	a detective novel, a science fiction story
"Newspaper article"	a political essay, a scientific report
"Radio/TV feature"	a political discussion on the radio, a documentary on animal life on the TV
"Drama"	
"Film"	
"Play"	
"Opera"	
"Musical"	
"Singing"	
"Individual Song"	
"Chant"	a psalm, a slogan during a demonstration
"Chorus"	
"Instrumental music"	
"Poetry"	a ballad, an oral epic
"Literature"	a short novel, a tragedy
"Secondary document"	
"Personal notes"	
"Stimuli"	a picture book elicitation, a story retelling, a matching game

you do not have to select a value from the pull-down menu, but can enter an alternative value instead. The following values have been suggested:

! Note: If there are several Subgenres, you can enter all of them into the Subgenre field. Separate them with a comma.

Task

The name of the experimental or stimuli-based task that was carried out (if any). Choose a value from the pull-down menu (e.g., "info-kiosk", "wizard-of-oz", "travel-planning", "room reservation", or "frog story"), or type in an alternative value.

Modalities

The modalities under investigation. Choose a value from the pull-down menu (e.g., "speech", "writing", "gestures", "pointing-gestures", "signs", "eye-gaze", "facial-expressions", "emotional-state", "haptic"), or type in an alternative value.

Subject

The subject(s) or topic(s) of the session. There are no constraints on this field.

Communication Context

Information about the communication context, i.e., levels of participant interaction, the degree of planning through the speaker(s), the involvement of the researcher(s), the social context, the event structure, and the channel. All six are "closed vocabularies", i.e., a value from the pull-down menu must be chosen – other values will not be accepted. Enter the following information:

• Interactivity

The level of participant interaction, i.e.:

value	comments
"interactive"	an interaction between at least two participants. It
	may or may not include an investigator, e.g.:
	• conversation
	many narratives
	matching game
"non-interactive"	a monologue, produced without expecting extended verbal responses from the hearer(s), e.g.:
	 many oratory texts and songs
	• some narratives
"semi-interactive"	primarily a monologue, but punctuated by repeated
	interjections from the hearer(s), e.g.:
	• a child interrupting a narrative
	• hearer(s) repeatedly prompting a narrator

• Planning Type

The degree of planning through the consultant, i.e.:

value	comments
"spontaneous"	 an unprompted speech whose topic is not determined by the investigator or an observer, e.g.: conversation chatting joke-telling singing while harvesting
"semi-spontaneous"	 a prompted speech whose topic is determined in some way by an investigator or a community member, but whose participants speak freely within this context, e.g.: interview
"planned"	 queries (e.g., 'Tell me about the history of your village.' 'Show me how to make tortillas.') retellings (e.g., the speaker is asked to re-tell a story from a picture book, or to describe a task in his/her own words) promptings (e.g., children answering a teacher's questions) the structure and content of the speech is planned in advance by the consultant/performer, e.g.: political or ritual speech poem recitation Note: This entry does not (necessarily) refer to an elicitation session, where a consultant is given a framework but does not plan his/her answer.

• Involvement

The involvement of the researcher, i.e.:

value	comments
"elicited"	the investigator asks the speaker(s) to produce isolated phonemes, words, utterances or grammatical structures, e.g.:
	• production of sounds in different phonological environments
	 responses to (morphological, lexical, etc.) questionnaires
"non-elicited"	the investigator does not interfere verbally with the speech event (other than with his presence)
"no-observer"	no outside observer is present (only a tape recorder)

Social Context

The social context of the event, i.e.:

value	comments
"family"	
"private"	
"public"	
"controlled environment"	

Event Structure

The event structure, i.e.:

value comments "monologue" "dialogue" "conversation" "not natural format"

Channel

The channel of communication, i.e.:

value comments "face to face" "experimental setting" "broadcasting" "telephone" "human-machine dialogue"

2.3.2 Descriptions

A description of the content of the session. For example:



See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Descriptions)" for instructions on how to fill in a **Descriptions** schema. Remember: The field **Language** refers to the language in which the description is written - **not** to the language under investigation.
2.3.3 Languages

Information about the language(s) **used** in the session, e.g.:



2.3.3.1 Language

Each language that is used in the session has to be listed on the Language screen. To add a language (see also section 1.3), do the following:



The "Add" and "Edit" buttons give you access to the Language screen that contains the following kind of information:

1) IMDI Metadata Editor	_ 🗆 🗙
	Eile View Options Help	
	5 - 2 0	
(Language	
	Name GOEMAI	▼ (v)
	ID RFC1766:x-sil-ANK	
	Mother Tongue	
	Primary Language	
	Dominant Langua True	
	Source Language	
	Target Language	
Resource References Descriptions	Resource References Descriptions	
N10155 (Media File)	Descriptions	
N10198 (Media File) ✓ N101DD (Written Resource)	Language English 🔍	English
	Text Goernai is a Chadic language (West Chadic A, Angas-Goernai, Southern Branch) that is spoken by 1 50.000 to 200.000 speakers in Plateau State, Central Nigeria.	
	Link 3	Add Remove

Name

The name of the language. This name is standardized. Choose it from the pulldown menu, or type it in. (Please use capital letters.)

• ID

The identifier of the language (based on the Ethnologue identifiers, see <u>http://www.ethnologue.com/web.asp</u>

). The IMDI Editor automatically enters the correct identifier once you have filled in the Name field above.

• Mother Tongue

Please ignore this field. It has been disabled for Content . Language, and is only available for Actor . Language (see section 2.4.1.5).

• Primary Language

Please ignore this field. It has been disabled for Content . Language, and is only available for Actor . Language (see section 2.4.1.5).

• Dominant Language

Specifies whether or not this language is the language that is used most frequently in the session. From the pull-down menu, select either "true" (if it is the dominant language) or "false" (if it is not).

• Source Language

In a second language acquisition context, this field specifies whether or not this language is the source language. From the pull-down menu, select either "true" (if it is the source language) or "false" (if it is not).

• Target Language

In a second language acquisition context, this field specifies whether or not this language is the target language. From the pull-down menu, select either "true" (if it is the target language) or "false" (if it is not).

• Descriptions

A description that gives background information about the language in general. Note that the description is <u>not</u> about the role of the language in that particular session (reserve this information for the Languages Descriptions sub-screen, see section 2.3.3.2). See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Descriptions)" for instructions on how to fill in a Descriptions schema. Remember: The field Language refers to the language in which the description is written - <u>not</u> to the language under investigation.

Resource References

The IMDI Editor automatically assigns a unique resource identifier to each media file and written resource (see section 2.5). The sub-screen **Resource References** lists all available resource identifiers: it displays the identifier together with the type of resource (e.g., "N10155 (Media File)" in the screenshot above), and it displays an empty box to the left.

This sub-screen allows now you to link the language to a specific resource. E.g., a language may only be used in resource "N10155 (Media File)", but not in resource "N10198 (Media File)". In this case, the language should only be linked to "N10155 (Media File)". To link a resource, click into the empty box to its left. A checkmark will appear there.

2.3.3.2 Languages Descriptions

Enter a description of the role of each language as it is used in the session (e.g., language of elicitation, main language, code-switching, etc.). Note that the description should <u>not</u> contain background information about the language in general (reserve this for the Language sub-screen, see section 2.3.3.1). See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Descriptions)" for instructions on how to fill in a Descriptions schema. Remember: The field Language refers to the language in which the description is written - <u>not</u> to the language under investigation.

2.3.4 Keys

This sub-screen contains keywords that are relevant to the content of the session. For example:



See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Keys)" for instructions on how to fill in a Keys schema.

2.4 Actors

This screen contains information about the actors involved in the session. All the information that is entered into the Actors screen will be displayed in the IMDI Browser in the following way (see the IMDI Browser manual for details):



2.4.1 Actor

Each actor involved in the session has to be listed on the Actors screen. If an actor occurs in two different Roles (e.g., once as "collector" and once as "annotator") (s)he has to be listed twice. To add an actor (see also section 1.3), do the following:



The "Add" and "Edit" buttons give you access to the Actor screen that contains the following kind of information:

i∯ IMDI Metadata Editor File View Options Help	
Editor The HTM Section 2.4.1.4	section 2.4.1.6
Actor Information Contact Information Resource References Descriptions Languages Keep Role Consultant Name Jan Section 2.4.1.1 II Name Jan Smit 2.4.1.3 Social Family Role Ethnic Group Goemal Age 24 Sex Male Education secondary school Anonymized false	

2.4.1.1 Actor Information

Information about the individual actor. For example:

	IMDI Me	tadata Edit	or	_ 🗆 🗙
Eil	e ⊻iew	Options	Help	
6	1 -	8 0		
		•		
▼	🛅 Editor	🕑 HTML	🛃 Links 🗧 🖚	
1000	Actor			_
and the			Information	
1000	- Countin		Consultant Name Jan Full Name Jan Smit	
decore.		Code	J Social Family Role Ethnic Group Goernal	
1000		Age		schooi
1000		Anonymized		
1000	Actor	Informatio	n Contact Information Resource References Descriptions Languages Key	s
1000		R	ole Consultant 💌	(cv)
0.000			1	
10000		Nar	ne Jan	
0.000		Full Nar	ne Jan Smit	
1000				
0.000		Co	de J	
1000	Socia	al Family Re		
1000	0000	arr arriny ra		
1000		Ethnic Gro	up Goemai	
No.				
1000		А	ge 24	
10000		s	ex Male	
1000				
1000		Educati	on secondary school	
1000		Anonymiz	ed false	
00000		MITOTIVITIE		
1000				
10000				-

Role

The function of the participant in the session. Choose a value from the pull-down menu, or type in an alternative value. For example:

value	comments
"Annotator"	
"Author"	
"Collector"	
"Consultant"	
"Computer"	
"Depositor"	
"Editor"	
"Filmer"	
"Illustrator"	
"Interviewer"	
"Photographer"	
"Publisher"	
"Recorder"	
"Referent"	
"Researcher"	
"Speaker/Signer"	
"Translator"	

Name

The name of the actor, i.e., the name that other actors in the session use to identify him/her. It is usually not the same as his/her full name. (See also the field Anonymized below.)

Full Name

The full name of the actor. (See also the field Anonymized below.)

Code

Short unique code to identify the actor. It usually corresponds to the code that is used in transcriptions and annotations to identify parts that were uttered by him/her. (See also the field Anonymized below.)

Social Family Role

The social or family role of the actor, i.e., his/her relationship to other actors participating in the session. Choose a value from the pull-down menu, or type in an alternative value. For example:

value	comments
"Father"	
"Mother"	
"Sibling"	
"Boss"	
"Partner"	
"Student"	
"Teacher"	
"Shaman/Priest"	
"Mayor"	
"Doctor"	

Ethnic Group

The ethnic group of the actor.

Age

The age of the actor. Please enter the age in the following format: **YY** or **YY;MM** or **YY;MM.DD**.

! Note: If the exact age is not known, it is nevertheless useful to enter an approximate age. This will allow you later to conduct searches on all actors who are in the age range between, e.g., 20 and 30 years of age.

Sex

The sex of the actor. It has to be chosen from the pull-down menu.

Education

Type in the education or literacy level of the actor. For example: "primary school", "secondary school", "literate", "illiterate", etc. There are no constraints on this field

Anonymized

Specifies whether or not the actor's name was made anonymous.

Choose "true" if you have entered a code in the field Full Name.

Choose "false" if you have entered the full name in the field Full name.

! Note: If you have chosen the option "true", you can create a conversion file that maps the code onto the full name. Make use of the menu item "Options / Anonyms …" (see section 1.2.3.2). If you have created such a file, the actor information is entered, saved and displayed as follows:

1. Enter the chosen code into the field Full Name (instead of the full name).

> ! Note: The code entered into the field Full Name should <u>not</u> be the same as the code entered into the field Code.

2. The code that you have entered into the field Full Name is saved in the IMDI file as follows:

> @Institute: Project: User: Code@

Participant		
Summary Participant Informa		
Type:	Name:Simon	Full Name:Code_J
Code:J	Role:	Ethnic Group:
Age:Unknown Anonymous:true	SecUnknown	Education:
Participant Information Des	criptions Languages K	eys
Type:		
13100	ente	er the
Name: Simon		
	cod	P
Full Name: Code_J	, cou	C
Code: J		
-		
🖉 Clear Participant	🚭 Open Participant	💾 Save Participant
	J.	
		OK Car
		OK Car
		OK Car
titled - Notepad		OK Car
titled - Notepad Edit Search Help	_	
<u>E</u> dit <u>S</u> earch <u>H</u> elp		
Edit <u>S</u> earch <u>H</u> elp ne>Simon		
Edit Search Help ne>SimonE llName>@MPI:Goemai	:birghe:Code_、	
Edit Search Help ne>SimonE L1Name>@MPI:Goemai de>JE		
Edit Search Help ne>SimonE llName>@MPI:Goemai		J@
Edit Search Help ne>SimonE L1Name>@MPI:Goemai de>JE		

3. The IMDI Editor accesses the mappings that you have defined in the "Anonyms overview" dialog window (see section 1.2.3.2), and displays the full name.



All people who have access to the file that specifies these mappings will be able to see the full name, all others will see the code.

! Note: Previous versions of the IMDI Editor supported a different method for rendering full names anonymous. If you have old IMDI files and if you have

doubts about how the full names are displayed, please contact your corpus manager.

2.4.1.2 Contact Information

Contact information about the actor (the Name, the Address, the E-mail address and the Organisation he/she belongs to).

2.4.1.3 Resource References

The IMDI Editor automatically assigns a unique resource identifier to each media file and written resource (see section 2.5). The sub-screen **Resource References** lists all available resource identifiers: it displays the identifier together with the type of resource (e.g., "N10155 (Media File)" in the screenshot below), and it displays an empty box to the left.



The sub-screen **Resource References** now allows you to link the actor to a specific resource. E.g., an actor may only appear in the specified **Role** in resource "N10155 (Media File)", but not in resource "N10198 (Media File)". In this case, the actor should only be linked to "N10155 (Media File)". To link a resource, click into the empty box to its left. A checkmark will appear there.

2.4.1.4 Descriptions

A general description of the individual actor (independent of his/her Role in the session). For example:



See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Descriptions)" for instructions on how to fill in a **Descriptions** schema. Remember: The field **Language** refers to the language in which the description is written - **not** to the language under investigation.

2.4.1.5 Languages

Information about all the languages that <u>the actor is familiar with</u> (independent of whether or not the actor uses them in the session).



Languages

Each language that is spoken by the actor has to be listed on the Language screen. To add a language (see also section 1.3), do the following:



The "Add" and "Edit" buttons give you access to the Language screen that contains the following kind of information:

📓 IMDI Metadata Editor		_0>
<u>File View Options Help</u>		
5 - 1 0		
Editor CHTML H	nks \leftarrow \rightarrow	
Language		
Hame G	OEMAI	CV .
ID R	RC1766x-sil-ANK	
Mother Tongue tr	ue	
Primary Language tr	ue	
Dominant Langua		
Source Language		
Target Language		
Resource References	Descriptions	
Descriptions		
Language	English CV English	
Text	Goemai is a Chadic language (West Chadic A,	
	Angas-Goemai, Southern Branch) that is spoken by 150.000 to 200.000 speakers in Plateau State, Central	88888
	Nigeria.	
second		
	Add	
Link	Remove	1

Name

The name of the language. This name is standardized. Choose it from the pulldown menu, or type it in. (Please use capital letters.)

• ID

The identifier of the language (based on the Ethnologue identifiers, see <u>http://www.ethnologue.com/web.asp</u>

). The IMDI Editor automatically enters the correct identifier once you have filled in the Name field above.

• Mother Tongue

Specifies whether or not this language is the mother tongue of the actor. From the pull-down menu, select either "true" (if it is the mother tongue) or "false" (if it is not).

• Primary Language

Specifies whether or not this language is the language that the speaker is most fluent in. From the pull-down menu, select either "true" (if it is the most fluent language) or "false" (if it is not).

• Dominant Language

Please ignore this field. It has been disabled for Actor . Language, and is only available for Content . Language (see section 2.3.3.1).

• Source Language

Please ignore this field. It has been disabled for Actor . Language, and is only available for Content . Language (see section 2.3.3.1).

• Target Language

Please ignore this field. It has been disabled for Actor . Language, and is only available for Content . Language (see section 2.3.3.1).

• Descriptions

A description that gives background information about the language in general. Note that the description is independent of the actor's familiarity with it (reserve such information for the Languages Descriptions sub-screen below). See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Descriptions)" for instructions on how to fill in a Descriptions schema. Remember: The field Language refers to the language in which the description is written - <u>not</u> to the language under investigation.

• Resource References

Please ignore this sub-screen. It has been disabled for Actor . Language, and is only available for Content . Language (see section 2.3.3.1).

Languages Descriptions

A description of the set of languages that the participant is familiar with. Note that the description does <u>not</u> contain background information about the language in general (reserve this for the Language . Descriptions schema above). See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Descriptions)" for instructions on how to fill in a Descriptions schema. Remember: The field Language refers to the language in which the description is written - <u>not</u> to the language under investigation.

2.4.1.6 Keys

This sub-screen contains keywords that are relevant to the individual actor (independent of his/her Role in the session).



See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Keys)" for instructions on how to fill in a Keys schema.

2.4.2 Actors Descriptions

A description of the interactions and interrelations among different actors of the session. Note that this description concerns the set of actors as a whole – information about specific actors should be described by means of Actor . Descriptions (see section 2.4.1.4).



See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Descriptions)" for instructions on how to fill in a **Descriptions** schema. Remember: The field **Language** refers to the language in which the description is written - **not** to the language under investigation.

2.5 Resources

This screen contains information about the resources belonging to the session. All the information that is entered into the **Resources** screen will be displayed in the IMDI Browser in the following way (see the IMDI Browser manual for details):



The IMDI Editor automatically assigns a unique resource identifier to each media file and written resource. The resource identifiers are then used on the sub-screen **Resource References** to link a source (see section 2.5.4.3), an actor (see section 2.4.1.3) or a language (see section 2.3.3.1) to a specific resource. E.g., it may be the case that an actor only plays a role in one of the resources, but not in the others – in this case, you can use the resource identifiers to link the actor to this one resource, but not to the others.

Click on the button "Links" at the top of the "Content" panel to view all links, e.g.:

MDI Metadata Editor File View Options Help	click here t all links	to view		<u>_</u> _×
	Jun01-2		av (N10198) 00:00:00:0 pg (N1015 00:00:00:0	00:00:43
 Actor Birgit HeII Actor Jan Smits 	sources, actors and languages,			00:00:43
→ Language Goe 1	and the resources they are linked to	 reesSM_1.wa reesSM_1.m	pg (N1015 00:00:00:0 	00:00:43:0 00:00:43 00:00:43 00:00:43:0
resources: file name, resource identifier and time position (if applicable)				

Within this "Link" window, you can click on any source, actor, language or resource to jump to the corresponding screen.

! Note: If you remove a resource, the specified links are automatically removed as well.

2.5.1 Anonymous

If you have made the names of actors anonymous (on the screen Actors, see section 2.4.1.1) and if you have created a file that maps these codes onto full names (by using the menu item "Options / Anonyms ...", see section 1.2.3.2), you can use the screen Anonymous to specify access rights to this mapping file. As illustrated in section 1.2.3.2, the mapping file is stored under the name **user-name.ano** in the folder "user-directory \setminus IMDI-TOOLS \setminus Anonyms" on your desktop computer – i.e., it is only available to you. However, you might want to store a copy of it in the corpus itself (e.g., to protect it against data loss, in case of a system error). In this case, store the file in your corpus (or ask your corpus manager to do it for you), specify the name and directory of the file, and the access rights to it. See "Appendix 1: Recurring schemata (Access)" for instructions on how to fill in an Access schema.

2.5.2 Media Files

Each digitized media file (e.g. audio, video or image file) associated with the session has to be listed on the **Media Files** screen. To add a media file (see also section 1.3), do the following:



The "Add" and "Edit" buttons give you access to the Media File screen that contains the following kind of information:

IMDI Metadata Editor File View Options He	n in the second s
	section
Editor C HTML	2.5.2.1
Media File Resource ID	N10198
Resource Link	TreesSM_1.wav
Size	7,000 KB
Type	audio section
section 2.5.2.2 Quality	3 2.5.2.4
rding Condit	steps
Time Position According	see Keys (Pescriptions) section
section	t 00.00:00:0 2.5.2.5 End 00:00:43
2.5.2.3	

2.5.2.1 Media File

This screen contains general information about the media file, i.e.:

Resource ID

The IMDI Editor automatically assigns a unique resource identifier to each media file. This assignment is automatic, and cannot be influenced by the user (see section 2.5).

Resource Link

The link to the corresponding media file, i.e., its name and location.

! Note for researchers working at the MPI for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen: Please specify only the name of the file – do <u>not</u> make use of the "open folder" icon to the right of the Link field. The name of the media file should be the same as the name of the IMDI file (see section 1.2.1.11), and as the name entered in the field Session Name (see section 2.1.1). Furthermore, the file name has to be Unix compatible: do not use file names longer than 14 characters, do not use non-letter or non-number characters (except for the underscore: _), and do not use blank spaces.

Size

The (approximate) size of the media file in bytes. Note that this field is not standardized: it is meant to be read by humans (to give them an indication of the size before they, e.g., download it), not to be processed through the computer.

• Type

The type of the media file. Choose a value from the pull-down menu, or type in an alternative value.

value comments "audio" "video" "image" "document" "drawing" "text"

Format

The format of the media file. Choose a value from the pull-down menu, or type in an alternative value.

value comments "video/mpeg1" "video/mpeg2" "video/mpeg4" "video/quicktime" "audio/wav" "audio/aiff" "image/jpeg" "text/pdf" "text/html" Quality

The quality of the recording. Choose an option from the pull-down menu (1 stands for low and 5 for high quality).

• Recording Conditions

The technical conditions under which the media file was recorded, e.g., the equipment used in the recording (e.g., microphone type, amplifier type, mono/stereo recording, etc.). There are no constraints on this field.

2.5.2.2 Time Position

The start/end position of the session on the media file. Please enter the start/end position in the following format: **hh:mm:ss:f** (i.e., hours:minutes:seconds:frames).

2.5.2.3 Access

Information about the access rights to the <u>media file</u>. See "Appendix 1: Recurring schemata (Access)" for instructions on how to fill in an Access schema.

2.5.2.4 Keys

Keywords that are relevant to the media file. See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Keys)" for instructions on how to fill in a **Keys** schema.

2.5.2.5 Descriptions

A description of the media file. See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Descriptions)" for instructions on how to fill in a **Descriptions** schema. Remember: The field Language refers to the language in which the description is written - <u>not</u> to the language under investigation.

2.5.3 Written Resources

Each written resource associated with the session has to be listed on the Written Resources screen. To add a written resource (see also section 1.3), do the following:



The "Add" and "Edit" buttons give you access to the Written Resource screen that contains the following kind of information:



2.5.3.1 Written Resource

This screen contains general information about the written resource, i.e.:

Resource ID

The IMDI Editor automatically assigns a unique resource identifier to each written resource. This assignment is automatic, and cannot be influenced by the user (see section 2.5).

• Date

The date when the written resource was created. Please enter the date in the following format: **YYYY-MM-DD**, e.g. 2000-12-30.

Resource Link

The link to the file containing the written resource, i.e., its name and location.

! Note for researchers working at the MPI for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen: Please specify only the name of the file – do <u>not</u> make use of the "open folder" icon to the right of the Link field. The name of the written resource should be the same as the name of the IMDI file (see section 1.2.1.11), and as the name entered in the field **Session Name** (see section 2.1.1). Furthermore, the file name has to be Unix compatible: do not use file names longer than 14 characters, do not use non-letter or non-number characters (except for the underscore: _), and do not use blank spaces.

• Media Resource

The link to the media file from which the written resource originated (if applicable).

• Anonymous

Specify whether or not you have made actors' names anonymous in the written resource.

Choose "true" if you have used a code.

Choose "false" if you have used the real name.

2.5.3.2 Information

• Type and Subtype

The type and subtype of the written resource, whereby Subtype is dependent on Type. I.e., the value that you enter under Type will determine the values that are available under Subtype. Both Type and Subtype are "open vocabularies", i.e., you do not have to select a value from the pull-down menu, but can enter an alternative value instead. The following values have been suggested:⁷

Туре	Examples
Subtype	
"Primary Text"	any material that is the object of study
"Documentary"	
"Fiction"	
"Annotation"	an annotation (e.g., transcription or grammatical analysis) of the material under study
"gesture"	
"orthography"	
"phonetic"	
"phonology"	
"morphology"	
"morphosyntax"	
"syntax"	
"semantics"	
"pragmatics"	
"typology"	
"Lexical analysis"	a lexical analysis of the material under study
"dictionary"	
"terminology"	
"wordlist"	
"lexicon"	
"Ethnography"	an ethnographic analysis of the material under study
"Study"	the written resource is used for a specific subfield of linguistic science

⁷ Please see the document "IMDI Metadata Elements for Session Descriptions" under <u>http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/</u> for updated lists of values and their definitions.

! Note: If there are several Subtypes, you can enter all of them into the Subtype field. Separate them with a comma (e.g., "orthography, morphology").

• Format

The file format of the file that contains the written resource. Choose a value from the pull-down menu, or type in an alternative value.

value comments "CHAT" "Shoebox" "RDBMS" "TRS" "EAF" "AIF" "BAS" "text/plain" "text/pdf" "text/html"

Size

The (approximate) size of the written resource in words.

• Derivation

The relation of the written resource to other documents. It is a "closed vocabulary", i.e., the value has to be chosen from the pull-down menu, i.e.:

value comments "Analysis" "Translation" "Commentary" "Criticism" "Annotation"

Content Encoding

The name of the encoding scheme used for creating the written resource (if applicable). For example:

Eurotype (i.e., following the Eurotype guidelines)

Character Encoding

The name of the character encoding used for creating the written resource, e.g., UTF-8.

• Language ID

The identifier of the language that is used in the written resource, e.g. 'English' for an English translation. It has to be entered in a standard format. Please enter either the ISO identifier (i.e., enter "ISO639:eng" for English), or the Ethnologue identifier (i.e., enter "RFC1766:x-sil-eng" for English) – please look up the ISO identifiers under

http://lcweb.loc.gov/standards/iso63

<u>9-2/langhome.html</u>, and the Ethnologue identifiers under <u>http://www.ethnologue.com/web.asp</u>

2.5.3.3 Validation

Gives information about the validation state of the written resource.

• Type

The type of validation. It is a "closed vocabulary", i.e., you have to choose a value from the pull-down menu, i.e.:

value comments "formal" "content"

• Methodology

The methodology of validation. It is a "closed vocabulary", i.e., you have to choose a value from the pull-down menu, i.e.:

value	comments
"hand"	
"automatic"	
"semi-automatic"	

Level

Gives an estimation of how much of the resource was validated (enter a value between 0 and 100%).

Description

A description of the validation. See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Descriptions)" for instructions on how to fill in a **Descriptions** schema. Remember: The field Language refers to the language in which the description is written - **not** to the language under investigation.

2.5.3.4 Access

Information about the access rights to the <u>file containing the written resource</u>. See "Appendix 1: Recurring schemata (Access)" for instructions on how to fill in an Access schema.

2.5.3.5 Keys

Keywords that are relevant to the written resource. See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Keys)" for instructions on how to fill in a Keys schema.

2.5.3.6 Descriptions

A description of the written resource. See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Descriptions)" for instructions on how to fill in a **Descriptions** schema. Remember: The field Language refers to the language in which the description is written - <u>not</u> to the language under investigation.

2.5.4 Sources

Each source (e.g., video or audio tapes, or books) associated with the session has to be listed on the **Sources** screen. To add a source (see also section 1.3), do the following:

🛐 IMDI Metadata Editor	
File View Options Help	
🕈 🖻 Editor 💟 HTML 🗃 Links 🦟 🖃	
Resources	
Anonymous Media Files Written Resources Sources Source ID Format Start	End
LBHGVD15Jun01-2 DV unknown	unknown
	Edit
the list of sources	Remove
	click on "Add" to add another
	source
	to edit or remove a source, click
	on the source to highlight it, then
	click on "Edit" or "Remove"
	-

The "Add" and "Edit" buttons give you access to the **Source** screen that contains the following kind of information:



2.5.4.1 Source

This screen contains general information about the source, i.e.:

Source ID

A short code to identify the source.

! Note for researchers working at the MPI for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen: Please consult the tape labeling conventions.

• Format

The physical storage format of the source. Choose a value from the pull-down menu, or type in an alternative value.

value	comments
"CC"	Compact Cassette (i.e., normal audio cassette)
"CD"	Compact Disc
"CDROM"	Compact Disc - Read-Only Memory
"DAT"	Digital Audio Tape
"MD"	Mini Disc
"Reel"	Reel-to-reel tape
"DVD"	Digital Video Disc
"DVDROM"	Digital Video Disc - Read-Only Memory
"Hi8"	Hi8 Video Tape
"VHS"	VHS Video Tape
"DV"	Digital Video
"U-matic"	U-matic Tape
"Book"	A publication on paper
"Microfiche"	A film card

• Quality

The quality of the tape. Choose an option from the pull-down menu (1 stands for low and 5 for high quality).

2.5.4.2 Position

The start/end position of the session in the corresponding source. Please enter this position in the following formats:

- In the case of digital audio tapes use the field Time Position: enter **hh:mm:ss** (i.e., hours:minutes:seconds).
- In the case of digital video tapes use the field Time Position: enter **hh:mm:ss:f** (i.e., hours:minutes:seconds:frames).
- In the case of non-digital tapes and books, use the field Counter Position: enter a sequence of digits to represent the counter position (of a tape) or the page numbers (of a book).

! Note for researchers working at the MPI for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen: If you have asked the digitization team to digitize your tape, the team will create a digital master file (DMF) from it. You then need to go through this DMF (using either Windows Media Player or ELAN) to identify the relevant

session: enter the start and end position of this session (as it appears on this DMF) under **Position**. The digitization team will then segment the DMF further according to these specifications, and create the appropriate media file.

2.5.4.3 Resource References

The IMDI Editor automatically assigns a unique resource identifier to each media file and written resource (see section 2.5). The sub-screen **Resource References** lists all available resource identifiers: it displays the identifier together with the type of resource (e.g., "N10155 (Media File)" in the screenshot below), and it displays an empty box to the left.

		<u>- 🗆 ×</u>
Eile	View Options Help	
5	a 🗉 🚯	
	Editor 💟 HTML 🔂 Links 🗧 →	
-	Position Resource References Access Keys Descriptions	-
1000		
	☑ N10155 (Media File)	
	☑ N10198 (Media File)	
	N101DD (Written Resource)	
1000		
		-

The sub-screen **Resource References** now allows you to link the source to a specific media file or written resource. E.g., a source may only be connected to the media files (e.g., "N10155 (Media File)" and "N10198 (Media File)"), but not to a written resource. To link a resource, click into the empty box to its left. A checkmark will appear there.

2.5.4.4 Access

Information about the access rights to the **<u>source</u>**. See "Appendix 1: Recurring schemata (Access)" for instructions on how to fill in an Access schema.

2.5.4.5 Keys

Keywords that are relevant to the source. See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Keys)" for instructions on how to fill in a **Keys** schema.

2.5.4.6 Descriptions

A description of the source. See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Descriptions)" for instructions on how to fill in a **Descriptions** schema. Remember: The field **Language** refers to the language in which the description is written - <u>not</u> to the language under investigation.

2.6 References

This schema contains cross-references to other sessions, fieldnotes, or publications that are relevant to the content of the session. All the information that is entered into the **References** screen will be displayed in the IMDI Browser in the following way (see the IMDI Browser manual for details):



2.7 Changes to the metadata categories (IMDI 3.0 standard)

The most important change implemented in the IMDI Editor version 3.0 concerns the supported metadata categories: the Editor now supports the IMDI 3.0 standard, and all IMDI files created with this version of the Editor will automatically conform to this new standard. IMDI files created with an older version of the Editor need to be converted to the new standard.

This section first summarizes the implemented changes (see section 2.7.1), and then describes the conversion of old IMDI files (see section 2.7.2) and old repositories (see section 2.7.3) to the 3.0 standard.

2.7.1 Changes to the metadata categories

The following changes in metadata categories were implemented in the IMDI 3.0 standard:

IMDI 2.0 (and earlier) Standard	IMDI 3.0 Standard
Collector	this screen is now subsumed under Actor, with "collector" being one possible value for the field Role (see section 2.4.1.1)
Content . Genre . Interactional Content . Genre . Discursive Content . Genre . Performance	the three subtypes of genre are replaced by one Genre and one Subgenre, whereby the possible values of Subgenre are dependent on the value of Genre (see section 2.3.1)
Language	an additional panel allows you to specify resource references (see section 2.3.3.1)
Participant	this screen is replaced by Actor;
	Actor now includes Contact information;
	an additional panel allows you to specify resource references (see section 2.4.1.3)
AnotationUnit	this screen is replaced by Written Resource (see section 2.5.3)
Resources	a Keys schema is added;
	Media File and Written Resource are assigned Resource Ids;
	an additional panel under Source allows you to specify resource references
	(see section 2.5)
Lexicon Resource	this screen is added to create lexicon resource bundles (see section 3)

2.7.2 Conversion of old IMDI files to the 3.0 standard

The IMDI Editor version 3.0 supports the IMDI 3.0 standard. Files that were created with an older version of the Editor can still be opened, but they need to be converted to the new standard. The conversion process is as follows:

1. Open the old file in the IMDI Editor 3.0 (see section 1.2.1.6 for how to open a file). A warning of the following kind will appear:

🖹 X5L Transformer 🛛 🗙			
	The document has an old format. Please transform the document to the correct format.		
	From: IMDI 1.9 To: IMDI 3.0		
	OK Cancel		

2. Click on "OK" to convert the file. (Otherwise click on "Cancel" to not convert it.) The file will be converted to the 3.0 standard, using the default profile for that type of file (see section 1.2.3.1 for details on profiles). A backup copy of the file in its old standard will be saved with the extension ***.old.imdi**.

A window appears, informing you about this process, e.g.:

🔂 D:\Birghe\Software	e\Manuals\IMDI_Editor\Version3_0
🖹 3 Warnings 🛛 🗙	avorites Tools Help
Copied unconverted (IMDI 1.9) file to:] @ Search ParFolders ③ Par Par X 20 Ⅲ+
D:\Birghe\Software\Manuals\IMDI_Editor\Versio n3_0\TreesSM.old.imdi	Name A Size Type IMDI_3.0.xsd 66 KB X5D File
the file in the old standard has been saved with the extension *.old.im	
< Previous Next >	click here to go to the next message.

Furthermore, the converter informs you about any errors that took place during the conversion process. Click on "Next" to read this information.

The following two types of errors can occur:

(1) Errors concerning the Genre element: In earlier versions, Genre consisted of three separate subtypes. These were removed and were mapped onto one Genre and one Subgenre instead (see section 2.7.1). While some of these mappings are known to the converter, others are not. If the mapping is not known, the converter will generate an error message, informing you that the old Genre has been mapped onto the Keys schema of the Content screen instead (see section 2.3.4), e.g.:

 3 Warnings The conversion generated a warning: No mapping was available for Genre an SubGenre in Content. The original Genre information in includ Keys in Content. Please fill in the correct values for Genre SubGenre. This warning will continue to appear un have removed the conversion warning Key in Session. 	re and generated
Recording Date	(200)
Descriptions Location Keys Keys	
Key Name	Key Value Add CV
conversion.IMDI.1.9to3.0.warning	Unknown mapping of Genre: narrative> ??
Impl_file_creator the old Genre of the Content	has been mapped onto the Keys schema

Please remove this keyword manually, and fill in the Genre and Subgenre fields by hand.

(2) Errors concerning then usage of wrong values, e.g., the usage of a wrong format (such as a wrong format for a date or an age) or the usage of a value that is not specified in a closed controlled vocabulary (see section 1.2.3.3 for controlled vocabularies). In all these cases, you will receive the following message, informing you that such errors were detected:


In the IMDI file itself, such errors are highlighted in orange color, and a description of the error is added to the tool-tip (which is activated by pointing with the mouse to the category label). You can navigate to these errors by using the two arrow buttons at the top of the "Content" panel, e.g.:



Please fill in the correct values by hand.

! Note: Unless you manually change the items that do not conform to the IMDI 3.0 standard, the error messages will continue to appear (in the case of the **Genre** errors), and the offending items will continue to be highlighted in orange color (in the case of the value errors).

! Note: If the converter was able to map the old Genre onto the new Genre, it will inform you of this fact: it will add a description (under Content . Description) and it will additionally display the old Genre as keywords (under Content . Keys), e.g.:



2.7.3 Conversion of old repositories to the 3.0 standard

When you start the IMDI Editor version 3.0 for the first time, it will automatically convert all old repositories to the new IMDI 3.0 standard (see section 1.4 for details on repositories). The converted repository is **not** added to the node "Local Repository", but to the node "Local (Old IMDI Version)". The old repositories are not deleted - if you need to revert back to an older version of the IMDI Editor, the unconverted repositories will be used again.



3 The IMDI Lexicon Editor

The IMDI Lexicon Editor creates IMDI Lexicon files (*.imdi) that describe lexicon resources. Its structure is almost identical to the IMDI Session Editor, i.e., it displays the screens Session (see section 2.1), Project (see section 2.2), Content (see section 2.3), Actors (see section 2.4), and References (see section 2.6). The only difference concerns the screen Resources: the IMDI Lexicon Editor does not display Anonymous, Media Files, Written Resources and Sources – instead it displays Lexicon Resource. This section of the manual describes only the screen Lexicon Resource. For the other screens, please consult section 2.

3.1 Lexicon Resource

The lexicon resource associated with the session is listed under Lexicon Resource, which allows you to give general information about the resource, about its lexical entries, about the metalanguage used, and about access rights and restrictions to the resource. You can furthermore give a prose description and add keywords.

			<u> </u>
🛅 Editor 💟 HTML 😝	Links 🗧 🗕		
Lexicon Resource	9		
Resource ID	LR-1		
Date	Unspecified		Con
Resource Link			9
Media Resource			8
Information Lexical	Entries Metalanguages Access 1	Descriptions Keys	
Туре			▼ (cv)
Format		metadata	• 👓 📘
Number Head Ent	Unspecified		Con
Number Subentri	Unspecified		Con
Size		resource	
Schema Referen			
CharacterEncodi			
			1000
			-
	Lexicon Resource ID Date Resource ID Date Resource Link Media Resource Information Lexical Type Format Number Head Ent Number Subentri Size Schema Referen	Lexicon Resource Resource ID Date Unspecified Resource Link Media Resource Information Lexical Entries Metalanguages Access Type Format Number Head Ent Unspecified Size Schema Referen	Lexicon Resource Resource ID LR.1 Date Unspecified Resource Link Media Resource Information Lexical Entries Metalanguages Access Descriptions Keys Type Format Mumber Head Ent Unspecified Schema Referen

! Note: This part of the IMDI Editor is still under development, and the controlled vocabularies for the metadata categories have not yet been specified. Please consult the web page http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/ for further information.

4 The IMDI Corpus Editor

This part of the manual guides you through using the IMDI Corpus Editor to create a corpus hierarchy. All sessions or resource bundles (see section 2) and lexicon resource bundles (see section 3) belong to a corpus, e.g., to the corpus of the language XY, which, in turn, is subdivided according to various criteria (e.g., it may be subdivided on the basis of genre, or on the basis of the age of the participants, etc.).

! Note: In many cases, the corpus manager takes care of structuring your corpus, i.e., you will <u>not</u> need the IMDI Corpus Editor. You only need the Corpus Editor in case you manage your own corpus.

! Note for researcher working at the MPI for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen: If you plan on using the IMDI Corpus Editor, please contact COrpus.manager@mpi.nl first.

The IMDI Corpus Editor creates an IMDI Corpus file (*.imdi).

The following steps are necessary to create, structure and manage a corpus:

- 1. Specify the directory information of all info, media, written resource and lexicon files that belong to a session, and of all IMDI files that belong to a corpus (see section 4.1).
- 2. Select the sessions that belong to a subcorpus. Select the subcorpora that belong to a corpus (see section 4.2).
- 3. Create a corpus node (see section 4.3).

These steps are explained in the following three sections.

4.1 Specify the directory information of files

The IMDI Editor creates links to different types of files. These links are entered into fields that are labeled Link (see also section 1.5.3):

- In the IMDI Session Editor, Link fields exist for info files (see "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Descriptions)"), media files (see section 2.5.2), and written resource files (see section 2.5.3).
- In the IMDI Lexicon Editor, Link fields additionally exist for lexicon files (see section 3.1).
- In the IMDI Corpus Editor, Link fields exist for IMDI Session, IMDI Lexicon and IMDI Corpus files, i.e., files created with the IMDI Session, Lexicon or Corpus Editor (see section 4.2).

In order to link files, you need to provide information about (a) their names and (b) their directory location.

Usually, if your corpus is managed by a corpus manager, you only need to enter the file name. In this case, type the file name directly into the Link field of the IMDI Session, Lexicon or Corpus Editor. Do **not** make use of the browsing option (i.e., the "open folder" icon to the right of the Link field). Please make sure that **no** prefixes are defined in the "View" / "Preferences …" / "Prefixes" menu (see section 4.1.2).

However, if you manage your own corpus, you need to enter both the file name and the directory location. You can enter this information either directly into the Link field (see section 4.1.1) or you can make use of prefixes (see section 4.1.2).

4.1.1 Link fields

You can enter the directory information directly into the Link field. Do the following:

- 1. Make sure that the browsing option is set correctly. Do the following:
 - 1. In the IMDI Editor, click on "Options" menu.
 - 2. Click on "Preferences ...".
 - 3. In the "Preferences" dialog window, click on "Resources".
 - 4. In the "Resources" dialog window, make sure that there is <u>no</u> checkmark in the box next to "Retain only the filename when browsing".

! Note: If there is a checkmark in this box, the directory information will not be saved, e.g.:

Preferences		
	? Natural.imdi [IMDI Metadata Editor v0.11 (Schema vIMDI 1.8)]	
Resources Resources	ile <u>Vi</u> ew <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp Beneral Corpus	
	Corpus Name: Natural Corpus Title: Natural data	0
B Preferences	Corpus Links Descriptions Keys Name Corpus Link Session1 /D:/WINNT/Personal/IMDI/Metadata_files/Session1.imdi Session2 Session2.imdi	Add Edit
This preferrences panel !	now resources are randle	Remove
Prefixes		
	OK Cancel	

- 2. Make sure that the preferences are set correctly. Do the following:
 - 1. In the IMDI Editor, click on "Options" menu.
 - 2. Click on "Preferences ...".
 - 3. In the "Preferences" dialog window, click on "Prefixes".
 - 4. In the "Prefixes" dialog window, make sure that there is a checkmark in the box next to "Use these prefixes only when none were defined in the original IMDI file" (see section 4.1.2).
- 3. In the IMDI Editor, click on the "open folder" icon to the right of the Link field. The "Open" dialog window appears.



- 4. In the "Open" dialog window, navigate to the folder that contains the file.
- 5. Double-click on the file to insert its name and directory location into the Link field.

4.1.2 Prefixes

You can enter the directory information by means of prefixes. Do the following:

- 1. In the IMDI Editor, click on "Options" menu.
- 2. Click on "Preferences ...".
- 3. In the "Preferences" dialog window, click on "Prefixes". The "Prefixes" dialog window opens.
- 4. In the "Prefixes" dialog window, specify when the prefixes should be used. Choose one of the following two options (by clicking in the box next to this option):
 - (1) "Use these prefixes only when none were defined in the original IMDI file."

I.e., if the directory in formation is already specified in the original IMDI file, the prefixes defined in the "Prefixes" dialog window will not be used.

(2) "Always use the prefixes defined in this panel."

I.e., the prefixes are always used – even if a different directory is specified in the original IMDI file.

- 5. In the "Prefixes" dialog window, specify where you have defined the prefixes. Choose one of the following two options (by clicking in the box next to it):
 - (1) "Use Prefixes defined in the IMDI file itself."

Choose this option if the prefixes are defined in the "Prefixes" dialog window. These prefixes will then be saved within the IMDI file itself. To define prefixes, enter the directory information for each type of file, e.g.:

- "Global": the directory that is shared by all files, e.g., the path "D:\WINNT\Personal\IMDI\" in the illustration below.
- "Session Files": the location of your IMDI Session files (relative to Global), e.g., the folder "Metadata_files\" in the illustration below.
- "Corpus Files": the location of your IMDI Corpus files (relative to "Global").
- "Info Files": the location of your info files (relative to "Global").
- "Media Files": the location of your media files (relative to "Global").
- "Written Resources": the location of your written resource files (relative to "Global").
- "Anonymous Info": the location of your file that specifies the mapping of codes onto full names (relative to "Global").

! Note: Please add a backslash after each folder.

! Note: This option is especially useful whenever files of the same type are stored in the same directory – because then you only need to specify the directory information once in the "Prefixes" dialog window.

<mark>R Exploring - D:\WINNT\Personal\IMDI</mark> File Edit ⊻iew Tools <u>H</u> elp	
Imdi Imdi Imdi Imdi Imdi Imdi Imdi Imdi	Preferences
Name Size Metadata_files Metadata_files	With this preference panel, a user or administrator can define the prefixes that should be used and also when they should be used. Controlled Vocabularies Prefixes can be defined in the IMDI file itself or in an external configuration file that should be situated in the same folder as the IMDI file.
Anotation_files	Use these prefixes only when none were defined in the original IMDI file. Always use the prefixes defined in this panel.
directory	Resources Use Prefixes defined in the IMDI file itself.
information of files	Giobal: D:WINNTPersonaliUMDR Session Files: Metadata_files\
	Corpus Files: Metadata_files\ Info_files\ Info_files\
	Media Files: Media_files\ Annotation Units: Annotation_files\
	Anonymous Info: Anonymous_files\
	OK Cancel

(2) "Use Prefixes defined in an external configuration file."

Choose this option if the prefixes are defined in an external configuration file.

This option is more flexible than option (1) above because the prefixes are not saved in the IMDI file itself. I.e., if you decide to move files to a different directory at a later stage, you need to change the prefixes only once in the external configuration file – not in each IMDI file. It is therefore recommended that you make use of this option whenever you manage a large corpus.

If you choose this option, you are prompted to enter the name and directory of the configuration file. It should be in the same folder as your IMDI Session files.



! Note: All preferences that have been set in the "Options / Preferences ..." menu are automatically used for each new IMDI file – unless you change them manually. Whenever you create a new IMDI file, please make sure that the preferences are set correctly, so that you do not accidentally insert wrong prefixes.

There is a tool-tip available that reminds you of the defined prefixes. To access it, point with the mouse into the Link field. A blue box appears informing you about the prefixes, e.g.:

point here		
Link protocol.pdf		defined prefixes
\sim	PREFIX= D:\WINNT\Personal\IMDIVInfo_fil	esV-

4.2 Select the sessions and subcorpora that belong to a corpus

A corpus consists of subcorpora and sessions. For example, the following illustration shows a corpus labeled "Goemai corpus (preliminary version)", together with its two subcorpora "Natural data" and "Elicited data". The subcorpus "Elicited data" contains further subcorpora (labeled "Matching games" and "Picture books"). Each subcorpus consists of sessions (labeled "Session1" to "Session6") that contain the actual session data (i.e., IMDI Session files with metadata information and links to info, media, written resource, and lexicon files).



To specify such a hierarchical corpus structure, you need to create an IMDI Corpus file for each corpus and subcorpus. You are asked to provide the following information:

(1) Corpus Name:

A short name or abbreviation that uniquely identifies the corpus or subcorpus.

! Note for researchers working at the MPI for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen: The **Corpus Name** should be the same as the name of the corresponding IMDI Corpus file. Furthermore, the file name has to be Unix compatible: do not use file names longer than 14 characters, do not use non-letter or non-number characters (except for the underscore:), and do not use blank spaces.

(2) Corpus Title:

The complete title of the corpus or subcorpus. Usually, it is the spelled out version of the abbreviated Name.

(3) Descriptions:

Descriptive information about the corpus or subcorpus. See "Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Descriptions)" for instructions on how to fill in a

Descriptions schema. Remember: The field **Language** refers to the language in which the description is written - **not** to the language under investigation.

(4) Corpus Links:

Specify links to (a) all IMDI Session files or (b) all IMDI Corpus files that belong to the subcorpus or corpus.

(a) Specify the IMDI Session files that belong to the subcorpus. E.g., in the IMDI Corpus file **Natural.imdi** (i.e., "Natural data"), specify that it contains the IMDI Session files **Session1.imdi**, **Session2.imdi** and **Session3.imdi**.

Exploring - D:\WINNT\Personal\IM	DI\Metadata files	
🦳 Metadata files 🛛 🔻 🌊		₽ <u>_</u> :- ::: III
W Natural.imdi [IMDI Metadata Editor v0.11 (Schema vIM ■□] File View Window Help	Contents of 'D:\WINNT\Personal\	
General Location Project Collector Content Participants References	Name	Size Type
Corpus	Elicited.imdi	3KB IMDI Fi
Corpus Name: Natural	MDI.xsd	0KB XSD Fi
	🕘 Natural.imdi	4KB IMDI Fi
Corpus Title: Natural data	3ession1.imdi	7KB IMDI Fi
Corpus Links Descriptions Keys	Session2.imdi	7KB IMDI Fi
	Session3.imdi	7KB IMDI Fi
Name Corpus Link	🔄 🗐 Session4.imdi	7KB IMDI Fi
Session2 Session2.imdi	ssion5.imdi	7KB IMDI Fi
Session3 Session3.imdi specify the li	inks	Þ
to the IMDI	:: 13.4GB)	li
Session files	5	
// Clear Corpus		

(b) Specify the IMDI Corpus files that belong to the corpus or subcorpus. E.g., in the IMDI Corpus file **Goemai.imdi** (i.e., "Goemai corpus (preliminary version)"), specify that it contains the IMDI Corpus files **Natural.imdi** (i.e., "Natural data") and **Elicited.imdi** (i.e., "Elicited data").

Exploring - D:\WINNT\Personal\IMDI\Metadata_files File Edit View Tools Help		- 🗆 ×
🕼 Goemai.imdi [IMDI Metadata Editor v0.11 (Schema 💶 💶 🎽 🎽 🐰 🕒 🗶 😭 🕰 🗠 🗙 😭 🕰	6- 6- 6- 6- 6-	
File View Window Help Contents of 'D:\WINNT\Personal\IMD	DI\Metadata f	iles'
Collector Content Participants References	 Size	Turne
General Location Project	3120 3KB	Type IMDI Fi
Corpus	0KB	XSD Fi
Corpus Name: Goemai	4KB	IMDI Fi
Corpus Name: Goeman	7KB	IMDI Fi
Corpus Title: Goemai corpus (preliminary version) 2 Session2.imdi	7KB	IMDI Fi
Corpus Links Descriptions Keys	7KB	IMDI Fi
	7KB	IMDI Fi
Natural Natural Indi	7KB	IMDI Fi
Elicited Elicited.imdi to the IMDI		►
Corpus files : 13.4GB)		
Corpus mes		

To specify a link, do the following:

1. Click on the "Add" button. The "CorpusLink" dialog window appears.

<u>¥</u> (CorpusLink				×
	Name:	Session 1			
	Corpus Link:	Session1		8	
	🖉 Clear				
			ОК	Cancel	

- 2. Enter the name of the session or corpus in the field Name.
- 3. Specify the directory location of the corresponding IMDI Session/Corpus file in the field Corpus Link.

4.3 Create a corpus node

As the last step, you need to create a corpus node in the IMDI Browser. To create such a node, do the following:

- 1. Open the IMDI Browser.
- 2. At the bottom of the "Metadata Descriptions Tree" panel, enter the location of the IMDI Corpus file into the field labeled Root URL. Press ENTER.

The corpus node, together with its subcorpus nodes and sessions, is displayed in the "Metadata Descriptions Tree" panel, e.g.:

	🎘 IMDI-BCBro	owser for MPI o	on m00402404	
	Brows	ser Action	Bookmarks	Description
	Exit	Options	MPI corpora (SMB)	
	About		MPI Corpora (HTTP intranet) IMDI Corpora (HTTP)	Info/Content
		MD Search	DoBes Corpora CGN Corpus	
	Status: Ok			
		Meta Des	criptions Tree	
(🗛 Natural.im	ı)		
new corpus is	— 🧿 Se:	ssion1 ssion2 tadata		
displayed here				
		:/WINNT/Personal/	/IMDI/Metadata_files/Natural.imdi	
-			directory of	
		the IMDI	Corpus file	
		press ENT	TER	

- 3. To save the new corpus node permanently, do the following:
 - 1. In the "Metadata Descriptions Tree" panel, click on the corpus node to select it.
 - 2. Right-click on the selected corpus node.

A pull-down menu appears.

3. Choose "Add to Bookmarks" from the pulldown menu.

The "Input" dialog window appears.

4. Enter a name for the bookmark and click "OK".

right-click on the selected corpus node	escriptions Tree

🎘 In	put 🛛 🗙
enter a name for the bookmark	Natural OK Cancel

The new corpus node is saved as a bookmark in the "Bookmarks" panel. Every time you restart the IMDI Browser, you can access your corpus via the "Bookmarks" panel (see the separate manual "IMDI Browser" for details).



APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Recurring schemata

This appendix gives information about the recurring schemata Descriptions, Keys and Access.

Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Descriptions)

A Descriptions schema contains a prose description that could serve as a reminder (to you or others) of the circumstances of data collection. Descriptions schemata are not searchable.

The **Descriptions** schema is structured as follows:



Language The language in which the description is written.

Either type in the language, or select the language from the pulldown menu.

! Note: In earlier versions of the IMDI Editor, a code was entered into this field. Whenever you open an IMDI file created with such an earlier version, this code is displayed (e.g., "RFC1766:x-sil-eng" instead of English). In newer versions of the Editor, the code is still stored in the file itself (e.g., "RFC1766:x-sil-eng") – but the user interface will display the code as a name (e.g., as "English"). TextA prose description.LinkA link to an info file that contains further relevant information,
e.g., a session protocol.

! Note for researchers working at the MPI for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen: Please specify only the name of the file – do <u>not</u> make use of the "open folder" icon to the right of the Link field. And please save the info file as either a *.txt file, a *.pdf file or an *.html file.

You can create descriptions in different languages, e.g., one description in English (for the research community) and one in the language under investigation (for the language community). In this case, you have to add another **Descriptions** schema. Do the following:

- Click on the "Add" button to add a new schema.
- All schemata are displayed at the right of the **Descriptions** schema. They are listed under the language name (as defined in the Language field).
 - To access a schema, highlight it by clicking on it. It appears in blue color, and its content is displayed. The content of all other schemata is hidden.
 - To delete a schema, highlight it by clicking on it. Then click on the "Remove" button to delete it.

Appendix 1: Recurring Schemata (Keys)

Keys contain user-defined information that is (a) project-specific, (b) not taken care of in the standardized fields, and (c) meant to be searched. For example:



To add a key, do the following:

- 1. Click on the "Add" button. A new key will be added.
- 2. Specify a Key name. The name has to be a single word (e.g., 'MetaDescriptionCreator'). Do not use blank spaces.
- 3. Specify a Key value. Multiple words are allowed (e.g., 'Student Assistant XY').

To delete a key again, highlight it by clicking on it. Then click "Remove".

It is furthermore possible to add (project-specific) controlled vocabularies to a **Keys** schema, i.e., to have a **Keys** schema display a pull-down menu containing predefined values (see also section 1.2.3.3; and see the IMDI CV-Editor manual for instructions on how to create controlled vocabularies).

To add a controlled vocabulary to a Keys schema, do the following:



Appendix 1: Recurring schemata (Access)

Access schemata group information about access rights to a resource.

! Note: The different archives handle access rights differently. For example, many of the corpora housed at the MPI for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen, automatically deny access to media files, written resource files, lexicon files and media tapes. But other archives may follow a different policy.

Specify the access rights as follows:

	Access	X	
	Access	specification of the	
	Access Information Access Contact Access Descr	access rights	
	Availability: not available		
	Owner: Birgit Hellwig		
	Pyblisher:	owner and publisher	
	Date: 2002-02-08	of the resource	
	date at which the		
	access rights were		
	set		
	🖉 Clear Access 🖂 Open Policy	A Save Policy	
Access		K Access	×
Access			
		Access	
	Access Contact Access Description	Access Access Information Access Contact Access Description	1
		Access Information Access Contact Access Description Descriptions	
Access Information	Birgit Hellwig	Access Information Access Contact Access Description	l-er
Access Information Contact		Access Information Access Contact Access Description Descriptions	l-er
Access Information Contact Contact Name:	Birgit Hellwig	Access Information Access Contact Access Description Descriptions Language: RFC1766xsil-eng RFC1766xsil	l-er
Access Information Contact Contact Name: Address: E-mail:	Birgit Hellwig Postbus 310, 6500 AH Nijmegen, The Netherlands	Access Information Access Contact Access Description Descriptions Language: RFC1766xsil-eng RFC1766xsil	l-et
Access Information Contact Contact Name: Address:	Birgit Hellwig Q Postbus 310, 6500 AH Nijmegen, The Netherlands Q	Access Information Access Contact Access Description Descriptions Image: RFC1766x-silleng Image: RFC1766x-silleng Text: The media file is not available to the public. Image: RFC1766x-silleng	l-er
Access Information Contact Contact Name: Address: E-mail:	Birgit Hellwig Postbus 310, 6500 AH Nijmegen, The Netherlands Birgit Hellwig@mpl.nl Max-Planck-Institut für Psycholinguistik	Access Information Access Contact Access Description Descriptions Language: RFC1766x-sil-eng Text: The media file is not available to the public description of the	-et
Access Information Contact Contact Name: Address: E-mail:	Birgit Hellwig Birgit Hellwig Image: Comparison of the Netherlands Postbus 310, 6500 AH Nijmegen, The Netherlands Image: Comparison of the Netherlands Birgit Hellwig@mpi.nl Image: Comparison of the Netherlands Max Planck-Institut für Psycholinguistik Image: Comparison of the Netherlands Information about whom Image: Comparison of the Netherlands	Access Information Access Contact Access Description Descriptions Language: RFC1766x-sil-eng Text: The media file is not available to the public description of the	⊢er
Access Information Contact Contact Name: Address: E-mail:	Birgit Hellwig Postbus 310, 6500 AH Nijmegen, The Netherlands Birgit Hellwig@mpi.nl Max-Planck-Institut für Psycholinguistik C information about whom to contact in order to	Access Information Access Contact Access Description Descriptions Language: RFC1766x-sil-eng Text: The media file is not available to the public. description of the access restrictions	►et
Access Information Contact Contact Name: Address: E-mail:	Birgit Hellwig Birgit Hellwig Image: Comparison of the Netherlands Postbus 310, 6500 AH Nijmegen, The Netherlands Image: Comparison of the Netherlands Birgit Hellwig@mpi.nl Image: Comparison of the Netherlands Max Planck-Institut für Psycholinguistik Image: Comparison of the Netherlands Information about whom Image: Comparison of the Netherlands	Access Information Access Contact Access Description Descriptions Language: RFC1766x-sil-eng Text: The media file is not available to the public. description of the access restrictions	
Access Information	Birgit Hellwig Postbus 310, 6500 AH Nijmegen, The Netherlands Birgit Hellwig@mpi.nl Max-Planck-Institut für Psycholinguistik C information about whom to contact in order to	Access Information Access Contact Access Description Descriptions Language: RFC1766x-sil-eng Text: The media file is not available to the public. description of the access restrictions	

Information	General information about access rights to the resource.
Availability	Information about the availability of the resource. This field is not standardized yet – for the moment, please enter a prose text (e.g., not available, available in 5 years, available to person XY).
Date	Date at which the access rights were set. Please enter the date in the following format: YYYY-MM-DD , e.g. 2000-12-30.
Owner	Name of the person/institution that owns the resource.
Publisher	Name of the publisher who is responsible for the distribution of the resource.

Contact	Information about whom to contact in order to gain access to
	the resource: Name, Address, E-mail address, and
	Organisation.
Descriptions	Prose description of the access restrictions.

Appendix B

IMDI Browser, version 2.0

Manual

This manual was last updated: 30 Jun 2004

The manual can be downloaded from the following webpage: <u>http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/tools/</u> Author: Birgit Hellwig (Updates: Dieter Van Uytvanck)

Introduction

The IMDI (ISLE <u>Metadata Initiative</u>) Browser was developed at the Max Planck Institute for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen, The Netherlands. It is used to manage metadata and data files. As such, it complements the other IMDI tools, notably the IMDI Editor.

At the moment, the following IMDI tools exist (tools and manuals can be downloaded

from http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/tools/):

- IMDI (Metadata) Editor: a tool for creating metadata descriptions, both for socalled sessions or resource bundles⁸ and for subcorpus nodes;
- IMDI CV-Editor: a tool for creating lists of controlled vocabulary items;
- IMDI Metadata Search Tool: a tool for searching through metadata information;
- IMDI Tree Builder: a tool for creating browsable trees based on IMDI metadata descriptions (beta version).

The IMDI Browser supports the following features:

- displaying and accessing data and metadata through a hierarchical tree structure and a world map;
- direct access to media, annotation and metadata files;
- searching of metadata files (by means of the IMDI Metadata Search Tool).

This manual explains and exemplifies the features of the IMDI Browser. It is organized around the following three chapters:

- 1. Basic information about the IMDI Browser (section 5).
- 2. Displaying and accessing data (section 6).
- 3. Searching data (IMDI Metadata Search Tool) (section 7).

! Note: This manual contains a number of references to corpora housed at the Max Planck Institute for Psycholinguistics (MPI). It uses these corpora as a means to illustrate the functionality of the IMDI Browser. Please note that any remark (e.g., about the structure of the corpora, their availability, the contact

⁸ Please note: throughout this manual, the terms 'session' and 'resource bundle' are used interchangeably (see also section 1.2).

person etc.) only pertain to these corpora. Corpora stored at other archives or institutes follow different rules.

Notation Conventions

The following notation conventions are used:

- Menu items, icons and screen displays are written in the font MS Sans Serif.
- (SHORTCUT) KEYS ARE WRITTEN IN SMALL CAPS.
- Information on troubleshooting starts as follows: !

Table of Contents

1	Ba	sic	information	130
-	 1.1		rpora	
	1.2		ssions or resource bundles	
2			ying and accessing data	
	2.1		nu items	
	2 .1		File menu	
	2.1		Options menu	
	2.1		Search menu	
	2.1		Help menu	
	2.2 2.2		okmarks panel	
	2.3		e Metadata Descriptions Tree panel	
	2.3		Navigating through the corpus (tree structure)	
	2.3		Navigating through the corpus (world map)	
	2.3		Selecting parts of the corpus for purposes of searching (basket func	
	2.0		145	
	2.3	.4	Accessing data	147
	2	2.3.4.	.1 Metadata information	148
	2	2.3.4.	.2 Digitized media files and transcription/annotation files	150
	2	2.3.4.	.3 Info files	155
	2.4	Info	o/Content panel	156
	2.5	Des	scription panel	157
3	Se	arcl	hing data (IMDI Metadata Search Tool)	158
	3.1	Spe	ecifying the corpus to be searched	159
	3.1	.1	Selecting a *.data file	159
	3.1	.2	Creating a new *.data file	161
	3.2	Spe	ecifying the search parameters	161
	3.2	.1	Selecting the category to be searched	162
	3.2	.2	Entering the search item	164
	3.2	.3	Adding or deleting a search query	164
	3.3	Cha	anging the profile	165
	3.4	Init	tiating and stopping the search	165
	3.5	Displaying the search results166		
	3.6	Saving the search results166		
	3.7	Printing167		
:	3.8	Clo	osing the IMDI Metadata Search window	167

5 Basic information

This section of the manual introduces you to the basic concepts and possibilities of the IMDI Browser. It introduces the concepts of corpora (section 5.1) and of sessions or resource bundles (section 5.2). For illustration purposes, it makes use of the corpora stored at the Max Planck Institute for Psycholinguistics; for corpora stored at other institutes, different rules may apply.

5.1 Corpora

By default, the IMDI Browser gives access to all corpora that are stored at the Max Planck Institute for Psycholinguistics (MPI), Nijmegen, The Netherlands.

In addition – or alternatively – the Browser can display corpora created by you or by other archiving initiatives (see section 6.1.1).



Currently, the following corpora are housed at the MPI:

MPI corpora	Corpora collected by researchers affiliated with the Max Planck Institute for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen, The Netherlands.
DoBeS archive	Corpora collected by researchers affiliated with the DoBeS (Dokumentation Bedrohter Sprachen) project funded by the Volkswagen foundation.
ESF corpus	European Science Foundation Second Language Acquisition Database.
CGN	Corpus Gesproken Nederlands. ⁹
IFA corpus	Corpora collected by researchers affiliated with the Instituut

! Note: Depending on the version of the IMDI Browser, it may not always be possible to access all corpora.

voor Fonetische Wetenschappen (Institute of Phonetic

Sciences), Amsterdam, The Netherlands.

⁹ If you access the Corpus Gesproken Nederlands via the IMDI Browser, content searches are not possible. To conduct content searches in the CGN corpus, you need the corresponding CDs (see the separate manual "Corpus Gesproken Nederlands (COREX)" for details).

Each corpus contains further subcorpora collected by individual researchers or project teams. The internal structure of each subcorpus varies according to the purposes and needs of the project. You can access information about their content and structure through the info files displayed in the IMDI Browser (see section 6.3.4.3).

Each corpus contains metadata, media, annotation and info files (see section 6.3.4). These files can be accessed through the following two mechanisms (but please note that data files may not always be accessible to the general public; see section 5.2):

(a) By navigating through the hierarchical tree structure (see section 6.3.1).

Each corpus is organized hierarchically in the form of tree structures (see the illustration to the right).

Tree structures consist of nodes that group files together on the basis of, e.g., the geographical region, the discourse genre, the sex or age of the speaker, the dialect of the speaker, the target/source language etc.

All nodes are displayed in the IMDI Browser. Double-click on a node to access the next level in the hierarchy.

At the lowest level of the hierarchy, the actual metadata, media, annotation and info files are displayed.



! Note: The tree structure does <u>not</u> display the physical location of files. This means that the same file can easily be displayed in different parts of the corpus, e.g., the same file may be displayed under the nodes 'folktale', 'male speaker', and 'age-group 20 to 30 years'.

(b) By searching the metadata files (see section 7).

All resources or data files are accompanied by metadata files, i.e., files that give information about the data. These metadata files are searchable. For example, as illustrated below, you could search for all texts by female speakers above 60 years of age. The IMDI Browser displays the search results, and allows you direct access to the corresponding data files.

🛞 IMDI Metadata Se	earch		_ []]
L→ X Session ▼ P	articipant 🔻 (X) 🔻	Age 🔻	> • 60 && true •
L→ X Session ▼ P	Participant 🔻 (X) 🔻	Sex 💌	female
]	

5.2 Sessions or resource bundles

The lowest level of the corpus hierarchy contains the session or resource bundle. (These two terms are used interchangeably, 'session' being the preferred term for spoken corpora, and 'resource bundle' for written corpora.) A session or resource bundle corresponds to a meaningful unit of analysis, usually to a piece of data having the same overall content, the same set of participants, and the same location and time, e.g., one elicitation session on topic X, or one folktale, or one 'matching game', or one conversation between several speakers.

A session or resource bundle contains different files. The following four types of files exist:

(1) Metadata files (see section 6.3.4.1).

These files contain information <u>about</u> the session, e.g., its date and location, its content and its participants. They are of the IMDI Editor format.

(2) Media files (see section 6.3.4.2).

These files contain the audio or video recordings. They are usually digitized in one of the following formats: MPEG (*.mpg), Cinepak-Quicktime-Movies (*.mov), WAVE (*.wav).

(3) Annotation files (see section 6.3.4.2).

These files contain the transcripts, codings and annotations. Their format varies (e.g., ELAN, Media Tagger, Shoebox, CHAT, etc.)

(4) Info files (see section 6.3.4.3).

These files contain further background information on specific topics. They are in PDF or HTML formats.

With a few exceptions, metadata and info files are publicly accessible. This policy enables researchers to search metadata and to thereby gain an overview of the available material.

Annotation and media files are handled differently in the different corpora: some corpora allow for general access (e.g., the CGN corpus), while others do not (e.g., the MPI corpora). In the latter case, if you have not been explicitly granted access by the

responsible researcher(s), you will not be able to access the files. To gain access, ask the responsible researcher(s) for permission. Contact details are displayed in each corpus, e.g.:



Responsible researcher(s), by contrast, have unrestricted access to all files. This includes the following possibilities:

- Access to metadata and info files, including (a) all suppressed information and (b) the possibility to update the information. See sections 6.3.4.1 and 6.3.4.3.
- Access to media files. See section 6.3.4.2.
- Access to annotation files, including the possibility to continuously update them. See section 6.3.4.2.

6 Displaying and accessing data

Starting the IMDI Browser opens up the window IMDI-BCBrowser for MPI (referred to in this manual as the IMDI Browser window). In the IMDI Browser window, you can view and access the corpora, i.e., you can read information about the available data, access the files, and initiate searches. The IMDI Browser window contains the following information:

- 1. Menu items (see section 6.1)
- 2. Bookmarks panel (see section 6.2)
- 3. Metadata Descriptions Tree panel (see section 6.3)
- 4. Info/Content panel (see section 6.4)
- 5. **Description** panel (see section 6.5)

IMDI-BCBrowser for MPI on M034029	85	
File Options Search Help	Menu items	Description panel
Bookmarks Worldma Worldma IMDI cor IMDI corpora MPI corpora MPI Corpora (HTTP)	global http global file global file global http global file global http	
Metadata Descriptions Tree	ata Descriptions	Info/Content panel
P IMDI-corpora index.html Tree pa P Imdex.html Acquisition P Imdex.html Acquisition P Imdex.html Acquisition P Imaguage & Cognition Imaguage P Imaguage & Cognition Imaguage P Imaguage Imaguage P Imaguage Imaguage P Imaguage Imaguage Imaguage Imaguage Imaguage Imaguage <td< th=""><td>anel</td><td></td></td<>	anel	
Basket functions List Save Add	Remove	

6.1 Menu items

The following four menu items are available: File (see section 6.1.1), Options (see section 6.1.2), Search (see section 6.1.3), Help (see section 6.1.4).

To access any menu item, do one of the following:

- (e) Click on that item.
- (f) Or use the shortcut key ALT plus the underlined letter(s) (e.g., to access the item <u>File</u>, press the key ALT+F).

6.1.1 File menu

The File menu supports the following two options:

🖹 IMDI-BCBrows 💶 🗙		
<u>F</u> ile	<u>O</u> ptions	<u>S</u> earch <u>H</u> elp
<u>o</u>	pen File	
<u>E</u> xit		

Open File

Click on Open File to open a <u>corpus</u> file, i.e., an *.imdi <u>corpus</u> file that has been created with the IMDI Editor and that contains information about the corpus.

The Open dialog box appears, allowing you to browse to the folder that contains the *.imdi corpus file. In the dialog box, click on Open, and the IMDI Browser window will display the selected corpus node. E.g.:

🖹 Open 🔀	IMDI-BCBrowser for MPI on M03402985
Look in: Data Data Kwarrue u Kwarrue u Kwande wav Selected file Standard-session-ru TreesSM.imdi File name: MyCorpus.imdi Open	File Options Search Help Bookmarks Worldmap global http Worldmap global file IMDI corpora global file MPI corpora (HTTP) global http MPI corpora (HTTP) global http
Files of type: All Files (*.*) Cancel	Metadata Description Ker MyCorpus.imdi MyCorpus MyCorpus
	Root UR file:Dr/Birgit/Data/MyCorpus.imdi Basket functions List Save Add Remove Clear

Click on Exit to exit the IMDI Browser window.

Note that the Exit item turns into a Close item when you open a second IMDI Browser window, either through the option Clone Node (see section 6.3.1) or through accessing your search results (see section 7.4). If you click on Close, only the current IMDI Browser window will be closed.

6.1.2 Options menu The Options menu supports the following four options:

🖹 IMDI-BCBrowser for 💶 🗙			
<u>F</u> ile	<u>O</u> ptions	<u>S</u> earch	<u>H</u> elp
	Prefer	ences	
	Configuration info		
Ba	☑ Ch <u>e</u> ck CV's		
IL_	🗆 Show/	Hide <u>b</u> ook	marks

Preferences

Click on **Preferences** to select the update policy and the fonts. The **Preferences** dialog window appears, offering you the following two options:

Update Policy

Click on Update Policy to determine the policy for updating controlled vocabularies stored in the cache. The following policies are available:



! Note: The IMDI tools make use of so-called "controlled vocabularies" (i.e., lists of values for a specific key) to ensure consistency across users. These

vocabularies are stored on the Web, and a copy is stored in the cache of your desktop computer (in the folder "user-directory \setminus IMDI-TOOLS \setminus CVCACHE"). The Web version is changed sometimes, e.g., new values are added. However, the IMDI tools will continue to use the locally-stored version until the cache is updated again. By default, it is updated whenever you run the IMDI Browser. However, you can change this policy, and determine if and when it should be updated.

Font

This option allows you to display information from metadata files that contains special character sets. To select a set and a font, do the following:

- 4. Under Unicode Block (in the left panel), select a unicode block by clicking on it. The available fonts for that block are displayed under Font (in the right panel).
- 5. Under Font, select a font by clicking on it.
- 6. Click on OK to implement the new font in the Browser.



Configuration Info

Click on **Configuration** Info to view information on the configuration of the tool (you might need this information when reporting a bug to the developers), e.g.:

05	Value
	WINDOWS
CorpusRoot	/cdrom
USeCDname	true
useconame cacheDir	
	D:\WINNT\Profiles\birghe\IMDI-Tool
ItConfigFileName	LocalTools.cfg http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/Config/mpi
configURL mdDefSearchFile	nttp://www.mpi.n/iMD//Config/mpi
globalBookmarkFileName	mpiBookmarks.xml
selectedCorporaFileName	SelectedCorpora.xml
defaultCharset	ISO-8859-1
showURI field	true
nodeSelectionEnabled	true
corpusStructurePresent	true
imdiMode	false
corexMode	false
mpiMode	true
dobesMode	false
debugMode	false

Check CV's Click in the box to the left of Check CV's to enable the IMDI Browser to check if the values used in a metadata file are correct, i.e., are specified in the controlled vocabulary.

Show/Hide bookmarks Click in the box to the left of Show/Hide bookmarks to show or hide the Bookmarks panel in the IMDI Browser window.

6.1.3 Search menu

The **Search** menu supports the following option:

🖹 IMDI-BCBrowser for MPI o 💶 🗙			
<u>F</u> ile	<u>O</u> ptions	Search	<u>H</u> elp
		<u>M</u> etao	lata Search

Metadata Search

Click on Metadata Search to access the IMDI Metadata Search tool (see section 7).

6.1.4 Help menu The Help menu supports the following option:

😫 IMDI-BCBrowser for MPI o 💶 🗖 🗙			
<u>F</u> ile	<u>O</u> ptions	<u>S</u> earch	<u>H</u> elp
			<u>A</u> bout

About

Click on About to view the copyright and version information.

6.2 Bookmarks panel

In the **Bookmarks** panel, you can save shortcuts, i.e., "bookmarks", to parts of the corpus. Such bookmarks have the advantage that you do not need to navigate through the entire corpus hierarchy in order to access that part of the corpus.

Depending on the version and the configuration of the IMDI Browser, a number of bookmarks are displayed by default. For example, the following default bookmarks give access to the corpora housed at the Max Planck Institute for Psycholinguistics:

World Map (HTTP)	Access (via the web server) to a world map that displays the locations of documented languages.
World Map	Access (via the local MPI network) to a world map that displays the locations of documented languages.
IMDI Corpora	Access (via the local MPI network) to the MPI, DoBeS, ESF, CGN and IFA corpora.
IMDI Corpora (HTTP)	Access (via the web server) to the MPI, DoBeS, ESF, CGN and IFA corpora.
MPI Corpora	Access (via the local MPI network) to the MPI corpora.
MPI Corpora (HTTP)	Access (via the web server) to the MPI corpora.
CGN Corpus (mpi local)	Access (via the local MPI network) to the CGN corpus.
CGN Corpus (HTTP)	Access (via the web server) to the CGN corpus.
Search Results	Access to your search results.

Whenever you double-click on a bookmark, the corresponding node is displayed in the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel (see section 6.3).

In addition to the predefined bookmarks, you can create your own bookmarks. Do the following:

- 1. In the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel (see section 6.3), navigate to the corpus or session node for which you want to create a bookmark.
- 2. Click on the node to select it. It will be highlighted in blue color.
- 3. Click with the right mouse button on the node to open a pull-down menu.
- 4. Select Add to Bookmarks from the pull-down menu. The Input dialog box appears.
- 5. Specify a name for the bookmark, and click on OK. The new bookmark is added to the Bookmarks panel, and will be marked as personal.





The bookmarks are saved permanently by the IMDI Browser, i.e., they remain available every time you restart the Browser.

To remove a bookmark, do the following:

- 1. In the **Bookmarks** panel, click on the bookmark that you want to remove. It will be highlighted in blue color.
- 2. Click with the right mouse button on the bookmark to open a pull-down menu.
- 3. Select **Delete Bookmark** from the pull-down menu. The bookmark is deleted without further warning

! Note: You can only delete bookmarks created by yourself (i.e., those marked **personal** in the **Bookmarks** panel), but not the predefined bookmarks (i.e., those marked **global**).

6.3 The Metadata Descriptions Tree panel

The Metadata Descriptions Tree panel allows you to navigate through the corpus hierarchy. It serves the following three purposes:

- 1. The hierarchy of nodes allows you to easily navigate through the corpus to the session data (see sections 6.3.1 and 6.3.2).
- 2. Pull-down menus and the five buttons at the bottom of the panel allow you to select parts of the corpus for purposes of conducting searches (see section 6.3.3).
- 3. The linking of metadata, media and annotation files at the session level allows you to immediately access all relevant data (see section 6.3.4).



The following screenshot illustrates the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel.

6.3.1 Navigating through the corpus (tree structure)

Whenever the IMDI Browser window opens up, the node IMDI Corpora is displayed in the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel.

If you want to access any other predefined part of the corpus, do the following:

- 1. Go to the **Bookmarks** panel (see section 6.2).
- 2. Double-click on one of the bookmarks. The corresponding node is displayed in the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel.

In the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel, make use of the following options to navigate through the corpus:

• Double-click on any node to open it and display the next level in the hierarchy.

! Note: The Metadata Descriptions Tree panel distinguishes between open and closed corpus and session nodes. These are represented through the following icons:



Some program commands do not work when a node is closed. If any of the commands do not seem to work, make sure that the node is open.

! Note: Because of the large amount of data that is loaded, it may take some time until the IMDI Browser responds to your command and opens a node.

- Click on any closed node, and then point with the mouse to it to activate the tooltip that displays brief information about the node.
- Click on any open node to select it. It will be highlighted in blue color. The information relevant to the selected node is displayed in the Info/Content (see section 6.4) and Description panels (see section 6.5).
- Right-click on any selected (i.e., highlighted) node to open a pull-down menu that displays the available options. Click on any item in the pull-down menu to select the corresponding option.

Depending on the kind of node, the following options are available:

Add to basket	Adds the node to the list of nodes to be searched (see section 6.3.3).
Add to Bookmarks	Adds the node to the Bookmarks panel (see section 6.2).
Bookmark Info	Displays information about the bookmark in the Info/Content panel (see section 6.4).
Clone Node	Opens a second IMDI Browser window that displays only the corresponding node.
Create Service Files	Creates a file that is needed for searching through the metadata (see section 7.1.2).
Delete Bookmark	Deletes the node from the Bookmarks panel (see section 6.2).
Delete Local Service Files	Deletes the locally-stored file that is needed for searching through the metadata (see section 7.1.2).
ELAN	Opens the media file or the session annotation in ELAN (see section 6.3.4.2).
IMDI-BCEditor	Opens the metadata file in the IMDI Editor (see section 6.3.4.1).
List Sessions	Lists all sessions contained under this node in the Info/Content panel (see section 6.4).
Media Synchronized Viewe	ers Opens the session annotation in a separate Viewer, synchronized with the media file (see section 6.3.4.2).
MetaData Search	Opens the IMDI Metadata Search window (see section 7).
Open with Acrobat Reader	5.0 Opens the file with Acrobat Reader 5.0 (see section 6.3.4.3).

Open with Winamp	Opens the file with Winamp (see section $6.3.4.2$).
Remove	Removes the node from the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel.
Remove from basket	Removes the node from the list of nodes to be searched (see section 6.3.3).
Save File Content	Downloads the file in a non-compressed format.
Session Count	Displays the number of sessions contained under this node in the Info/Content panel (see section 6.4).
Show	Displays the file content in the Info/Content panel (see sections 6.3.4.2 and 6.4).
Show As HTML	Displays the file in an HTML format in the Info/Content panel (see sections 6.3.4.1 and 6.4).
Show Content-Type	Displays the file format in the Description panel (see section 6.5).
Show Description	Displays the file description in the Description panel (see section 6.5).
Show File Content	Displays the file in an XML format in the Info/Content panel (see section 6.4).
Show format	Displays the file format in the Info/Content panel (see section 6.4).
Show Info	Displays the file content in the Info/Content panel (see section 6.4).
Show LR's	Displays the directory information for all files contained under this node in the Info/Content panel (see section 6.4).
Show Services	Displays the name and directory information of the file needed for searching through the metadata in the Info/Content panel (see section 7.1).
Show URL	Displays the directory information for the metadata file in the Description panel (see section 6.5).
Windows Media Player	Opens the media file in Windows Media Player (see section 6.3.4.2).

! Note: Depending on the configuration of your IMDI Browser, other tools may be available. Furthermore, under Windows, the default option for starting media files of specific types is also supported (e.g., if Windows is set to open

*.wav files in Windows Media Player, the option Windows Media Player will be available).

! Note: For some nodes, one of the options is marked with the symbol #. In this case, the corresponding option will start automatically whenever you double-click on the open node.

! Note: Not all options are available for all nodes.

6.3.2 Navigating through the corpus (world map)

The IMDI Browser displays a world map with the locations of all documented languages. To access the world map, do the following:

1. In the Bookmarks panel double-click on the bookmark Worldmap.

The info file **world.html** is displayed in the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel.

2. In the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel click on the info file world.html.

The world map is displayed Info/Content panel.

- 3. To navigate, you have the following options:
 - Click on any part of the world map to enlarge the corresponding region.
 - Make use of the Backward and Forward buttons to move to previous and subsequent views.
 - Click on any language to open the corresponding node in the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel.
For example:



6.3.3 Selecting parts of the corpus for purposes of searching (basket function)

The IMDI Browser allows you to search through the metadata files. By default, this search is done throughout an entire corpus (see section 7), but it is possible to limit it to one (or several) selected corpus and/or session nodes, i.e., to limit it to nodes that have been put in the "basket".

To put a corpus or session node into the basket, do the following:

- 1. In the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel, double-click on the node to open it.
- 2. Click on the open node to select it. It will be highlighted in blue color.
- 3. Do one of the following:
 - (a) Click the Add button at the bottom of the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel.
 - (b) Or click with the right mouse button on the highlighted node; then select Add to basket from the pull-down menu.

The icon of any selected node will change its color to gray, e.g.:





non-selected node

selected node

Once an item is selected, the List button at the bottom of the panel will be highlighted in red color.

! Note: The red color was chosen to alert you to the fact that a list has been compiled. The existence of such a list has consequences for the search process: metadata search will only search the listed nodes, i.e., the nodes that were put into the basket (see section 7.1). If the search process does not yield the expected results, please make sure that the list contains all relevant nodes. And if you want to search through an entire corpus (not just through the listed nodes), you have to delete the list again (see below).

4. Repeat this process to add other nodes to your selection.

! Note: Please select only nodes that are listed below a corpus node for which there is a search file available. Such corpus nodes are visualized in the IMDI Browser by means of a white "C" on a black background (see section 7.1). As indicated in the illustration to the right, you can select and search nodes contained under MPI corpora *or* under DoBeS archive. But you cannot select and search one node from MPI corpora *and* one from DoBeS archive – since they do not have a common search file.



To view a list of the selected nodes, click the List button at the bottom of the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel. It will display all selected nodes, e.g.:

🖄 Selected Nodes	_ 🗆 🗵
r1nl_01 file:d:/COREX4/Corpora/metadata/xml/r1nl_01.imdi	
r1nl_02 file:d:/COREX4/Corpora/metadata/xml/r1nl_02.imdi	
Dismiss	

To remove a node from the list, do the following:

- 1. In the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel, double-click on the node to open it.
- 2. Click on the open node to select it. It will be highlighted in blue color.
- 3. Do one of the following:
- (a) Click the Remove button at the bottom of the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel.
- (b) Or click with the right mouse button on the highlighted node; then select Remove from basket from the pull-down menu.
- 4. Repeat this process to remove other nodes from your selection.

You can remove all selected nodes from this list by clicking the Clear button at the bottom of the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel.

You can save the selected list for future uses. Click the **Save** button at the bottom of the **Metadata Descriptions Tree** panel. The following message informs you that your list has been saved:



! Note: Once you have saved a selected list, you can only remove it by first clicking the Clear button (to remove all selected nodes) and then the Save button (to save the empty list).

When you are satisfied with your selection, you can initiate the search (see section 7).

6.3.4 Accessing data

The IMDI Browser contains links to files or to information from files. These links are symbolized through the following icons:

•	link to information from metadata file(s) (i.e., information from IMDI files).
m	link to digitized media file(s), containing audio/video data.
Т	link to transcription and annotation file(s).
i	link to info file(s) providing general background information.
•	link not available (either because the file does not yet exist, or because access is denied).

Click on any of these icons, and the IMDI Browser will display the relevant information.

6.3.4.1 Metadata information

Metadata information is displayed under each session node. It allows you to (a) read about the circumstances under which the session data was collected and (b) search for relevant data (see section 7).

It contains the following kind of information:

- Information about the date and location.
- Information about the project within which the data was collected.
- Information about the person who collected the data.
- Information about the content.
- Information about the participant(s).
- Information about the source (i.e., the audio/video tape), the digitized media file(s) and the annotation file(s).
- Cross-references to other relevant sessions and publications.

To view the metadata information of a session, click on the corresponding metadata icon. The information is displayed in the Info/Content panel (see section 6.4) or the Description panel (see section 6.5).



Furthermore, you can access all metadata information through the session node. Double-click on a session node to open it, then click on it to select it, and right-click to open a pull-down menu. The pull-down menu offers you the following options:

• Choose Show As HTML from the menu. The metadata information is displayed in an HTML format in the Info/Content panel, e.g.:



• Choose IMDI-BCEditor from the menu. The IMDI Editor opens with the corresponding metadata file, e.g.:



! Note: You can update the metadata information in the IMDI Editor. However, in most archives, it is not possible to save the updated file directly to the server. Please save it to the local disk, and contact your corpus manager. In any case, please contact your corpus manager before you make any substantial changes to make sure that your changes do not interfere with the overall corpus management.

6.3.4.2 Digitized media files and transcription/annotation files

A session node also contains links to digitized media files (i.e., to audio and/or video files), and to transcription/annotation files. These files can be accessed either through the session node, or the media file node or the transcription/annotation file node.

The following options are available:

(a) Right-click on a selected media file node to open the pull-down menu, then choose ELAN, Windows Media Player or Open with Winamp from the menu. The media file will be opened in ELAN,¹⁰ Windows Media Player or Winamp, e.g.:



¹⁰ ELAN is an annotation tool developed at the Max Planck Institute for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen, The Netherlands. Tool and manual can be downloaded from http://www.mpi.nl/tools/.

In order to view digital images (*.gif, *.jpg) right-click on the corresponding node and select # Show #. The image will be displayed in the right window, titled *Info/Content*:



(b) Right-click on a selected session node to open the pull-down menu. If the annotation of that session was done in ELAN (i.e., if there is an *.eaf file), the pull-down menu will display the options ELAN and Media Synchronized Viewers. Select one of these options to view the media file together with its annotations.



By default, the Media Synchronized Viewer option displays the video image together with a dialog window. This dialog window allows you to select the annotation tier that you want to view, and the Viewer in which you want to view it.

- To select an option, click in the corresponding box (to add a checkmark), or click on the button All (to select all Viewers for one tier). Then click on OK to activate the corresponding viewer.
- To deselect an option, click in the corresponding box (to delete a checkmark), or use the buttons None (to deselect all Viewers for a tier) or Clear (to deselect all Viewers). Then click on OK to deactivate the corresponding viewer.
- Click on Undo to undo the last selection.

All Viewers are synchronized in time, i.e., when you play the video, the other Viewers will display the corresponding annotation, highlighted in red color.

For example:



(c) Right-click on a selected annotation file node to open the pull-down menu, then choose Show from the menu. The file content is displayed in the Info/Content panel, e.g.:



! Note: There are no restrictions on the format of your annotation files (ELAN, Media Tagger, Shoebox, CHAT, etc.).

! Note: You can constantly update your annotation files (provided you do not change their file names), which allows you to reflect changes in your analysis. But note that, for the moment, only ELAN can be directly accessed via the IMDI Browser. If you want to edit annotation files of a different format, please navigate to the physical location of that file (by using, e.g., Windows Explorer).

6.3.4.3 Info files

Both corpus and session nodes can contain links to info files. These files provide general background information about the corpus or the individual session.

If such a file is an HTML file, click on it: its content will automatically be displayed in the Info/Content panel. If the file is a PDF file, click on it and then right-click on it to open the pull-down menu. Choose Open with Acrobat Reader 5.0 from the pulldown menu. Acrobat Reader will open up to display the file.

For example:

鱶 IMDI-BEBrowser for MPI on M03402985	
<u>File Options Search H</u> elp	
Metadata Descriptions Tree	Description
Implectorpora display of Index.html *.html file Acquisition *.html file Acquisition *.html file Germai *.foregram Index.html *.html file Natural Implect.pdf Implect.pdf Implect.pdf	<no description=""> Info/Content Maix Planck Institute for home introduction peearch people facilities ev Browsable Corpus on the web</no>
Basket function List Sat C Ele Est Document Mew Works 2010 M are D C C T + + + + + C C A	Max Planck offers access to a large amount of linguistic da
Leastive verbs, deictic classifiers and nominal In a member of contexts. Commi speakers are forced to a locative verb in the locative communities, not address and word and in an auxiliary verb in the progressive construction. In a decira classifi word and in an auxiliary verb in the progressive construction. In decira classifi endoting endoting the term of phasa verbs even equivalent picts, the demonstructive vero contains an obligatory of (1) Tergs of years and years and years are an address of the "Those standing trees are mango trees." The flexis present a comprehensive analysis of all conta includes a grammarical ketch of the Cosma Imagange and the locative elements pick the flexistication of the includes a grammarical ketch of the Cosma Imagange and the locative elements pick for cosmics and solitoging apects and maniferation and and the location of the solitoging apects and the location of th	o pay attraction to the obligatority records in for in the donconcentrive into Furthermore, it is evides classifier: mangero. Nats where such spatial f the locative elements, n paths. In addition, it ereby illustrature the role whole,

6.4 Info/Content panel

The Info/Content panel displays information about corpus, session and file nodes. To read the information, click on the node in the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel, e.g.:



! Note: The information is displayed in form of searchable keywords. For prose information, look at the **Description** panel (see section 6.5).

The Info/Content panel can display additional information. To view this additional information, do the following:

- 1. In the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel, click on the node whose information you want to view. It will be highlighted in blue color.
- 2. Right-click on the highlighted node.
- 3. Select one of the following options from the pull-down menu (see section 6.3.1):
 - Bookmark Info: Displays information about the bookmark.
 - List Sessions: Lists all sessions contained under this node.
 - Session Count: Displays the number of sessions contained under this node.
 - Show: Displays the file content.
 - Show As HTML: Displays the file in an HTML format.
 - Show File Content: Displays the file in an XML format.
 - Show format: Displays the file format.
 - Show Info: Displays the file content.
 - Show LR's: Displays the directory information for all files contained under this node.
 - Show Services: Displays the name and directory information of the file needed for searching through the metadata.

The corresponding information is displayed in the Info/Content panel.

The Info/Content panel also displays the world map (see section 6.3.2). And it displays Backward and Forward buttons (that allow you to move to the previous or subsequent view) and a Print button (that allows you to print the information displayed in the panel).

6.5 Description panel

The **Description** panel displays a description of corpus, session and file nodes. To read the description, click on the node in the **Metadata Descriptions Tree** panel, e.g.:



! Note: The **Description** panel displays prose information. For searchable keywords, look at the **Info/Content** panel (see section 6.4).

The **Description** panel can display additional information. To view this information, do the following:

- 1. In the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel, click on the node whose information you want to view. It will be highlighted in blue color.
- 2. Right-click on the highlighted node.
- 3. Select one of the following options from the pull-down menu (see section 6.3.1).
 - Show Content-Type: Displays the file format.
 - Show Description: Displays the file description.
 - Show URL: Displays the directory information for the metadata file.

The information is displayed in the Description panel.

The **Description** panel also displays a **Print** button (that allows you to print the information displayed in the panel).

7 Searching data (IMDI Metadata Search Tool)

To start the IMDI Metadata Search Tool, do one of the following:

- (a) Double-click on the IMDI Metadata Search Tool icon.
- (b) Or use the IMDI Browser interface:
 - (1) Use the menu items (see section 6.1.3).
 - 1. Click on Search.
 - 2. Click on Metadata Search.
 - (2) Use the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel (see section 6.3).
 - 1. Go to the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel.
 - 2. Double-click on a node to open it.
 - 3. Click on it to select it. It will be highlighted in blue color.
 - 4. Right-click on it to open a pull-down menu.
 - 5. Select MetaData Search from the pull-down menu.

The following screenshot illustrates the IMDI Metadata Search window:

File	IMDI Metadata Search
	Print button
	Query specification and results search parameters Session:MDGroup.Participants.Participant(%).FullName="J"
search	hits: 56 progress:
progress	http://www.mpi.nl/world/corpora/media Guest.imdi http://www.mpi.nl/world/corpora/media search results ig/Natural/Descriptive/Metadata/T reesSM.imdi http://www.mpi.nl/world/corpora/media-archive/lac_data/hellwig/Natural/Descriptive/Metadata/A
	Search Service: http://www.mpi.nl/world/corpora/IMDI/metadata/imdi.dbf Browse
	search file Search Stop Save results in: results saving the search
	buttons to initiate and stop searches

This section introduces the search options. The following options are available:

- 1. Specifying the corpus to be searched (section 7.1).
- 2. Specifying the search parameters (section 0).

- 3. Changing the profile (section 7.2).
- 4. Initiating and stopping the search (section 7.3).
- 5. Displaying the search results (section 7.4).
- 6. Saving the search results (section 7.5).
- 7. Printing (section 7.6).
- 8. Closing the IMDI Metadata Search window (section 7.7).

7.1 Specifying the corpus to be searched

The corpus to be searched is displayed in the box to the right of **Search Service**:. For metadata search to work, you need to enter the name and location of the ***.data** file that contains the metadata information of the corresponding corpus (see section 7.1.1). Many corpora provide you with predefined ***.data** files, but you also have the possibility to create your own files (see section 7.1.2).

7.1.1 Selecting a *.data file

To enter a *.data file in the box to the right of Search Service:, do the following:

- (a) Either: Type in its name and location.
- (b) Or: Make use of the Browse button to the right of this box.
- (c) Or: Make use of the IMDI Browser interface. In this case, do the following:
- 1. In the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel (see section 6.3), double-click on the corpus node to open it. Then click on the node to select it. It will be highlighted in blue color.
- 2. Do one of the following:
 - (a) In the Search menu, click on Metadata Search (see section 6.1.3).
 - (b) Or in the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel (see section 6.3), right-click on the selected node; then select MetaData Search from the pull-down menu.

In the IMDI Metadata Search window, the *.data file associated with the selected corpus node is automatically entered into the box, e.g.:



! Note: The name and location of a ***.data** file can be seen in the IMDI Browser. In the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel, double-click on a corpus node (to open it), click on it (to select it), and then click with the right-mouse button to open a pull-down menu. From the pull-down menu, select Show Services. The name and location of the corresponding ***.data** file is displayed in the Info/Content panel (see section 6.3.1).

! Note: Corpora can only be searched if there is a ***.data** file available. Such corpora are visualized in the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel by means of a white "C" on a black background. Corpora that have no corresponding ***.data** file are visualized by means of a white "C" on a blue background. If you click on a 'non-searchable' subcorpus that is part of a larger 'searchable' corpus, the whole corpus will be searched – not just the subcorpus. E.g.:



metadata search is automatically restricted to the selected node(s). Again, you can only search parts of corpora that have a corresponding ***.data** file.

! Note: If the search process does not yield the expected results, please check the following possibilities:

- (1) Make sure that the ***.data** file displayed next to Search Service: is the correct file.
- (2) For searches through an entire corpus: make sure that you have not accidentally selected a part of the corpus. If you have selected a part, the List button at the bottom of the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel is highlighted in red color.

(3) For searches through selected parts of a corpus: make sure that the list (displayed under the List button at the bottom of the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel) contains all relevant nodes.

7.1.2 Creating a new *.data file

Many corpora provide you with predefined ***.data** files. Such corpora are visualized in the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel by means of a white "C" on a black background (see section 7.1.1 above). However, it is also possible to create your own ***.data** file. To do so, do the following:



5. After the ***.data** file has been created, the corpus node changes its color from blue to black, and you can now search this corpus (see section 7.1.1).

! Note: These ***.data** files are stored permanently in your local directory "user-directory \setminus IMDI-TOOLS \setminus DB". Specifying the search parameters

The search parameters are specified in the topmost part of the IMDI Metadata Search window, e.g.:



The following search options are available:

- 1. Selecting the category to be searched (section 7.1.3).
- 2. Entering the search item (section 7.1.4).
- 3. Adding or deleting a search query (section 7.1.5).

7.1.3 Selecting the category to be searched

The categories that can be searched are displayed in form of pull-down menus. By default, **Session** and **Name** are displayed. These two options allow you to search for all sessions with a particular name (as in the illustration above).

Click on the pull-down menus to select other categories:

- The first category is always Session (i.e., you will always search for a session)
- The second category is chosen from the following list: Name, Date, Location, Key, Participant, or Content (i.e., you will search for a session that has a certain name, or a certain recording date, etc.).
- Depending on your choice for the second category, further pull-down menus will appear to narrow down the category.

! Note: If too many categories and pull-down menus are added, the IMDI Metadata Search window cannot display them all. To increase its size, click on the full screen icon (in the top right corner of the window):

Some examples of metadata searches are given below:

(1) The screenshot below illustrates a search for all sessions that were recorded in the Netherlands.

In this case, Session and Location were chosen as the first two categories. A third pull-down menu appeared subdividing the category Location into Continent, Country, and Region. When Country was chosen, a fourth pull-down menu appeared displaying the names of all countries.

The selected categories and subcategories were then automatically added to the box Query specification and results.



(2) The screenshot below illustrates a search for all sessions that were recorded after 1.1.2000 and before 1.1.2001.

MDI Search Specification			
L→ X Session ▼ Date ▼	> 🗸)1-01	-2000 && <	. •)1-01-2001
Query specification a Session.Date=(>"01-01-2000" && <"01-01-2001")	recorded after	and	recorded before
	1.1.2000		1.1.2001

In this case, **Date** was chosen as the second category (i.e., the date of the recording). Further pull-down menus appeared that allowed to specify the exact time period, e.g.:

<	search for a date before the specified date
=	search for the exact date
>	search for a date after the specified date

7.1.4 Entering the search item

After you have selected the search categories, enter the search item into the box in the top right corner, and then press the key ENTER, e.g.:

IMDI Search Specification	
L→ Session ▼ Participant ▼ (X) ▼ Age	20 & 88 true -
Query specification and results	
Session.MDGroup.Participants.Participant(X).Age (<"20")	
	search item
	2000 -

! Note: Some search items have to be entered manually, others can be chosen from a pull-down menu (see section 7.1.3). If you enter the search item manually, you always need to press the key ENTER to commit the item.

! Note: Alternatively, you can type the search item directly into the box Query specification and results. Type it between the two quotation marks following the category specification, e.g. "20" in the illustration above.

7.1.5 Adding or deleting a search query

You can add and delete queries as follows:



use this button to add a query

use this button to delete the query

When two (or more) queries are specified, the search process will find all sessions that contain query 1 *and* query 2 (*and* all subsequent queries). For example, in the following illustration, all sessions will be found that contain utterances from (1) a male participant X *and* (2) a female participant Y.

Session •	Participant 🔻	(X) 🔻	Sex 🔻	male
→ Session ▼	Participant 🔻	m 🔻	Sex 🔻	female
		Query s	pecification and results	
	.Participants.Particip			
Session.MDGroup	.Participants.Particip	ant(Y).Sex="fe	male"	

! Note: Variables such as X and Y are only relevant if you specify more than one query. In this case, they allow you to specify that the participant of query 1 (e.g., X) should either be different from the participant of query 2 (e.g., Y) (as in the illustration above), or that (s)he should be identical to the participant of query 2 (e.g., X). Please ignore these variables if you specify one query only.

7.2 Changing the profile

Section 0 above has shown that the categories to be searched are displayed in form of pull-down menus. These categories are specified in a so-called "profile" (stored in the folder "user-directory $\ IMDI-TOOLS \ Profiles \ local$). To change the profile, do the following:

- 1. Click on File menu.
- 2. Click on Change Profile. The Open dialog window appears and displays all available profiles, e.g.:

🌺 Open		×
Look in: Incal		
SESSION.Profile xml	available profiles in the folder "user- directory \ IMDI- TOOLS \ Profiles \ local	
File name:		pen
Files of type: All Files (*.*)	▼ <u>C</u> a	ncel

3. Double-click on the profile you want to use. The IMDI Metadata Search window will display the chosen profile. E.g., the following illustration displays some categories that are specific to sign language research and that are defined in the profile "SignLanguage.Profile.xml":

🌺 IMDI Metadata Search	_ 🗆 🗙
<u>F</u> ile	
L Session Speaker/Signer (X) Key:Deafness:Status Deafness:Status hearing	

! Note: For the moment, profiles have to be programmed by hand. In future versions of the IMDI tools, it will be possible to create profiles with the help of the IMDI (Metadata) Editor.

7.3 Initiating and stopping the search

Click the Search button at the bottom of the IMDI Metadata Search window to start the search. During the search the number of "hits" (matches) to your search criterion is shown, as well as the progress towards completion of the search. Once the search process has started, you can use the Stop button to stop the search.

! Note: Because of the large amount of data that is searched, it may take some time before the search is completed.

7.4 Displaying the search results

The box Query specification and results displays the results, i.e., the name and location of each session. You can access any search result by double-clicking on it. This will open up an IMDI Browser window containing the selected session, its metadata descriptions and its media and annotation files.

7.5 Saving the search results

You can save the search results in form of a corpus node. This corpus node is displayed in the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel of the IMDI Browser window. Do the following:

- 1. In the IMDI Metadata Search window, enter a name into the text box following the button Save results in:.
- 2. Click the button Save results in:. The results are saved under the specified name.

You can access the results through the IMDI Browser interface. Do the following:

- 1. In the IMDI Browser window, go to the Bookmarks panel (6.2).
- 2. Double-click on Search Results.

The Metadata Descriptions Tree panel (see section 6.3) displays the new corpus node below the node labeled Results.

🎨 IMDI Metadata Search		IMDI-BCBrowser for MPI on M03402985
Session V Participant V (X) V Full Name V		File Options Search Help
		Bookmarks
Query specification and results		IMDI corpora (HTTP) global http
Query specification and results		MPI corpora global file
Session.MDGroup.Participants.Participant(X).FullName="J"	(0	MPI Corpora (HTTP) global http CGN Corpu <u>s (mpi local)</u> global file
	(Search)	CGN Corpus (HTTP) global http Search Results global file
hits: 28 progress:	Results	Search Results global file
http://www.mpi.nl/world/corpora/media-archive/lac_data/hellwig/Natural/Conver	node	Metadata Descriptions Tree
Quest.indi http://www.mpi.nl/world/corpore covic the lwig/Natural/Descrip		RESULT
reesSM.indi Save the		P speakerJ
http://www.mpi.nl/world/corpore results here	ptive/Metadata/A	🖌 🗠 🔂 Quest
		♥ S TreesSM ♥ S Animal2
Search Service: http://www.mpi.nl/world-conportanticary-arcmicenae_outure-orpusstructure4ac.dbf	Browse	Metadata Animal2 way
Close Search Stop Save results in: speakerJ		🗢 T Animal2.bt
		• References • result 3
		N - 🔁 result 4
		results of the
		Second Se
		metadata
		search
		Root URL :D:WINNT/F
		Basket functions
		List Save Add Remove Clear

The new corpus node is treated like any other corpus node, i.e., it contains sessions, and the sessions contain metadata, media and annotation files.

You can remove the saved corpus node again. Do the following:

- 1. In the Metadata Descriptions Tree panel (see section 6.3), click on the node to select it. It will be highlighted in blue color.
- 2. Right-click on the selected node to open a pull-down menu.
- 3. Select **Remove** from the pull-down menu.

The node will be removed.

! Note: After selecting **Remove**, the icon of the removed node remains visible although it cannot be accessed anymore. The icon will be removed after exiting the node **Results**.

7.6 Printing

You can print the search parameters (see section 0) together with the search results (see section 7.4). To do so, click on the Print icon, e.g.:

IMDI Metadata Search Image: Session	
Query specification and results Sesarton.MDGroup.Participants.Participant(X).FullName="J	Print button
htts: 28 progress: http://www.mpi.nl/world/corpora/media-archive/lac_date/hellwig/Natural/Conversation/Met Quest.imdi http://www.mpi.nl/world/corpora/m	data/T
	Browse

7.7 Closing the IMDI Metadata Search window

Click on File menu, then click on Close to exit the window.

Appendix C

Access Rights Management for

Language Resource Archives at the MPI

Manual

This manual was last updated: March 23, 2004

Introduction

The Access Rights Management-web pages are developed at the Max Planck Institute for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen, The Netherlands. They are used to allow authorized persons to define access rights for language resources that are part of the archives stored at the MPI (i.e. DOBES Corpus, Dutch Spoken Corpus, MPI Corpora and ESF Corpus). At the moment, only the right to read resources can be assigned. The corpora are arranged in a hierarchical tree structure and access rights can be assigned to nodes in that structure. All Nodes below a certain Node in the hierarchy inherit the rights of this Node. Access rights assigned to nodes higher in hierarchy are overruled by access rights assigned to nodes lower in hierarchy.

The Access Rights Management-web pages support the following features:

- Adding and removing users;
- Adding and removing access rights managers
- Adding and removing groups;
- Modifying groups;
- Defining and removing access rights for a group;
- List access rights.

The Access Rights Management-web pages can be accessed from the Browsable Corpus web-site (http://corpus1.mpi.nl/BC/IMDI-corpora/). At the bottom of the page is a link "set access rights for this node". Clicking this link opens the Access Rights Management main index page. The current node in the corpus tree is the starting point for the Access Rights Management.

! Note: you need username and password to login.

The main index page-display is as follows:



This manual explains and exemplifies the features of the Access Rights Managementweb pages. It is organized around the following 5 parts:

- VI. Adding and removing users (chapter 1).
- VII. Adding and removing access rights managers (chapter 2).
- VIII. Adding, removing and modifying groups (chapter 3).
- IX. Defining and removing access rights for groups (chapter 4).
- X. List access rights (chapter 5).

Notation Conventions

The following notation conventions are used:

- Screens, schemata and fields of the web pages are written in the font MS Sans Serif.
- (SHORTCUT) KEYS ARE WRITTEN IN SMALL CAPS.
- "Text in double quotes refers to menu items and screen displays."
- Information on troubleshooting starts as follows: !

Table of Contents

1 Ad	ding and removing users172	2
1.1	Adding a new users172	2
1.2	Removing users	3
2 Ad	ding and removing access rights managers	3
2.1	Add a new access rights manager from top node173	3
2.2 tree	Add a new access rights manager from the current point in 173	
2.3	Removing access rights managers174	4
3 Ad	ding, removing and modifying groups	4
3.1	Add a new group174	4
3.2	Remove a group175	5
3.3	Modify groups176	6
4 De	fining and removing access rights for groups	6
4.1	Defining access rights for groups176	6
4.2	Remove access rights for a group177	7
5 Lis	st access rights	7

1 Adding and removing users

This part of the manual describes how authorized persons can add potential new users and remove users. There are two kinds of users:

- definers
- normal users

Only definers can give access rights to other normal users and can create other definers. Definers are always connected to a certain level in the hierarchical tree structure. Therefore, definers can only lend access rights for the current level in the tree, or any level below.

1.1 Adding a new users

From the main index page, click the "add a user" link. In the opened form, the definer has to provide the following date concerning the potential user:

- first name or initials
- prefix (optional)
- username
- password: the user can later modify this password
- user class: class is "normal" (for normal users) or "definer". The created definer can create new users, but is not able to set access rights. To solve this a Node must be assigned additionally to the definer (see chapter "Adding and removing access rights managers").
- postal address (optional)
- email address: potential new users have to accept an agreement, sent to them by email (see chapter "add a new group")

1.2 Removing users

From the main index page, click the "remove a user" link.

In the opened page, all users are listed, with username and creator.

If you want to list only the users that you have created, check the "Creator's only" box.

You can select how you want the list to be ordered from the pulldown menu. The list can be ordered by user first name, user last name, user username, creator first name or creator last name.

Click the "Del" button in front of the user you want to remove. You can only remove a user that you have created.

	Acce	ess Rights Management		<u> </u>
		Remove a user		
	Creator's only			
	Order by	User last name 💽		
Delete	User	User login name	Creator	
Del		andcla	Kees van der Veer	
Del	Corpman Corpman	corpman	Kees van der Veer	
Del	John Deer	hick	Pamela Perniss	
Del	Steve Levinson	levinson	Gunter Senft	
Del	Pamela Perniss	pamela.perniss	Andreas Claus	
Del	Gunter Senft	gunter	Corpman Corpman	
Del	Tanya Stivers	tansti	Corpman Corpman	
Del	Test Test	definer1	Andreas Claus	
Del				

2 Adding and removing access rights managers

Definers can create access rights managers (also definers) and give persons the permission to assign access rights to other users for a (sub-) corpus that belongs to your domain of authority. The created access right manager inherits your access rights for the specified (sub-) corpus, i.e. both can overwrite settings the other made, but only the creator has the right to withdraw the given authority.

2.1 Add a new access rights manager from top node

From the main index window, click the "add a new access right manager from top node" link. Select the correct top node from the **Top Node** pull-down menu. Next, select the person (an existing user of the user class "definer") you want to authorize from the **User name** pull-down menu and click the "submit" button.

2.2Add a new access rights manager from the current point in tree

Instead of creating a new access rights manager from a top node, authorized persons can also create a new access rights manager from the current point in the tree. From

the main index page, click the "add new access rights manager from current point in tree" link.

To add a new access rights manager, do the following:

	🚰 Browsable Corpus - Access Rights Management - Microsoft Internet Explorer provided by MPI Nijmegen 📃	. 🗆 🗙
	Elle Edit Yew Favorites Tools Help	100
	j 4-Book + → - 🔘 🖄 🖓 Search 🔄 Favorites 🖓 Media 🧭 💁 🛁 🚍 💭	
	Address 🕘 http://lux02.mpi.nl/cgi-bin/arm/arm_definer.pl?pos=CURR	ଜିତ
T A T A T	User: andda	~
In the opened page, the current	Access Rights Management	
node is indicated, under	Define authorized person	
Current node.	With this form you can give somebody else permission to give read access to others to a (sub-)corpus that belongs to your domain of authority. This person will have the same rights to the opeofied sub-corpus as you have yourself, i.e. both can overwrite settings the other one made. But only you will have the right to take back the given authority.	
Select the correct (sub-) corpus	Current //MDE-corpora	
× / I	Enter the node of the (sub-)corpus that will be the starting point of the domain of authority.	
node that will be the starting point	Node Current node)/DoBeS archive/ASLEP/Ethnic groups	
from the Node name pull-down	If the node specifies the correct sub-domain, please select the person to authorize.	
menu. You can click a field in the	User andcla 💌	
list and scroll the list.	Submit	\mathbf{D}
	Main Index Access Rights Management help	
Next, select the definer from the		
User name pull-down menu and		
click the "Submit" button.		<u> </u>

2.3 Removing access rights managers

To remove an access rights manager, click the "remove a manager" link from the main index page. In the opened page, all managers are listed, with login name, creator and path to the node that is set as the starting point for the (sub-) corpus node. If you want to list only the managers that you have created, check the "Creator's only" box. You can also select how you want the list to be ordered (by manager first name, manager last name, manager login name, creator first name, creator last name or path) from the pull-down menu.

Next, click the "Del" button in front of the manager you want to remove. You can only remove an access rights manager that you have created.

3 Adding, removing and modifying groups

3.1 Add a new group

From the main index window, click the "add a new group" link. A new page is opened with a form that allows you to create a new group and add users to that group. Only the creator of a group can modify that group.

To create a new group, do the following:

Browsable Corpus - Access Rights Management - N Ele Edit Yew Favorites Tools Help JeBack + G A S Search ElePavorit Agéress () http://luco2.mpi.nl/cgi-bn/am/am.add_group.	es @Media 🎯 🛃 🎒 📰 🗎 🖓	nX	Add the here.
Acce This form allows you to create a new group and ac that group. You can optionaly select an agreemen	SS Rights Management Add a new group d members to that group. Only you will be allowed that users have to accept.	to add/delete members to	Select t this new key to s hold do
Please enter the following fields Name of the new group Select one or more users to add to this group (if you hold down the Ctri-Key you can select more than one name. If you hold down the Shift- key you can select ablock of names)	new group (none) andcla corpman gunter		block o Select a
Select an agreement that users have to accept or (none).	kees tansti MPlpolicy.htm		has to a to the u optiona users to
Main index Access Rights Management	Reset	hele 🙆 🗸	"(none) Click th create t

Add the name for the new group here.

Select the users you want to add to this new group. Hold down the ctrlkey to select more than one user, or hold down the shift-key to select a block of users

Select an agreement that the user has to accept. The agreement is sent to the user by email. This feature is optional, if you don't want your users to accept any agreement select "(none)".

Click the "AddGroup" button to create the group.

Click the "Reset" button to clear all fields.

3.2 Remove a group

From the main index window, click the "remove a group" link. In the opened page, all groups are listed, with the creator. If you want to list only the groups that you have created, check the "creator's only" box. You can select how you want the list to be ordered (by group name, creator first name or creator last name) from the pull-down menu.

Next, click the "Del" button in front of the group you want to remove. You can only remove groups that you have created.

3.3 Modify groups

From the main index window, click the "modify groups" link. The opened page allows you to add and remove members from a group. You can select more members at a time to add or to remove. Only creators are allowed to modify their groups. To add or remove users, do the following:

🔮 Browsable Corpus - Access Rights Management - Microsoft Internet Explorer provided by MPI Nijmegen	
Ele Edit View Favorites Iools Help	
j ← Back • → • ② ③ ☆ ② Search @Favorites ③Media ③ ▷ → ∋ ⊡ □ ♀	Select the group you want to
Address 😰 http://lx.02.mpi.nlicgi-bin/erm/erm_mod_group.pl	modify from the pull-down menu.
User: andda	Listed are all groups and their
Access Rights Management	creators in brackets.
Modify a group	
This form allows to add and remove members from a group. You can select more members at a time to add or to remme. Only creators are allowed to modify their groups	If you want to list only the groups
chouse we allowed to meany their groups.	that you have created, check the
Select a group to edit andcla (creator:Andreas Claus) 🗾 🗹 Creators only	"creator's only" box.
Remove one or more members from the group Andreas Claus Kees van der Veer Remove	For the calested group, all members
(Holding down the Chilkey makes it possible to select more names one by one. If you press the Shiftkey you can select a group of	For the selected group, all members
namės (blobked).	are listed here. Select the
Add one or more of these users to the group. John Deer	member(s) you want to remove and
Steve Levinson Gunter Senft	click the "Remove" button.
(Holding down the Ctokyn maker (passible to select more name) one by one. If you press the Shiftvey you can eleked a point namer(blocked)	
	All users are listed here. Select the
Main Index Access Rights Management help	user(s) you want to add to the
	selected group and click the "Add"
	button.

!Note: Holding down the Ctrl-key makes it possible to select more names one by one. If you press the Shift-key you can select a group of names (blocked).

4 Defining and removing access rights for groups

4.1 Defining access rights for groups

From the main index page, click the "define access rights for a group" link. The opened page allows you to associate read rights to a group or to all users, for all resources that can be found under the selected node. Therefore, please make sure that you are at the right node in the corpus tree. The current starting node has to be within your domain of authority. All nodes and all resources that will be affected by your operation are listed at the bottom of the web page.

Browsable Corpus - Access F	Rights Management - Microsof	t Internet Explorer provided b	y MPI Nijmegen			7
<u>File Edit View Favorites</u>					-	
Address in http://lux02.mpi.nl/cg	i-bin/arm/arm_rights_group.pl				• 🖗 😡	
					_ 🔺	
Select group: (only if you want to specify rights for a group)	levinson 🔽		corpman gunter			
Current point in the tree which indicates the resources that will be affected. Take care that this is what you want.	MDI-corpora/MPI co	prpora/Language & Coç	nition/eastasia			
To allow or deny read ac refers to all users.	ccess to a specific mediun	n check the box next to it	. 'Group' refers to the s	elected group. 'All'		
Media	Allow for Group	Deny for Group	Allow for All	Deny for All		
All annotations	٠	•	٠	•		\succ
All audio	•	•	٥	0		
All images	•	•	٢	•		
All information files	•	Ð	0	0		1
All video	•		٥	0		
		Add Rights		,		
Affected corpus nodes (Current node)						
Affected resources /data/corpora/media	archive/lac_data/kita/ln	fo/QuantityInfo.htm	•			
L						4:0

To define access rights for a group or for all users, do the following:

Select the group whose access rights you want to define. The group-members are listed in the field on the right. If you want to list only the groups that you have created, check the "creator's only" box.

The current node in the tree is shown here. This node and nodes below in the tree will be affected by your operation.

Define the access rights by checking the boxes. Access rights can be defined for a specific type of media (i.e. all annotations, all audio, all images, all information files or all videos). Access rights can be allowed/denied for the selected group or allowed/denied for all users. Note that allowing/denying access rights for all users automatically overrules access rights defined for the group.

Idicated in the pull-down menus at the

bottom of the page. You can navigate through the menus using the scroll wheel on your mouse, the PageUp and PageDown-keys or the arrow-keys.

Next, click the "AddRights" button to complete the operation.

4.2 Remove access rights for a group

From the main index window, click the "remove access rights from a group" link. The opened page lists all groups, with creator and the path to the corpus node. If you want to list only the groups that you have created, check the "creator's only" box. You can select how you want the list to be ordered (by group name, creator first name, creator last name or path) from the pull-down menu.

Next, click the "Del" button in front of the group you want to remove. You can only remove groups that you have created.

5 List access rights

This feature will be added soon.

Appendix D

IMDI CV-Editor, version 1.0

Manual

This manual was last updated: 14 Jul 2003

The latest version of the manual can be downloaded from the following webpage: <u>www.mpi.nl/tools</u> Author: Birgit Hellwig

Introduction

The IMDI CV-Editor (ISLE Metadata Initiative – Controlled Vocabulary Editor) was developed at the Max Planck Institute for Psycholinguistics, Nijmegen, The Netherlands. The CV-Editor is used to create lists of controlled vocabulary items. As such, it complements the other IMDI tools, notably the IMDI Editor (also known as the IMDI Metadata Editor).

At the moment, the following IMDI tools exist (tools and manuals can be downloaded

from www.mpi.nl/IMDI/tools):

- IMDI (Metadata) Editor: a tool for creating metadata descriptions;
- IMDI Browser: a tool for displaying and accessing data and metadata;
- IMDI Metadata Search Tool: a tool for searching through metadata information.

This manual explains and exemplifies the features of the IMDI CV-Editor. It is organized around the following three chapters:

- 4. Basic information
- 5. Creating controlled vocabularies with the IMDI CV-Editor
- 6. Working with controlled vocabularies in the IMDI Metadata Editor

Notation Conventions

The following notation conventions are used:

- Menu items, icons and screen displays are written in the font MS Sans Serif.
- (SHORTCUT) KEYS ARE WRITTEN IN SMALL CAPS.
- Information on troubleshooting starts as follows: !

Table of Contents

1 Ba	asic information	3 0
2 Cı	reating controlled vocabularies with the IMDI CV-Editor	181
2.1	Managing controlled vocabularies: the File menu18	B1
2.2	The metadata category18	B5
2.3	The values18	88
	<i>forking with controlled vocabularies in the IMDI Metada</i> or	
3.1	Viewing the available controlled vocabularies19	90
3.2	Working with predefined controlled vocabularies19	93
3.3	Working with user-defined controlled vocabularies19	93

8 Basic information

All the IMDI tools are concerned with metadata information. As such, they make use of so-called "controlled vocabularies". Each vocabulary consists of a metadata category (e.g., a category labeled "languages") and of a list of predefined values to be entered into this category (e.g., all the names of the world's languages).

The IMDI CV-Editor allows you to create such controlled vocabularies, i.e., to define a metadata catgeory and its values. For example, in the illustration below, the category "MPI-Languages" is specified, and its values are defined as consisting of the names of all those languages that researchers at the MPI for Psycholinguistics in Nijmegen work on (i.e., a subset of the world's languages).



In other IMDI tools (e.g., in the IMDI Metadata Editor) such values are then displayed in form of pull-down menus. For example, in the illustration below, all values of the metadata category "MPI-Languages" are displayed.


Controlled vocabularies thereby (a) facilitate the entering of metadata information (as the values need not be typed, but are selected from a pull-down menu) and (b) ensure consistency (as the values are selected from a predefined list).

9 Creating controlled vocabularies with the IMDI CV-Editor

Starting the IMDI CV-Editor opens up the Controlled Vocabulary Editor window. This window is structured as follows:



The File menu of the Controlled Vocabulary Editor window allows you to create, open, save and print controlled vocabularies file (see section 9.1). Each file contains information about the metadata category (see section 9.2) and its values (see section 9.3).

9.1 Managing controlled vocabularies: the File menu

The File menu is used for managing the controlled vocabularies files. It contains the following menu items:

🌺 Controlled Vocabul	
<u>File</u>	
New	Ctrl-N
<u>O</u> pen	Ctrl-O
Show Available CV's.	
Save To Local Dir	Ctrl-S
Save To <u>C</u> ache	
S <u>a</u> ve As	F12
<u>P</u> rint	Ctrl-P
E <u>x</u> it	

To access any menu item, do one of the following:

- (g) Click on that item.
- (h) Or use the shortcut key ALT plus the underlined letter(s) (e.g., to access the item <u>File</u> <u>New</u>, press first the keys ALT+F and then N).
- (i) Or use the shortcut key that is displayed to the right of the corresponding menu item (e.g., to access the item New, press the keys CTRL+N) (only available for some items).

The following menu items are available:

New	Click on New to create a new controlled vocabulary.
Open	Click on Open to open an existing controlled vocabulary.

! Note: The IMDI tools make use of a number of predefined controlled vocabularies. These vocabularies are stored on the Web, and the links to them are stored in the subfolders contained under "user-directory \setminus IMDI-TOOLS \setminus CVCACHE". Any such vocabulary can be opened in the IMDI CV-Editor, and can then be taken as the basis for creating a new controlled vocabulary in a language other than English (see section 9.1). However, the predefined vocabularies themselves cannot be modified.

Show Available CV's ...

Click on Show Available CV's ... to view a list of all controlled vocabularies that are stored in the subfolders contained under "user-directory \ IMDI-TOOLS \ CVCACHE".

The Vocabs overview window opens and displays information on the Name, the Tag, the Link To Canonical CV, the Description and the Language of a controlled vocabulary (see section 9.1 for details), e.g.:



! Note: You can open any of the available controlled vocabularies from within the Vocabs overview window. Do the following:



Save As ... Click on Save As ... to save the controlled vocabulary file anywhere on the computer.

! Note: The files will be saved as XML files.

! Note: If you are in doubt where the local directory or the cache is located on your computer, point with the mouse to Save To Local Dir or Save To Cache. The tool-tip is activated and displays the corresponding location, e.g.:

	Scontrolled Vocabulary	Editor - [Continents.xi	nl]		_ 🗆
	<u>File</u>				
	New	Ctrl-N			
	Open	Ctrl-O nents	Language:	English	•
	Show Available CV's			1	
(Save To Local Dir	Ctrl-S			
	we To Cache		DVO.L.		
oint her	e we As D:WIN		-Tools\CVCACHE\local ctrl-s	$\overline{}$	
	lint	CUR			
	E <u>x</u> it		tool-tip displays		
	Tag	Value	the location	ion	Add
	Unknown	Unknown			
	Unspecified	Unspecified			Edit
	Africa	Africa			Remove
	Asia	Asia			Tichiove
	Europe	Europe			
	Australia	Australia			
	Oceania	Oceania			
	North-America	North-America			
	Middle-America	Middle-America			
	South-America	South-America			
		4			
	Click on a column header	to sort			

! Note: The IMDI tools can only make use of controlled vocabularies that are saved to one of the subfolders contained under "user-directory \setminus IMDI-TOOLS \setminus CVCACHE". Files that are saved anywhere else on the computer cannot be accessed by the IMDI tools.

! Note: It is recommended that all controlled vocabularies are stored on the Web and are saved in one of the subfolders contained under "user-directory $\ IMDI-TOOLS \ CVCACHE"$. In this case, the IMDI tools will be able to check for newer versions of the corresponding controlled vocabularies and to update the cache accordingly.

Print	Click on Print to print the controlled vocabulary.
Exit	Click on Exit to exit the IMDI CV-Editor.

9.2 The metadata category

The IMDI CV-Editor asks you to specify the following kind of information about the metadata category:



1. Name, Tag and Title

Name contains the name of the underlying metadata category, Tag contains the form that is displayed in the user-interface of the IMDI tools, and Title contains the spelled-out version of the Tag.

- The Name is obligatory. It is automatically the same as the name of the controlled vocabulary file (plus a language abbreviation, if applicable) (see below).
- The Title is optional. It contains the information that is displayed in the IMDI tools whenever the tool-tip is activated. That is, if you point with the mouse to a metadata category, a blue box containing the Title will be displayed.
- The Tag is optional. It is only necessary if you have a single underlying controlled vocabulary (a so-called "canonical" vocabulary) that corresponds to vocabularies in different languages. For example, in the above illustration, the canonical vocabulary is "Continents". The abbreviation "ger" in the Name informs us that this particular vocabulary is the German language version of the canonical "Continents". The Tag is "Kontinente" (i.e., the German word for "Continents"). That is, the IMDI tools will display the canonical "Continents" as "Kontinente" in the user-interface.

! Note: Currently, the IMDI tools display the English language version of all predefined controlled vocabularies. However, in a future version, it will be possible for the user to select a different language version, e.g., German. That is, all vocabularies will then be displayed in the appropriate language.

2. Language

Select the language of the controlled vocabulary from the pull-down menu, e.g., "German" in the illustration above.

Note that you can open an already existing controlled vocabulary file and create a different language version of it (see above). Do the following:

1. Open the file that contains the underlying controlled vocabulary (i.e., the so-called "canonical" vocabulary), e.g., the canonical "Continents" file:

Sontrolled Vocabulary Editor - [Continents.xml]		_ <u> </u>
File Continents T.g: T.le: URL http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/Schema/Continents.xml Description A list of linguistic continents	canonical or predefined controlled vocabulary (in English)	Language: English

2. Go to Language, and select the appropriate language from the pull-down menu, e.g., "German":

File			/	
Name:	Continents		Language:	English 🔻
ag:	1			Dutch
itle:		select a language from the		English
JRL:	http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/Schema/Co	00		German
		pull-down menu		French
)escrip				Spanish
A list of	linguistic continents			Portugese
				Russian

3. The following window appears:



Click on Yes to create a new file for the new language.

Click on No to overwrite the existing file with the new language.

Click on the cross icon in the upper right corner to return to the IMDI CV-Editor without making any changes.

If you have selected either **Yes** or **No** the, IMDI CV-Editor will display the underlying category plus the new language, e.g.:



You can now edit the file, e.g., give it a German Tag, Title and Description (see above), and enter the appropriate German translation of the values (see section 9.3).

! Note: Please do not change the Name and the file name (as it appears in the URL):

- The Name contains the name of the underlying metadata category plus the appropriate language extension (e.g., "Continents-ger")
- The file name (in the URL) only contains the underlying metadata category (e.g., "Continents").
- The file will then automatically be saved under the name of the category plus the appropriate language extensions (e.g., "Continents-ger")

This procedure is necessary for the IMDI tools to understand that the different language versions go back to the same canonical vocabulary. The relationships between different language versions and canonical vocabularies are visualized in the Vocabs Overview window as follows (see section 9.1):



! Note: It is recommended to store all such files on the Web.

The controlled vocabulary file is an XML file, and the file name is identical to the name entered into the category Name (minus the language abbreviation) (see above).

4. Description

The Description is optional. It contains a prose description of the category.

9.3 The values

The IMDI CV-Editor asks you to specify the following kind of information about the values:

To add, modify or delete a value to or from the list, make use of the buttons Add ..., Edit ... and Remove:

- To add a value, click on Add The Controlled Vocabulary Entry window will be displayed.
- To modify a value, click on it to select it, then click on Edit ... to modify it. The Controlled Vocabulary Entry window will be displayed.
- To delete a value, click on it to select it, then click on **Remove** to remove it. It will be removed without further warning.

🌺 Conti	rolled Vocabulary Edi	tor - [Continents-	ger.xml]			<u> </u>	
<u>F</u> ile							
Name:	Continents-ger				Language:	German 💌	
Tag:	Kontinente	ntinente					
Title:	Die Kontinente	e Kontinente					
URL:	http://www.mpi.nl/IMI	DI/Schema/Contin	ents.xml				
Descrip	tion:						
A list of	linguistic continents (in German)					
	Tag	Valu	e	Description		Add	
Unbekar		Unknown		to be used if the continent is			
Unspezi	fiziert	Unspecified		to be used if the continent is	unspecified	Edit	
Afrika		Africa			<u> </u>	Remove	
Asien		Asia		1 44	1.1	Temove	
Europa		Europe	use th	lese buttons to a	aa,	$ \land \checkmark$	
Australie		Australia	madi	fy or delete value	20		
Ozeanie		Oceania	moun	ly of delete value	es		
Nordam		North-America					
Mittelam		Middle-America					
Südame	rika	South-America					
Sorted a	n column Descriptio	2					
Sorteu u	in column Description						

! Note: If you work with a controlled vocabulary that is predefined by the IMDI tools, the buttons Add ... and Remove ... will be disabled. This is also true for different language versions of predefined controlled vocabularies. That is, in such cases, you are only allowed to modify existing entries.

When the **Controlled Vocabulary Entry** window opens up, you are asked to enter the following information:

/	Scontrolled Vocabulary Entry	X
/	Tag Afrika	
	Value Africa	
	to be used if the continent is Africa	
	information to be entered	OK Cancel

Value contains the underlying value, Tag contains the form that is displayed in the user-interface of the IMDI tools, and Description contains a prose description of the Tag.

- The Value is obligatory.
- The Tag is optional. It is only necessary if you have a single underlying controlled vocabulary (a so-called "canonical" vocabulary) that corresponds to vocabularies in different languages. For example, in the above illustration, the underlying value is "Africa" (= the Value), and the Tag is "Afrika" (i.e., the German word for "Africa"). That is, the IMDI tools will display the underlying value "Africa" as "Afrika" in the user-interface.
- The Description is optional. It contains descriptive information that is displayed in the IMDI tools whenever the tool-tip is activated. That is, if you point with the mouse to a value, a blue box containing the Description will be displayed.

10 Working with controlled vocabularies in the IMDI Metadata Editor

The IMDI Metadata Editor is a tool that allows you to create metadata information. As such, it makes frequent use of controlled vocabularies – both predefined vocabularies and user-defined vocabularies.

This section of the manual describes how the IMDI Metadata Editor uses the controlled vocabularies that were created in the IMDI CV-Editor. A more comprehensive manual of the IMDI Metadata Editor can be downloaded from WWW.mpi.nl/IMDI/tools.

10.1 Viewing the available controlled vocabularies

The IMDI Metadata Editor can display a list of all available controlled vocabularies. To view this list, click on the menu item View, and then on Vocabularies The Vocabs overview window opens and displays information on the Name, the Tag, the Link To Canonical CV, the Description and the Language of a controlled vocabulary (see section 9.2 for details). Furthermore, it informs you whether the file is stored locally (an "X" symbol is entered into the column Local Only) or on the Web (the column Local Only remains blank). For example:

Name	Tag	Link To Cannonical CV	Description	Language	Local Only
SignSystemsUse.SignS	SignSystemsUse.SignS	http://www.let.kun.nl/sign-lang/IMDI/vocabs/SignSyste	msHow often does the a	ctor use ISO639:eng	X
upportedSpeech	upportedSpeech	Use.SignSupportedSpeech.xml	sign supported spee	ch in	
	/		everyday communica		
Content-Genre-Discursi	*	http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/Schema/Content-Genre-Discu e.xml	aenre.discursive asp		
		ean	genne.uiscursive asp	eu	
Coptent-Genre-Discursi	/	http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/Schema/Content-Genre-Discu	rsivA list of values for t		
/		exml	genre.discursive a	information a	about
				information a	iooui
Continents-ger	Continents-ger	http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/Schema/Continents.xml	A list of linguistic c (in German)	available con	trolled
			(in German)		nu on cu
CGN.locName		http://www.mpi.nl/CGN/Schema/CGN.locName.xml	Dummy file used fi	vocabularies	
			key CGN.locName		
			L		
AnnotationUnit-Format		http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/Schema/AnnotationUnit-Forma		nit	
		mi	formats		
amily.Partner	Family.Partner	http://www.let.kun.nl/sign-lang/IMDI/vocabs/Family.Pa	rtn Hearing status of the	actor's ISO639:eng	x
		erxml	partner.	-	
				_	
Participant-Type		http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/Schema/Participant-Type.xml	A list of values for the ascpect of Participan		
			ascpect of Fanicipan		
N.byteCount		http://www.mpi.nl/CGN/Schema/CGN.byteCount.xml	The length of the tran	scription	
\mathbf{X}			file in bytes		
CGN.wordCount		http://www.mpi.nl/CGN/Schema/CGN.wordCount.xml	Number of words in transcription		
			uanschpuon		-
anguagesID	\sim	http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/Schema/LanguagesID.xml	The id's of languages		
001000000000000000000000000000000000000					
Add File	Add URL R	emove Read all Refresh selec	ted Refresh al	I Show entries	Close

The Vocabs overview window offers you the following options for managing the controlled vocabularies:

Add File ... Click on Add File ... to add a controlled vocabulary file that is stored locally. The Open dialog window appears, and asks you to navigate to the controlled vocabulary file. Add URL ... Click on Add URL ... to add a controlled vocabulary file that is stored on the Web. The Vocab add window appears: enter the URL of the file, click on Apply, then click on OK. 🌺 ¥ocab add X URL http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/Schema/Content-Genre-Interactional.xml ок Cancel Apply Remove Click on a controlled vocabulary in the Vocabs overview window to select it. It will be highlighted in blue color. Then click on Remove to remove this vocabulary from the window. It will be removed without further warning. Read all Click on Read all to view all available controlled vocabularies that are stored in the cache (i.e., all links that are stored in the subfolders contained under "user-directory \ IMDI-TOOLS \ CVCACHE). **Refresh selected** Click on a controlled vocabulary in the Vocabs overview window to select it. It will be highlighted in blue color. Then click on Refresh selected to update the selected vocabulary. The IMDI tools will check the corresponding URL for newer versions of this vocabulary. Refresh all Click on Refresh all to update all vocabularies. The IMDI tools will check the corresponding URLs for newer versions of the vocabularies.

Show entries ...

Click on a controlled vocabulary in the Vocabs overview window to select it. It will be highlighted in blue color. Then click on Show entries ... to view its content, e.g.:

Vocabs overvie Name Content-Genre-Interac	vocabulary to	Link ema/Content-Genre-Interactional xml	Description A list of values for the Genre.Interaction
Content-Task	http://www.mpi.el/iMDI/Schema/C Source Cogeror http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/Scher «?wm/version="1.0" encoding="ISO-8859-1"?> «Iso and a standard a st	na/Content-Genre-Interactionation	Alistof c Alistof w Alistof w
	indiDescription Languagetd="GL indiDescription Languagetd="GL indiDescription Languagetd="GL indiDescription" indiDescript	on: A witty question to a respondent who 3. content is o	h all Show entries

Close Click on Close to close the Vocabs overview window.

10.2 Working with predefined controlled vocabularies

The IMDI Metadata Editor makes use of a number of predefined controlled vocabularies. These vocabularies are stored on the Web, and the links to them are stored in the subfolders contained under "user-directory \ IMDI-TOOLS \ CVCACHE".

In the IMDI Metadata Editor, these predefined vocabularies are displayed in form of a metadata category and a pull-down menu of its values, e.g.:



! Note: Currently, the IMDI Metadata Editor display the English language version of all predefined metadata categories. However, in a future version, it will be possible for the user to select a different language version, e.g., German. That is, all metadata categories and controlled vocabularies will then be displayed in the appropriate language.

10.3 Working with user-defined controlled vocabularies

The IMDI Metadata Editor makes use of a number Keys fields. These Keys contain userdefined metadata information:

- you can either type in a metadata category and a value for that category;
- or you can use a user-defined controlled vocabulary.

For this manual, only the second option is of interest. To add a user-defined controlled vocabulary, do the following:

- 1. Create a controlled vocabulary by means of the IMDI CV-Editor (see section 9).
- 2. Click on the Add Vocab Link ... button, e.g.:

🖹 IMDI Metadata Editor		
<u>File View H</u> elp		
	🕙 🔘 <u>S</u> New Session 👻	x
P S New Session	Session	
- Content	Session Name: New Session	
	Session Title:	
References	Recording Date: Unspecified	
	Descriptions Location Keys	
	Keys	
	Key Name Key Value Add Vocab Link	ノ
	click on the Add Vocab Link button	
♥ ■ Local Repository ♥ ■ Collectors ♥ □ Colnent ♥ □ Participants ♥ □ Access ♥ □ Projects		
		•
	Editor	

The Vocabs overview window appears and displays the available controlled vocabularies.

3. Click on the controlled vocabulary that you want to add. It will be highlighted in blue color, e.g.:

Vocabs overview Used vocabularies until now:					
Name	Tag	Link To Cannonical CV	Description	Language	Local Only
		bility.xml			
LanguagesID		http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/Schema/LanguagesID.xml	The id's of languages		
MPHLanguages		http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/Schema/MPI-Languages.xml	Lists of languages and language abbreviations used at the		
MediaFile:Format		http://www.mpi.nl/IMDI/Schema/MediaFile-Format.xml	A list if media formats		
	on the cor ou want to		kdd File Add URL	ОК	Cance

! Note: If the required controlled vocabulary is not displayed, click on Add File ... or Add URL ... to add it to the Vocabs overview window.

4. Click on OK. The Specify Vocabulary Type window appears, e.g.:



5. Select the vocabulary type by clicking in the box to its left:

Closed Controlled Vocabulary	only values defined in the controlled vocabulary will be accepted by the IMDI Metadata Editor
Open Controlled Vocabulary	values <u>not</u> defined in the controlled vocabulary can be typed in and will be accepted by the IMDI Metadata Editor
Closed Controlled Vocabulary List	

Closed Controlled Vocabulary List

Open Controlled Vocabulary List

6. Click on OK. The metadata category and its list of values are added to the Keys schema, e.g.:

